COUNTY OF DAUPHIN
HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012



COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Independent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements 1-3
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 4-19
Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position 20
Statement of Activities 21
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds 22-23
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 24
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —

Governmental Funds 25
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 26
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds 27
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

— Proprietary Funds 28
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds 29-30
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Fiduciary Funds 31
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — Fiduciary Funds 32
Combining Statement of Net Position — Component Units 33
Combining Statement of Activities — Component Units 34

Notes to Financial Statements 35-125
Required Supplementary Information
Schedules of Employer Contributions and Funding Progress — Employees

Retirement Plan 127
Schedule of Funding Progress — Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions 128
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Budget and Actual — General Fund 129

Other Supplementary Infermation
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds 131
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 132
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 133 -134
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

- Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 135 - 136
Combining Statement of Net Pesition — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 137
Combining Staterment of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position —

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 138
Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 139 - 140
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabiiities — Agency Funds 141

Schedule of Departmental Expenditures — Budget and Actual General Fund 142 - 150



Zelenkofske Axelrod LLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Commissioners
County of Dauphin
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, as of and for the vear ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the COUNTY OF DAUPHIN's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

Audifor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
aggregate discretely presented component unit financial statements for the Dauphin County General Authority, which
represents 75.77 percent and 50.16 percent, respectively of the assets and revenues of the aggregate discretely
presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by ancther auditor whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Dauphin County General
Authority is based solely on the report of the other auditcr. We condueted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States. The financial
statements of the Dauphin County General Authority and Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves parforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the enfity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overalil presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinions.
Harrisburg Lehigh Valley Philadelphia Pittsburgh
830 Sir Thomas Court, Suite 100 1101 West Hamilton Streef 2370 York Rond, Suite A-5 3800 McKnight E. Drive, Suite 3805
Harrisburg, PA 17109 Allenfown, PA 18101-1043 Jamison, PA 18929 Pitisburgh, PA 15237

717.561.9200 Fax 717.561.9202 610.871.5077  Fax 717.561.9202 215.918.2277  Fax 2159182302 412.367.7102 Fax 412.367.7103
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Opinions

in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of ancther auditor, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type aclivities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, as of December 31, 2012, and the respective changes in financial
position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Principles

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements in 2012, the COUNTY OF DAUPHIN adopted the remaining
provisions of GASB Statement No. 57, “OFEB Measurement by Agent Employers and Agent Muliiple-Employer
Plan’, the pravisions of No. 60 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements”, No. 62
“Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements”, No. 83, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Positions”, and No.
64 Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions — an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 53"

Other Matters
Uncertainties Regarding Compfiance with Bond Indentures — Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Unit

The financial statements referred to above include the financial data of the Dauphin County General Authority whose
financial statements include an emphasis paragraph pertaining to uncertainties regarding compliance with Bond
Indentures. As discussed in Note 26, the Pittsburgh Hyatt Hotel and Conference Center Fund made unscheduled
withdrawats from the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund and Bond Reserve Fund.

Required Supplementary information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, Schedule of Employer Contribufions and Funding Progress, Schedule of Funding Progress for
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 19, 127,
128, and 129 be presented fo supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses fo our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the COUNTY OF DAUPHIN's basic financial statements. The Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements and
the Schedule of Departmental Expenditures on pages 131 through 141 and page 142 through 150 are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
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The Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements and the Schedule of Departmental Expenditures are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
Combining Nonmajor Fund Financial Statements and the Schedule of Departmental Expenditures are fairly stated in
all materiai respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 30, 2013, on
our consideration of the COUNTY OF DAUPHIN's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financlal reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the COUNTY OF DAUPHIN's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

| S s 2 & ) rJ .L“c

ZELENKOFSKE AXELROD LLC
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
September 30, 2013
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

introduction

This section of the financial statements for the County of Dauphin (the County) presents a
narrative overview and analysis of the County’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012. We recommend that it be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic
financial statements and notes te financial statements in order to obtain a thorough understanding
of the County's financial condition at December 31, 2012.

Financial Highlights

Dauphin County's property tax rate of 6.876 mills was not raised in 2012.

On December 14, 2011, the Board of Commissioners passed a $184,493,314 General
Fund Budget for 2012 maintaining the 6.876 millage rate. A budgeted drawdown on fund
balance in the amount of $20.9 million was necessary in order fo cover the initial 2012
expenditure budget. There were two new positions added to the General Fund at a total
cost of approximately $129,000 including benefits. The cost of these two positions was
offset by the elimination of some part-time positions and reductions in service costs.

On February 27, 2012, the County paid $1,500,000 to the trustee for the Harrisburg
University 2007B Bonds. This payment was required per the terms of the County’s
guaranty on this issue as the University defaulted on its March 1, 2012 debt payment.
The County’s guaranty is limited to $1.5 million in any calendar year through 2019.

On October 16, 2012, the County terminated the 2005 Basis Swap and the 2011 Basis
Swap. The termination of the 2005 swap resulied in a finai net cash benefit to the County
of approximately $402,000 over its term, while the latter swap netted almost $649,000
over its term.

On November 15, 2012, three 'Fixed to Floating Rate Swap Options’ with DEPFA Bank
expired. The notional amount of the three options totaled $40,055,000. These were put
in place on 9/13/07, and the County received an upfront payment of $1,001,000 at that
time.

In 2012, Dauphin County paid $5,294,865 toward Harrisburg Incinerator Debt after
defaults by the Harrisburg Authority and City on their obligations to make these
payments.

The County’s credit rating from Standard & Poors was unchanged in 2012. It remains at
‘AA/Stable Outlook’.

At December 31, 2012 the General Fund’s Unassigned Fund Balance was $11,683,415.
This is down from the $22,492,245 balance at the end of 2011.

The County’s total net position decreased by $17,862,227 in 2012. Unrestricted net
position at year-end was $24,586,963. The decrease in net position in the current year
can be attributed to the recording of an allowance on the Incinerator Receivable in the
amount of $17,139,378. Based on information received subsequent to year-end, it is
unlikely that the County will receive any additional funds that were paid as part of the
Guarantee Agreement, outside of the principal on the debt that was incurred by the
County.
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Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial section of this report consists of four parts:

Management’s discussion and analysis (this section)
Basic financial statements (including notes)
Required supplementary information

Supplementary information

Management's discussion and analysis is a guide to reading the financial statements and
provides related information to help the reader to better understand the County government. The
basic financial statements include notes that provide additional information essential to a full
understanding of the financial data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. Required supplementary information is provided on the County’s pension plan and
budget to actual figures for the general fund. In addition to these required elements, an optional
supplementary section is included with combining and other statements that provide particulars
about non-major funds.

The basic financial statements present two different views of the County.

Government-wide financial statements, the first two statements, provide
information about the County’s overall financial status as well as the financial status
of the County’s companent units.

Fund financial statements, the remaining statements, focus on individual parts of
County government. They provide more detail on operations than the government-
wide statements. There are three types of fund financial statements:

O

Governmental funds statements show how general government services
such as public safety were financed in the short term, as well as what
remains for future spending.

Propriefary fund statements offer short-term and long-term financial
information about the activities the county operates like a business, such as
the County's parking garage.

Fiduciary funds statements reflect activities involving resources that are held
by the County as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, including
employees of the County like the pension plan. Fiduciary funds are not
reflected in the government-wide statements because the resources cannot
be used to support the County's programs.
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Table A-1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and how they are
related to one ancther.

Table A-1: Organization of the County’s annual financial report

Required Components of the Annual Financial Statements

|
T

Management's Basic Supplementary
Discussion Financial Information
and Analysis Statements A. Reqguired
B. Optional

Government

Wide Fund Notes to
Financial FinanCial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

F Y

h 4
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Table A-2 summarizes the major features of the County’s financial statements, including the area
of the County’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain.

Table A-2: Major features of the government-wide and fund financial statements

Government-wide

Fund Financiai Statements

Statements
Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Instances in which
Entire entity and The day-to-day The activities of the | the County
Scope component units operating activities | County, such as administers
(except fiduciary of the County, such | the Parking resources on
funds) as public safety Garage. behalf of others,
and courts such as the
employee pension
plan
- Statement of net - Balance Sheet - Statement of net - Statement of
position position fiduciary net
Required - Statement of -Statement of position
Financial - Statement of revenues, revenues,

Statements activities expenditures and expenses and - Statement of
changes in fund changes in net changes in
balance position fiduciary net

-Statement of cash | position
flawe

Accounting basis
and measurement
focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and
current financial
resources
measurement focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Type of asset and
liability
infarmation

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, short-term
and long-term

Current assets and
liabilities that come
due during the year
or soon thereafter;
no capital assets or
long-term liabilities

included

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, short-term
and long-term

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital short-term
and long-term;
funds do not
currently contain
capital assets,
although they can

Type of inflow
and outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid

Revenues for which
cash is received
during the year or
soon thereafter;
expenditures when
goods or services
have been received
and the related
liability is due and
payabie

All revenues and
expenses during
the year;
regardiess of when
cash Is received or
paid

All additions and
deductions during
the year,
regardless of when
cash is received or
paid




Page 8

The remainder of this overview explains the structure and contents of the government-wide and
fund financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements report information about the County as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies.

- The statement of net position includes all of the County’s assets and liabilities, except
fiduciary funds, with the difference between the two reported as net position. This
statement serves a purpose similar to that of the balance sheet of a private-sector
business.

- The statement of activities focuses on how the County’s net position changed during
the year. Because it separates program revenue (revenue generated by specific
programs through charges for services, grants and contributions) from generai
revenue (revenue provided by taxes and other sources not tied to a particular
program), it shows to what extent each program has to rely on local taxes for funding.

All changes to net position are reported using the accrual method of accounting, which requires
that revenues be reported when they are earned and expenses be reported when the goods
and/or services are received, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Net position is one way to measure the County's financial position. Over time, increases or
decreases in the County's net position is one indicator of whether the County financial position is
improving or deteriorating. However, other non-financial factors such as changes in the County's
real property tax base and general economic conditions must be considered to assess the overall
position of the County.

The primary government and its component units are included in the government-wide financial
statements. Component units reflect the activities of legally separate government entities over
which the County can exercise influence and/or be obligated to provide financial support. The
County has five discretely presented component units including the Conservation District; the
General Authority; MH/ID Case Management Unit; industrial Development Authority: and the
Economic Development Corporation. Complete and detailed financial statements for the
individual component units are available for public inspection in the County Controller's Office.
(See Note 1, Notes to the Financial Statements.)

There are two categories of activities for the primary government.
- Governmental activities include the County's basic services such as general and

judicial administration, corrections, public safety, public works, and human services.
Property taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

- Business-type activities such as the County's parking facility and the EMA 911
Communications system charge a fee to customers to help cover the costs of
services.

Net position of the governmental activities differs from the governmental fund balances because
governmental fund level statements only report transactions using or providing current financial
resources. Also, capital assets are reported as expenditures when financial resources (money)
are expensed to purchase or build said assets. Likewise, the financial resources that may have
been borrowed are considered revenue when they are received. The principal and interest
payments are both considered expenditures when paid. Depreciation is not calculated as it does
not provide or reduce current financial resources. Finally, capital assets and long-term debt do
not affect fund balances.
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Government-wide statements are reported using an economic resources measurement focus and
full accrual basis of accounting that involves the following steps to format the statement of net
position:

- Capitalize current outlays of capital assets
- Report long-term debt as a liabiiity

- Depreciate capital assets and allocate the depreciation to the proper
program/activities

- Calculate revenue and expense using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting

- Allocate net position balances as folfows:
o Netinvestment in capital assets

o Restricted net position is those with constraints placed on the use by external
sources (creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
governments) or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legistation

o Unrestricted net position is net position that does not meet any of the above
restrictions

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide more detailed information on the County's most significant
funds, not the County as a whole. Funds are accounting devices, i.e., a group of related
accounts, the County uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for particular
purposes. Some funds are required by state l[aw. Other funds are established to control and
manage resources designated for specific purposes. Fund financial statements are reported
using current financial resources and modified accrual accounting established by the Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) for governments.

The County has three kinds of funds:

- Governmental funds include most of the County’s basic services and focus on: (1)
the flow in and out of cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted
into cash, and: (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using the modified accrual accounting basis, and a current
financial resources measurement focus. Consequently, the governmental funds
statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine the financial
resources available in the near future to finance the County’s programs.

The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the statement of net
position and the statement of activities) and governmental funds is described in a
reconciliation that follows the governmental fund financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for the General, certain special revenue, and
capital project funds, as required by the state law. Budgetary comparisons of the
County’s major funds are presented as required supplementary information.

- Proprigfary Funds report business-type programs and activities that charge fees
designed to recover the cost of providing services. They report using full accrual
accounting.
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- Fiduciary Funds are funds for which the County is the trustee or fiduciary. These

include the Employee Retirement Fund and certain agency funds, or clearing
accounts for assets held by the County in its role as custadian until the funds are
allocated to the private parties, organizations, or government agencies to which they
belong. The County is responsible to ensure the assets reported in these funds are
used for their intended purposes. This fiduciary activity is reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net
position. These funds are excluded from the County's government-wide financial
statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

Implementation of GASE No. 34

The year ending December 31, 2002 marked the first year that the County reported its financial
statements in accordance with GASB No. 34.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Net Position

Dauphin County’s total assets were $250,591,879 at December 31, 2012. Of this amount,
$114,139,352 was capital assets and construction-in-progress.

GASB No. 34 requires that all capital assets, including infrastructure, be valued and reported
within the governmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements, but allows
infrastructure to be added over several years. In 2008, the County fully adopted the provisions of

GASB No. 34
Table A-3
County of Dauphin's
Condensed Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government Total %
Change
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Current & Cther Assets $ 160,423,731 $ 134,366,133 § 3,442,162 $ 2,086,394 163,865,893 § 136,452,527 -16.7%
Capital Assels 104,948,821 107,845,107 7,260,601 6,284,245 112,209,422 114,139,352 1.7%
Total Assets 265,372,552 242,211,240 10,702,763 8,380,639 276,075,315 250,591,879 -9.2%
Long-Term Debt Qutstanding 170,318,468 163,999,236 4,920,187 4,537,453 175,238,655 168,536,689 -3.8%
Other Liabilities 27,629,075 26,723,495 424,445 410,782 28,053,520 27,134,277 -3.3%
Total Liabilities 197,947,543 190,722,731 5,344,632 4,948,235 203,292,175 195,670,966 -3.7%
Net Position:
Net nvestment in Capital Assets (2,074,093) (695,268} 2,824,001 2,252,981 748,998 1,557,713 -107.7%
Restricted 34,245,154 28,776,237 - - 34,245,154 28,776,237  -16.0%
Unrestricted 35,253,948 23,407,540 2,534,040 1,179,423 37,787,988 24,586,963  -34.9%
Total Net Position $ 67425009 $ 51488500 $ 5,358,131 $ 3,432,404 % 72783140 $ 54,920,913 -24.5%
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The following statement of activities represents changes in net position for the year ended
December 31, 2012. It shows revenues by source and expenses by function for governmental

activities, business-type activities and the government as a whole.

Table A-4
County of Dauphin's
Candensed Statement of Activities

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Govermment Totai %
Change
2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
Revenues
Program Revenues .
Charges for Services $ 26,519,719 § 26,144,332 § 75276,489 $ 74,030,214 § 101,796,208 $ 100,174,546 -1.6%
Operating Grants & Cantributions 128,852,300 122,767,371 67,596 67,993 128,919,806 122,835,364 -4.7%
General Revenues
Property Taxes 98,588,435 99,828,373 - - 98,588,435 99,828,373 1.3%
Hotel Taxes 8,900,896 9,074,534 - - 8,900,896 9,074,534 2.0%
In Lieu of Taxes 1,261,808 1,800,267 - - 1,261,808 1,900,267 50.6%
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 353,772 239,826 26,286 12,582 380,058 252,408 -33.6%
GainfLoss on Asset Disposal 6,900 11,311 - 389,426 6,800 400,737 5707.8%
{Depreciation)/Appreciation in
Fair Market Value of Investments 4,339 60,535 - - 4,339 60,535 1295.1%
Swap Proceeds - 505,000 - - - 505,000 1000%
Transfers From Component Units 637,609 619,624 - - 637,602 619,624 -2.8%
Transfers In{Qut) {665,116) (802,494) 665,116 802,494 - - 0.0%
Total Revenues 264,460,662 260,348,679 76,035,487 75,302,709 340,496,149 335,651,388 =1.4%
Program Expenses
General Government 14,962,285 14,338,875 - - 14,962,285 14,338,875 -4.2%
Judicial 58,308,574 59,152,254 - - 58,308,574 59,152,254 1.4%
Public Safety 43,701,898 46,341,700 7,469,461 7,229,117 51,171,357 53,570,817 4.7%
Public Works 1,622,670 1,560,857 1,492,312 1,405,246 3,114,982 2,966,103 -4.8%
Human Services 114,333,808 108,020,146 68,097,179 67,076,128 182,430,987 175,096,274 -4.0%:
Culture & Recreation 10,566,471 10,825,016 - - 10,566,471 10,825,016 2.4%
Conservation & Development 18,143,699 13,332,389 - - 18,143,699 13,332,389 -26.5%
Interest on Long Term Debt 4,187,999 5,574,564 - - 4,187,999 5,574,564 331%
Other Programs - - 1,800,455 1,517,945 1,800,455 1,517,945  157%
Loss on Guaranteed Debt Payments - 17,139,378 - - - 17,139,378 100.0%
Total Program Expenses 265,827 402 276,285,179 78,850,407 77,228,436 344,686,809 353,513,615 2.6%
Change in Net Position {1,366,740) (15,936,500}  (2,823,920)  (1,925,727) (4,190,660)  (17,862,227) 326.2%
Net Position - Beginning 68,791,749 67,425,003 8,182,051 5,358,131 76,973,800 72,783,140 =5.4%
Net Position - Ending $ 67425009 $ 51,488,509 $ 5,358,131 $ 3432404 $ V2783140 $ 54,920,913 -24.5%
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Net Program Expenses

Net program expenses indicate the amount of support required from taxes and other general
revenues for a program of the government. In 2012, general property taxes brought in
$99,828,373. Table A-5 depicts the net program expenses for the year ended December 31,
2012.

Table A-5: 2012 Net Cost of Governmental and Business-Type Activities
Program Total Cpst of Net Cgst of
Services Services
General Government $ 14,338,875 § 8,327,290
Judicial 59,152,254 42,134,612
Public Safety 53,570,817 40,683,253
Public Works 2,966,103 627,683
Human Services 175,096,274 9,756,328
Culture & Recreation 10,825,016 8,904,948
Conservation & Development 13,332,389 (3,845,508)
Interest on Long Term Debt 5,574,564 5,574,564
Other Programs 1,517,945 201,157
Loss on Guaranteed Debt Payments 17,139,378 17,139,378
Total $ 353513615 $ 130,503,705

The County relied on property taxes and other general revenues to fund 36.9% of its
governmentai and business-type aciivities in 2012.

The property tax is based on the assessed value of real property. The County’s 2012 millage rate
of 6.876 is unchanged from 2011 and is well below the Commonwealth-set cap of 25 mills for
operating costs.

Property taxes and other general revenues covered 58.1% of general government spending in
2012. The remainder of the cost was funded by grants and fees for specific services. 71.2% of
judicial system spending came from the property tax and other general revenues with the
remainder coming from grants, fines and court costs. Property taxes and other general revenue
covered 75.9% of public safety costs with the remainder coming from grants and fees covering
room and board at the county prison.

Public Works required tax and other general revenue doilars to cover 21.2% of its expenses in
2012. This area of the County's operations inciudes the management of a parking garage; the
maintenance and replacement of county bridges; and the solid waste and recycling programs.

Program expenditures for Culture & Recreation, Interest on Long Term Debt, and Loss on
Guaranteed Debt Payments were almost 100% funded by property taxes and other general
revenues, while Human Services expenses required only 5.5% from these sources, with most of
the remainder being picked up by state and federal grants.

Conservation and Development program expenditures did not require any tax dollars in 2012.
This area of County Government includes Gaming monies from the Hollywood Casino located in
Dauphin County which have pushed total expenses much higher in recent years.
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Capital Assets

The County’s investment in capital assets at December 31, 2012, net of accumulated
depreciation, was $114,139,352 which is up over $1.9 million from 2011. Capital assets consist
primarily of land, buildings and equipment. Table A-6 is a summary of capital assets at
December 31, 2012.

Tabile A-6
County of Dauphin's
Capital Assefs

Govermmmental Activities Business-Type Activities Totai Primary Government Total %
Change

2011 2012 20N 2012 2011 2012
Contruction in Progress § 10,847,916 $ 16,804,452 3§ 11,016 § - $ 10,858,932 $ 16,304,452 55.6%
Infrastruciure - Construction-in- 53,663 96,568 - - 53,663 96,568  80.0%
Progress
Intangibles 211,827 401,838 - - 211,827 401,838 83.7%
Land 498,551 498,551 111,492 111,492 610,043 610,043 0.0%
Infrastructure 17,031,217 17,031,217 - - 17,031,217 17,031,217 0.0%
Buildings & Improvements 82,646,188 83,447 360 3,817,947 3,842,756 86,464,135 87,290,116 1.0%
Machinery & Equipment 48,857,344 49,452,488 12,466,141 10,425,093 61,323,485 59,877,581 -2.4%
Fumiture & Fixtures - - 23,220 23,220 23,220 23,220 0.0%
Leasehold Assets 12,262,498 13,011,850 15,727,900 15,727,800 27,890,398 28,739,750 2.7%
Accumulated Depreciation (67,460,383) {72,089,217) (24,897,115) (23,836,216) (92,357,498} (96,825,433} -4.8%
Total Capital Assets $ 104,948,821 $ 107.845107 $ 7,260,601 $ 6,204.245 $ 112,200.422 $ 114,139,352 1.7%

‘Construction in Progress’ (CIP) increased in 2012 as projects funded by the 2009 construction
bends neared completion. These projects include a Juvenile Judicial Center in the County's
Human Services Building; a Female Work Release Center at the site of the County's Male Work
Release Center; and a new Judicial Center at the site of the oid female work release center.

The major capital assefs in the ‘Buildings & Improvements’ section above consist of the
Courthouse, Administration Building, Probation Complex, EMA Center, County Warehouse, and
the County Prison. Smaller buildings are located at the County Park sites and the various MDJ
Cffices.

The ‘Infrastructure’ category houses the many county-owned bridges scattered throughout the
County. Dauphin County does not own any roads.

Other detailed information about the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 6, Notes to
Financial Statements.
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Debt Administration
Long Term Debt and Capital Leases:

At December 31, 2012, the County had $168,536,689 of long-term debt outstanding. This was a
decrease of $6,701,966 from the previous year. Table A-7 details activity related to the long-term

debt.
Table A-7
County of Dauphin's
2012 Statement of Long Term Debt and Capital Leases
T Beginning . . . _
ype Additions Reductions Ending Balance
Balance
Bonds & Notes Payabie $ 152,511,500 % - § (6,660,000) $ 145,851,500
Compensated Absences 8,003,695 389,959 - 8,393,654
Estimated Workers Comp. Claims 2,626,959 - (631,434) 1,895,525
Other Postemployment Benefits 2,487,970 701,746 - 3,189,716
Capital Leases 9,608,531 817,977 {1,320,214) 9,106,294

Total Long Term Debt and Capital Leases $ 175238,655 % 1,909,682 $ (8,611,648) $ 168,536,689

The amount of indebtedness a county may incur is limited by Pennsylvania law to 300 percent
(non-electoral) and 400 percent (net non-electoral and lease rental) of a three-year average of the
total revenue received, exclusive of governmental grants for a specific purpose. The County's
non-electoral debt limit at December 31, 2012 was over $1 billion, and the total non-electoral debt
outstanding was approximately $146 million, well below the debt limit.

At year-end, the County had $145,851,500 million in bonds and notes outstanding. This figure is
down from 2011 as principal continues to be retired. There were no new money issues in 2012
that would have added to the cutstanding debt,

More detailed information abeut the County's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 8 and Note
12 to the financial statements.

Bond Rating

The County’s bond rating through Standard & Poors is ‘AA Stable Qutlook’ as of December 31,
2012. The current combined net non-electoral and net lease rental debt limit is approximately
$1.3 biilion.

Governmentai Funds

The County of Dauphin uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflow, and
balances of resources available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the
County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved/undesignated fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of the County’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

The County’s governmental funds include the general fund, special revenue funds, and the
capital projects fund. The general fund is the chief operating fund for the County. Special
revenue funds are restricted to specific legislated use, while construction and other proiects
funded primarily through bond issues are run through the Capital Projects Fund. The major funds
are shown on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance in the
financial statements.
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Governmental fund revenues by source at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were as

follows. Table A-8 also presents changes from 2011 to 2012.

Table A-8
County of Dauphin's
Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds
Changes from 2011
Source 2012 2011 i0 2012

Property Taxes $ 99,745,703 $ 08,746,079 $ 999,624

Hotel Taxes 9,074,534 8,900,896 173,638
Intergovernmental 123,054,965 128,516,500 {5,461,535)
Charges for Services 20,586,292 20,900,323 (314,031)

License and Permits 111,168 79,816 31,252
Court Costs and Fines 5,117,532 5,271,488 (153,956)
Interest and Rents 320,398 427 856 {107,458)

Appreciation Fair Market Value Investments 60,535 4,339 56,196

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,861,441 1,791,516 69,925
Transfers from Component Units 619,624 637,600 {17,985)

Praceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 11,311 6,900 4,411

Capital Lease Proceeds 817,977 378,741 439,236
Bonds/Notes Proceeds - 15,655,000 {15,655,000)

Swap Proceeds 505,000 - 505,000
Net Premium on Bonds Issued - 1,081,219 (1,001,219)

Operating Transfers In 20,788,649 15,286,068 5,502,581
Total Revenues $ 282,675,129 3 297,694,450 % {15,019,321)

Governmental fund revenues totaled $282,675,129 for the year ended December 31, 2012. This

is a decrease of $15 million from the revenue total in 2011.

The ‘Intergovernmental’ revenue category continues to drop as reductions in State and Federal

funding due to budget constraints are again the main factor.

There were no bond deals transacted in 2012 which accounts for the large decrease in the
‘Bonds/Notes Proceeds’ and ‘Net Premium on Bonds Issued’ categories. This is the main cause
of the overall decrease in total revenues as well.

‘Operating Transfers In’ rose in 2012 due primarily to a transfer from the Children & Youth Fund
back to the General Fund to reconcile the County's obligation through 6/30/12. The transfer from
the Gaming Fund to the General Fund to cover the debt service payment on the EMA Radio
Project Debt, also increased by approximately $1 million.
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Governmental fund expenditures by function at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011
were as follows. Table A-9 also presents changes from 2011 to 2012.

Tabie A-9
County of Dauphin's

Expenditures by Function, Governmental Funds

. Changes from 2011
Function 2012 2011 to 2012

General Government 3 13,632,054 § 13,310,093 § 321,961

Judicial 58,345,058 57,423,430 921,628

Public Safety 43,495,804 40,787,150 2,708,654
Public Works 1,179,281 1,578,056 (398,775)
Human Services 107,793,163 113,897,014 (6,103,851)

Culture & Recreation 10,766,861 10,585,517 181,344
Conservation & Development 13,489,492 18,137,502 {4,648,010)
Debt Service Principal 7,571,138 8,607,154 (1,036,016}
Debt Service Interest 5,045,163 5,284,554 (239,391)
Capital Projects 7,331,881 7,827,806 {495,925)
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agent - 16,465,000 (16,465,000)

Operating Transfers Out 21,591,143 15,951,184 5,639,859

Loss on Guaranteed Debt Payments 17,139,378 - 17,138,378
Total Expenditures $ 307,380,416 $ 309,854,460 $ {(2,474,044)

Governmental fund expenditures totaled $307,320,418 for the year ended December 31, 2012,
This represents a decrease of approximately $2.4 million from 2011.

As noted in the preceding section on governmental funds revenue, the ‘Human Services'
category continues to drop as the Federal and State agencies cut back on their allocations to the
County.

The decrease in the ‘Conservation & Development’ section is due primarily to a timing difference
in the $3 million annual payments to East Hanover Township, the host municipality of the Penn
National Gaming facility. In 2011, both the 2010 and 2011 annual payments of the gaming
monies were made, and the 2012 payment wasn’t made until 2013.

There were no debt issues in 2012 resulting in the large reduction in this area. This was also the
main contributor to the overall reduction in total expenditures.

The cause of the large reduction in the ‘Operating Transfers Qut’ category mirrors that in the
precading section on the 'Operating Transfers In’. These two categories relate to the same
monies that are passed beftween funds.

The increase in the Loss on Guaranteed Debt Paymenis can be attributed to an Allowance on the
Incinerator that was set up as it is unlikely that the County will receive additional funds that were
paid as part of the Guarantee Agreement, outside of the principal on the debt that was incurred
by the County.
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Governmental Fund Balances

Table A-10 reflects ending balances for governmental funds and net position for proprietary funds
at December 31, 2012.

Table A-10: 2012 Ending Fund Balances, Governmental Funds; Net Position,
Proprietary Funds

Fund Gov;g:(r;:ntal Proprietary Funds
General Fund 3 70,522,108 % -
Children & Youth Fund - -
Low Income Housing Fund 842,480 -
Gaming Fund 21,394,747 -
Capital Projects Fund 5,619,700 -
Other Governmental Funds 4,894 581 -
Health Choices Fund - 42,369
Human Services Building Fund - (764,369)
QOther Enterprise Funds - 4,154,404

Total $ 103,273,715 % 3,432,404

The County’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $103,273,715 at
December 31, 2012, Of that total, $11,683,415 was unassigned in the General Fund and is
availabie to meet the County’s current and future needs. This unassigned portion is a decrease
of approximately $10.8 million from the total at the end of 2011, The Proprietary Funds are
showing a balance of $3,432,404 at year-end.

A detailed breakdown of ending fund balance for the $4,894,581 in ‘Other Governmental Funds’
and the $4,154,404 in 'Other Enterprise Funds’ can be found in the ‘Other Supplementary
Information’ section of the financial statements.

Budgetary Highlights

The County budget director revises the budget on an ongoing basis. These revisions include
common hudget tfransfers from one line item to another, and amendments to the bottom-line of
individual funds.- The line item fransfers are submitted by department directors, and if
reasonable, are entered into the system. No commissioner approval is required for these types of
budget revisions. Budget Amendments, which represent increases or decreases to the bottom-
line of an individual fund, are entered as new sources of revenue are identified or unplanned
operating expenditures become evident. New grants are a common source of budgst
amendments. The County Board of Commissioners approves these amendments on a quarterly
basis.

On December 14, 2011 the Dauphin County Commissioners approved the 2012 General Fund
Budget totaling $184,493,314. It contained a drawdown of fund balance in the amount of
$20,871,756 to meet the initial budgeted expenditures. Throughout the year, budget
amendments of $1,460,182 were approved. The budget amendments resulted in a final General
Fund budget for 2012 in the amount of $185,953,496,
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget
Economic Conditions

Unempioyment in Dauphin County now stands at approximately 7.3%. Pennsylvania's average
unemployment rate is 7.8 % and the national unemployment rate is 7.7%.

Homeownership in Dauphin County is at 65.3% with the median value of owner-occupied housing
units being $157,400. There is currently an estimated 269,665 residents within Dauphin County.
The estimated median household income is $53,771.

The County is home to many great companies such as the Hershey Company; with the
completion of a new 300,000,000 production facility in Demy Township, HE&R, Miton S.
Hershey/Penn State University Medical Center, Phoenix Development Corporation, Pinnacle
Health System, Capital Blue Cross, Tyco, Arcelor Mittal, FedEx (developing an additional
Transfer facility in Lower Swatara Township), and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Furthermore, the County houses many institutions of higher education. Penn State University
has a four-year campus in Middletown and Harrisburg University is located in the heart of
downtown Harrisburg. Harrisburg Area Community College (HACC) is also located in Harrisburg,
while Dickinson University and Widener University are located in Dauphin County. Eastern
University, Temple University, the University of Phoenix, and Albright University all maintain
campuses in the Harrisburg area, offering select undergraduate and graduate degree programs.
In addition, the Dixon University Center, also centrally located in Harrisburg, is a regional hub of
undergraduate and graduate degree program where students can earn degrees from many
statewide institutions such as Shippensburg University, Millersville University, Indiana University
of PA, Elizabethtown University, East Stroudsburg University, West Chester University, Clarion
University, and a few others.

Situated in the south-central Region of Pennsylvania, Dauphin County is strategically located
close fo major domestic and international markets. Within a 500 mile radius of the Region lies
40% of the United States population and more than 60% of Canada's population. This fact makes
Dauphin County a major distribution hub for the movement of goods. It is estimated that
approximately 61,000 freight carriers pass through the county daily and 33% of the nation’s gross
national product moves through Dauphin County.

These details have come together earning the Harrisburg-Carlisie MSA region many distinctions.
SiteSelection.com ranked Harrisburg-Carlisle #6 on it top metro areas in 2010 for new and
expanded facilities; Marketwatch.com ranked Harrisburg #9 on its Best US Cities to do business
fist (2010); Forbes ranked the area No. 5 among America's most livable cities(2010); Forbes also
ranked the area No. 2 among America's best places to raise a family.(2010); and the Sports
Business Journal named the area the #1 Minor League Sports Market (2011). These lists
consider numerous factors such as low unemployment rates, shorter commute times, plentiful
entertainment and recreation opportunities, etc.

To support these growth patterns, new economic development projects continue to evolve such
as the expansion of TecPort, The Hershey Center for Applied Research, Hollywood Casino, The
Swatara Market Place, and other ongoing developments and redevelopments of commercial
space throughout the county. There are also proposals for the continued development of the
mid-town and downtown sections of Harrisburg, including the construction of additional
retail/office space, Federal Building will be refocated in the Mid-Town area, expansion of HACC
Mid-Town campus. Advances also exist for a proposed regional rail service, Red Rose Capital
Corridor and Corridor 2 (Premium Bus Service), Middletown Inter-Model Center, and many
alternative energy projects underway, including the Dauphin County IDA additional 1 Mega Watt
Solar Farm Project bringing the Solar Farm fo 2 Mega Watts by the end of this year. The Lykens
Hotel 44 Mixed Income Rental Units Housing Development project called the Union Street
Apartments will hopefully begin construction next year sometime. The expansion of two Rail
Intermodal Centers {(one in Harrisburg and one in Swatara Township) will help serve the
expanding Creasant Corridor. Harrisburg International Airport continues to increase freight traffic



Page 18

and maintain a stable passenger flow with the additions of Frontier Airlines and Allegiant Airlines.
These developments will provide economic vitality for Dauphin County for years to come.

Next Year's Budget

On December 19, 2012, the Board of Commissioners passed a $179,840,854 General Fund
Budget for 2013 maintaining the 6.876 millage rate. A budgeted drawdown on fund balance in
the amount of $13.6 million was necessary in order to cover the initial 2013 expenditure budget.
There were 27 new positions added to the General Fund to staff the new County Judicial Center
which opened in May 2013. This facility houses the Night Court operation and serves as the
main booking center for the entire County.

The County closed its Juvenile Shelter Program effective 1/1/13. This action will save
considerable money as this service will now run through the private sector. 25 full-time positions
and several part-time ones were eliminated with the closure of this facility.

In addition to the positions in the Juvenile Shelter program, over 40 other positions were
eliminated as part of the 2013 budget process. This action reflects the angoing effort to control
personnel costs which are the largest expense in the General Fund. These eliminations will save
over $3,000,000 in 2013.

On February 26, 2013, the County paid $1,500,000 to the trustee for the Harrisburg University
2007B Bonds. This payment was required per the terms of the County’s guaranty on this issue
as the Unijversity defaulted on its March 1, 2013 debt payment. The County's guaranty is limited
to $1.5 million in any calendar year through 2019. To date, $3 million has been paid on this
guaranty.

Dauphin County paid $3.9 million toward Harrisburg Incinerator Debt from January through
August after defaults by the Authority and City so far in 2013. The County continues to honor its
obligations in this area.

In April 2013, the County settled on a $15,905,000 federally taxable General Obiigation Bond
issue that refinanced the Series C & D Notes of 2004. This action resulted in a net present value
savings of approximately $1.1 milfion.

The County has 6 labor contracts with four separate unions that represent approximately 57% of
all employees. During 2012 the County terminated a contract with the Teamsters representing 31
employees at the Schaffner Youth Center. The services at Schaffner were outsourced fo
Alternative Rehabilitation Communities (ARC) on January 1, 2013. Also in 2012 the County
negotiated a four (4) vear (2013 — 2017) confract with the Court Appointed Non-Professional
employees represented by AFSCME. The County is currently negotiating with the County
Detectives Association and the Pennsylvania Social Services Union for a successor agreement.
Both contracts expire on 12-31-2013 and should be successfuily completed by the end of the
year. The coniracts with the Court Appointed Professional employees, the Court Related Non-
Professional employees and the employees at Dauphin County Prison, all represented by the
Teamsters will not expire until December 31, 2013.

Contacting the County’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors
with a generai overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County's accountability.
Questions concerning this financial information or requests for additional information should be
directed to:

County of Dauphin

Budget & Finance Department

P.O. Box 1295

Harrisburg, PA 17108



Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Inventory
Receivables:

Agcounts, Net of Allowance

Taxes

Interest and Dividends

Program Loans

Deferred Loans
Internal Balances
Due From Other Governments
Due From Component Units
Investment in Direct Financing Leases, Current
Prepaid Expenses
Other Assets
Due From Reiated Party
Deferred Issuance Costs on Bonds, Net
Bond lssuance Costs
Bond Discount
Deferred Loss on Bonds
Defarred Interest from Refunding
Loans Receivable, Net of Current Poriion

Investment in Direct Financing Leases, Net of Current Portion

Restricted Cash
Restricted Investments
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Total Assets
Liabilities
Accocunts Pavabls
Accrued Liabilities
Unearmed Revenues
Due to Primary Government
Funds Held in Escrow
Funds Held in Fiduciary Capacity
Security Deposits
Other Liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Partion Due or payable within one year:
Cbligation Undar Capital Lease
General Obiigation Debt
Notes Payahle
Loans Payabla
Peortion Due or payable after one year:
Obligation Under Capital Lease
General Obligation Debt
Notes Payable
Loans Payable
Line of Credit
Deferred Charge on Debt Refunding, Net
Accrued Compansated Absences
Esiimated Workers' Compensation
Claims
Unfunded Other Postemployment Benefits

Total Liabilities

MNet Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Program Purposes
Debt Service
Capital Projects
Permanent Fund
Unrestricted

Tatal Net Pasition

The accompayning notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 20
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2012
Primary Govemment
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activifies Total LUnits
§ 33,899,887 $ 1,447,473 § 35,347,360 % 3.064,737
8,719,719 315,558 9,035,277 2,929,360
- - - 93,706
46,179,827 1,086,923 47,268,750 1,636,986
8,269,956 - 8,269,956 -
31,677 - 31,677 5,015
4,003,396 - 4,003,396 80,474
4,104,866 - 4,104,866 -
982,736 (982,736) - -
22,527,800 36,495 22,564,395 260,531
164,578 - 164,578 -
- - - 812,33
1,145,633 - 1,145,633 402,779
1,022,724 103,475 1,126,189 -
- - - 204,003
- - - 920,319
- - - 51,369
- - - 1,215,896
- 79,206 79,206 -
1,988,548 - 1,988,548 -
- - - 176,893
- - - 7,072,872
1,265,287 - 1,255,287 16,292,526
69,399 - 69,399 16,097,220
17,891,409 111,492 18,002,901 4,077,340
89,953,698 6,182,753 86,136,451 66,132,970
242,211,240 8,380,639 250,591,879 121,627,627
8,243,028 277,754 8,520,780 3,373,143
5,098,750 133,028 523,778 14,082,796
8,544,007 - 2,544,007 595,502
- - - 164,578
453,789 - 453,789 -
547,570 - 547,570 -
- - - 8,841
3,836,353 - 3,836,353 -
802,550 385,470 1,188,020 41,802
8,125,000 - 8,125,000 4,192,509
- - - 144,262
- - - 53,125
4,183,274 3,735,000 7,918,274 24,795
137,726,500 - 137,726,500 113,653,869
- - - 1,757,872
- - - 1,748,801
- - - 249,767
- - - (773,517)
7,976,671 416,983 8,393,654 -
1,995,525 - 1,995,525 -
3,189,716 - 3,189,716 -
180,722,731 4,948,235 195,670,966 139,318,245
(695,268) 2,252,981 1,557,713 (24,929,566)
22,154,701 - 22,154,701 18,217,503
- - - 253,400
5,619,709 - 5,619,709 -
1,001,827 - 1,001,827 -
23,407,540 1,179,423 24,586,963 {8,331,955)
3 51,488,509 § 3,432,404 & 54,920,913 § (17,790,618)




‘sjusLIa)E}s (B(oueuY Uy jo Wed [e1Bau) ue ase sajou Buuedwoase ay )

(819'062’21) § EI6'0Z6TS § POVeerE $ B0SSERLS  § Butpus « uosed 19N
{0’ LZERE) OFL'ES2'2L LEL'BGE'S 600'CeY 29 Busuiieq - vomsod jeN
azv'oes {sz2'z09'L1) (2z2'526'1) {o0s'9g6'GL) uepsod jou Ul ebueyy)
(550'06€} 001L'Z05°'56 Z05'F02' L 966262 '¥6 sIg§sLRN pue ‘swey) eads ‘sanueas. [ereuad |20
b - $6¥'208 {F6r'z08) {(mna)yuy s1eysueI]
{P20'619) - . - JUBLIWOAGE) Aelild {(ONAUDY SIejSURl
“ Z9'619 - +29'619 Jun Wweuodwa?) wWoly sJejsuell
- 000's08 - 000’605 spasInId demg
- {BLE6ELLL) - {812'681"28) sluswAe 1930 pes]UEIens) uo 550
- SES'09 - SES'03 SJUBLLYSSAUY O BRIEA JONIEW 412 Ul uoherosiddy
- LE2'0DY 9TV'BEE LIE' L |EOds(p 19SSE WAy SSO| / UES)
685'¢zT 80b'25Z z85'zL aza'sce SWOILY JUSLLISEAL] PRIOUISaIUN
- 102'006'L - 292'006'L SEXE] JO Nolj-u|
- PES'PLOE - PESPIO'E soxe) |8)oH
- £18'228'66 - £1£'922'66 sesodind [e18ush 10} peine] 'sexe; Apadaly
sexe )
sanuaasl [LiaUscy
L8F'926 860'082'92 £ TEIELLYEZ - § Z66'0LL%S £ siun ueuodiuay eI
6rE'Zay BOE'PES'E BEL COE - 151'ZEr'E uonesodios
Juswdeoleasd AIWouosg Auncy uydnee
90E'L52'T £60'028'24 16152 - +86'£82'0L Aoty eiidoeaeg [Eusnpul
(9:8'532) vE9'PLL'E 098'102 - 0BE'IVZ'0L U WeusaBeuzy ases
LONBRIEISY [RIVS/IESH [BIUSi
(888'451'2) . BEL°L00Z - 990'56'08 Aployiny [eiauen
008'799 3 $00'L6G ¢ B8TE - 4  08E'8FZ $ 10Ul UolEAIBsUS
SpUN eLadiuon
(zze'voe’ell) § (62206LE! & (96OFESOLL) & ¥OE'CER T L % argRLL'001 - $§  162'bZE'0EE 3 juaunneach Aewg jeja),
Teee o) (622'0EL'E) - ©B6'LG 712 0E0'%L 629'1.08 09'9er'eL SRUIANIE SHIIFSSeUISNG JEjoL
(zL0262'e) ZLo'262°e) - £66'49 L50'288'S SEY'PET 195'216'8 sweibold JBYIQ EIAL
[t {955'68) - E T d N 01648 18)UNE| 104 « UONERISEY PUE INENT
(5ee'se0's) {g99'560'c} - - Z9E'SEL'Y SC9'98L 292'250'L 116 Aousbiews - KimES oNand
(1og'La1) {L09'LoL} - £€66'49 1BE'002'L 0t9'28 SEE'ZEE'L PUNJ BISEM PIOS - SYISAL 21Gnd
:sweibold Jeyl
t._.“om 2L1'e8 - - TP LEE'L BG' LSS A99'2b8 Bujpng MBS VBWNH - SIOM J1Gnd
909'08 909°08 - - ¥EL'9G)'L0 6556 £45'090'29 PUNy S92104D YIESH - SROIMBS UBtUNE
SaARIe On_..ﬂ.mmm:_m_._m
(960°'vE2'0L1) - (e80't52'0L1) LLE'29L T2 2EE'PPL 0T (g20'108) OEl'L16'652 sejAoR lusluwanod jejay
(#95°pI5'S) - A5 FLES) . - - [ZER 2555 igeg we) Buoquo
safieys |eos|d puE 15018
205'St8'e - 805'6v9'E 199'260'al 810'0v8 200's¥) PIE'YEL 'S WSWADIBABE PUE UG[IEAIBSUOD
avm._gmnmu - (5v6'v0Es) 202'e8L 208'99L 186'08t BZO'PEE'0L UoNEaLISY PUE BIMIND
?mm.mmm 8) - (res'ecs's) 009'680'96 2E4'060's £bs'z00'L £09°2L4'901 $E0AIES UBtUNY
smm.m E.W - (oog'cLs) L66'9v8 - 8le'z BES'9SS') SHOM 2land
smm.hmm.ha - (BBEL35"2E) SLL'PZ0'E Aavoes's 268°249°L BYEE99'r Aisges sland
ANE..&__NE - (ZIo'ver'er) 210'882's ¥29'6LL'04 82L°195'S 9TS'PEs'es [ewipnr
(pez's2e's) 8 - $ (o6zlecd) 8 SEY'IEL % ipl'vis's (o0’ 162'01) $ GE6'E29'FE $ JUBWILIBAOE) (EJBUBE)
ISOIIATIOR EJUSILILLIBAOL)
auswBAch ey
sHun 1E301 sefjAnay SOOARSY SUORRGIIL0T SUOINGUIUGY SS0AIBT UONEI0NY ELECER SWEIDOl/SUORoUNS
Jusuoduog 2dfy [sng [0 o8 pue sjuein PUR SURID Joy sefleyn esuedxg
Wetllsaos Aewyd |eydes Supeiede JoedpUl

UOJlS04 18N U) SEBUEYD PUE enUeAsy (6SUStXg) 19N

Lg ebed

senussay weibolg

Z10Z 'Lg ¥3IWI 030 UIANT ¥y3IA IHL HOA

SFLALLOY 4O LNAWILYLS
NIHdNYQ 40 ALNNOD



‘sjusluale)ls Jejoueuy sy} jo Ued jeiBsju) ue ale sajou Buruedwonoe ey}

69%'2B9'0F1L $ 8/£'599'6 $ Le¥'ere $ g80'zes'ZZ $ OvE'IvE'V $ 082 [po'LL $ 686'/1L6°GR $ Sjessy |BjoL
66E'69 - - - - - 66560 sjusulsaaul
£82'952°) - - - - - 182'582'L ysen
_ slassy pejouisay
el1'sZL 66629 - - - 2154 - sjassyY JAYID
mmo”me_‘.p 2or't - - - - LIL'ZELL sesuadxs pledeid
8.5 %9} - - - - - 8/5'¥0L sBU uBLCdWwosy Waold ang
oom”hmm..wm 2680051 - LAL'2LG'L - 269'zes L L GeL'l96'L SJUSWILIBACE 18Y)0 WO 8ng
_.wm.wmm 2 - - - - - Loe'gga'e spund Jayo worq ang
tﬁ—m , - 866°S L0 66 - 6E9'21 SpURPAIC PUE 152.31U)|
992 F0L ¥ - - - 908 P0L ¥ - - sueoT paliaeg
96E'C00't 96€'e0g - 000‘o0L'e - - - sueo
966'602'8 - - - - - 056'692'8 18U ‘saxe]
129611 '9F 6SETLE - - £84'102 2668 19L'GPE'Sh 18U "s)UNosy
LETL EHELEY)
6Z5'0L0°01 arG'vGE'e Zle'ose YEV'O6E'Z 0i6's11L - J9Z'CBL'Y SIUBLLISBAUY
189'668'CE $ ¥2L'i00'C $ LIS'ZSL'S ¢ 6sb'eal'e $ 9ZE'vEs $ aos'z $ Gec'pes‘yl ¢ sjusieaInb3 yseo pue ysen
Spung Spiing BEEar BUImes BUBROH no,, EENED] 5955y
[BUBLILIBADE) JBIUSWLISADD) Jenden 2Woau] Mo pue UsIpiup
el 840

ZL0Z ‘1€ ¥3an3aon3aa
SANNA TYLNIANHYIAQD
133HS FONY T
¢z °bed NIHENVA 40 ALNNOD



"SJUSLIBIE}S |BIDURUY BY) jo Yed [eiBajul ue sie sejou Buliuedwoaoe ey

69 ZROOF 1 $ 8/£'6o0'6 § 12r'zIL'e $ S80'26£'2¢ S OPEIVE'Y $ 0ST'.P9°EL $ 696'116'G9
SLI'SLE'E0L 185'Y68'F 60£'619'C iv2'yee'1e 08t'zye - 861'2e5'0L
SLP'ERDLL - - - - - GLE'ee9LL
ob6'08scl - - - - - op6'985EL
1£T'9.4'82 LOE'6)9'Y 60L'619'S 1v2'vee's) 08yr'Zre - -
2hVize'er 082'642 - 000°002's - - leg'Lse'sy
vSL'80¥ LS 164'0LLF FAN R 8EL'166 008'F0L'Y 052’ 2¥9'LL 16.'S6E'SI
0/5'01LE"1 - - - - - 0£5'0LE"L
045 LS - - - - - 0/8'1¥S
68.'csh - - - - - 681'gSY
GZ9's06°L £89°0v1 - - - yB'esL’L -
98L'TLL'YL PrL'ook' - 0.9'166 998't0L'Y 696'FF3 LEL'LLE'D
8BE'GEZ'Y 992'8be - - - Z88'LGE orz'eer’s
9Z0'erE'e $ POL'SLE'L $ ZLLZEY $ 299g $ - $ 5¢'168'C % L6¥'LE6°T

Spiig spang S)oaloig ey BUEHcH TROA [EAEN T
|BJLBUWILIBAOGD [BlUBWLLIAAQD) [enden BLIOJU| MO puUe u24p(Iuo

IeioL 1By

ZLoe ‘Le ¥3gwao3aa
(GaNNILNOD) SCANNY TYINIWNEINOD
133HS FONVIVY

¢z obed NIHANYT 40 ALNNOS

Sa5UEjEg PUNH PUR SOIMIGElT [BI0L

saoueleg pund [ejo]

paubisseun
paubissy
pajouisay
a|gepusdsuoN
1§80UE[Eg pUng

sanger [eyaL

sager] PWo
Anoeden Aeonpid Ul pleH spung
MDI253 Ul P|3H spund
Spun4 Jauyio o1 eng
sanusady pansag
SaIqelT panady
a(geled Siunoooy
samqern

§aouEey pundg
pue saplliqen



COUNTY OF DAUPHIN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Total fund balances for governmenial funds

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therafore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:
Land
Intangible Assets
Construction in progress - Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Infrastructure, net of $6,689,736 accumulated depreciation
Buildings and improvemenis, net of $44,002,194 accumulated depreciation
Machinery and Tools, net of $12,699,784 accumulated depreciation
Leasehold assets, net of $9,597,503 accumulated amortization

Total capital assets

The County is self insured for the costs of worker's compensation. The
liability for workers' compensation is included in the statement of net position
in the following amount:

Some of the County's taxes will be collected after year-end, but are not
available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and
therefore are reported as deferred revenue in the funds.

Assets/Liabilities not available to pay for current period's expenditures and
therefore not reporied in the funds,

Investments in derivative instruments

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not
due and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund
liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but
rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities - both current
and long-term - are reported in the statement of net position.
Balances at December 31, 2012 are:

Accrued interest on bonds

General obiigation Debt

Less Deferred interest from refunding

Capital leases payable

Compensated absences

Deferred amount of bond issuance costs

Unamortized premiums/discounts

Unfunded Cther Postemployment Benefits

Total net position of governmental activities

Page 24
$ 103,273,715
498,551
401,838
98,568
16,894,452
10,341,481
39,445,166
36,752,704
3,414,347
107,845,107
(1,995,525)
6,168,779
(1,296,810
{863,362)
(145,851,500)
1,888,548
(4,985,824)
(7.976,671)
897,551
{2,525,783)
(3,189,716)
(162,506,757}
$ 51,488,509

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Net change in fund balances - fotal governmental funds

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capitaf outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expenss. This is the

amount by which capital outlays ($8,583,208) exceeded depreciation ($5,686,922)
and net book value of disposed fixed assets ($0) in the current periad.

Debt proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus
confribute to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net position, however,
issuing debt increases long-term liabilittes and does not affect the statement of
activities. Simitarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in the governmentai
funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net position,
Debt issued:
Capital Leases
Repayments:
General Obligation Debt
Capital Leases
Net adjustment

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not nomally paid with
expendable avatlable financial resources. In the statemaent of activitiss, howaver,
which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and liabitities are reported
regardless of when financial resourcas are available. In addition, interest on
long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
until due, rather than as it accrues. The differences for the items dicussed above are:

Compensaied absenses expense

Other postemployment benefits expense

Investment loss from derivative instruments

Amortization of debt premium/discount

Amortization of bond issuance costs

Amortization of deferred interest from refunding

Accrued interest on long-term debt '

Combined adjustment

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in governmental funds, revenues
are not reported untif they become availabie. In the statement of activities, however,
revenues are recorded regardless of when financial resources are availabia. This is
the change in uneamed real estate tax revenue fram 12/31/11 to 12/31/12.

The County is self insured for the costs of worker's compensation. The

increase in liabilify related to the worker's compensation is reported as an
increase in expenditures of the governmental activities.

Change In net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(817.977)

6,660,000
911,138

{328,079)
(701,746)
(567,508)
420,697
(150,161)
(281,238)
48,809

$

Page 26

(24,705,287)

2,896,286

6,753,161

(1,558,226)

82,670

595,896

$

(15,936,500)




COUNTY OF DAUFHIN Page 27
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
Heaith Human Other
Choices Servica Enterprise
Fund Building Funds Taotal
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 261,975 3 81,860 1,103,638 1,447,473
Investments 22,345 293,213 315,558
Accounts Receivabies - 6,271 1,080,852 1,086,923
Due from Other Governments - - 36,495 36,495
Other Assets 96 400 102,979 103,475
Total current assets 262,071 110,876 2,618,977 2,989,924
Noncurrent Assels
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated - - 111,492 111,492
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated (Neat) - 3,212,980 2,969,773 6,182,753
Deferred Loss on Bonds, Net - 79,206 - 79,206
Total noncurrent assets - 3,292,186 3,081,265 6,373,451
Total assets 262,071 3,403,082 5,608,242 9,363,375
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable 112,084 38,875 126,795 277,754
Accrued Liabilities - 33,556 99,472 133,028
Due to Other Funds 107,618 - 875,118 982,736
Obligation Under Capitai Lease - 360,000 25,470 385,470
Total current liabilities 219,702 432,431 1,126,855 1,778,988
Noncurrent liabilities:
Obligation Under Capital Lease - 3,735,000 - 3,735,000
Accrued Workers Compensation - - - -
Accrued Compensated Absences - - 416,983 416,983
Total noncumrent liabilitties - 3,735,000 416,983 4,151,883
Total liabilities 219,702 4,167 431 1,543,838 5,930,971
NET POSITION
Met Investment in Capital Assets - (802,814) 3,055,795 2,252,881
Unrestricted 42,369 38,445 1,098,609 1,179,423
Total net position b 42,369 $ (764,369) 4,154 404 3,432,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Operating Revenuss
Charges for Services

Total Operaling Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services
Contracted Sarvices
Supplies and Materials
Repairs and Maintenance
Utilities
Other Services and Charges
Claims Expense
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income {Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues {Expensas)
Interest Income

Interest Expense
Grants

Total Nonoperating Revenuas (Expens

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers
Transters In
Transfers Out
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets

Total Transfers In (Out)
Change In Net Pasition

Total Net Position - Beginning of Year

Total Met Position - End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

es)

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 28
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Health Human Other
Chuoice Sarvice Enterprise
Fund Building Funds Total

5 67,156,734 3 1,481,423 5,382,057 74,030,214
67,156,734 1,491,423 5,382,067 74,030.214

239,625 - 5,151,565 5,391,190

35,576 109,776 746,069 891,421

682 5014 37,472 43,168

- 87,757 1,633,304 1,621,061

545 161,810 418,553 580,908

32,902 557,579 437,833 1,028,314

66,766,798 - - 66,766,798

- 343,835 418,331 762,166

67,076,128 1,265,771 8,743,127 77,085,026
80,606 225,652 (3,361,070) (3.054,812)

2,496 858 9,228 12,582
- (139,475) {3,935) (143,410}

- - 67,993 67,993
2,498 {138.617) 73,286 {62,835)
83,102 87,035 (3,287,784) {3.117,647)

- - 890,323 890,323
(87.829) - - {87.829)

- - 389,426 389,426

(87.829) - 1,279,749 1,191,820
(4.727) 87,035 (2,008,035) (1,925,727)

47,096 {851,404) 6,162,439 5,358,131

$ 42,3689 $ {764,369} 4,154,404 3,432,404




Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from Heaith Choices Services
Receipls from Recyeling Services
Receipts from Recreational Activities
Receipts from Space and Parking Rentals
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers
Payments for Claims
Internal Activity - Payments {from) to other funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers In (Out)

Net Cash Provided by {Used in) Noncapital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Actlvities
Purchase of Capital Assets, Net of Disposals
Gain on the Sale of Capital Assets
Grants
Interest Paid
Principal Payments on Capital [ ease

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financtng Activities
Cash Flows from Invesling Activities

Inferest Income

Investments

Net Cash Provided by {Used in) Investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 29
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Heaith Human Other
Cholce Service Enterprise
Fund Building Funds Totals

§ 67,156,734 - $ - 67,158,734

- - 4,741,022 4,741,022

- - 48,414 48,414

- 1,488,052 - 1,488,052
(239,625) - (5,094,286} (5,333,911)
35,610 (908,820) (3,337,437} (4.210,847)
{66,766,738) - - (66,766,798)

12,3890 - 875,118 887,508
198,311 579,232 (2,767,169} (1,989,626)

{87.828) - 880,323 802,494

(87,829) - 890,323 802,494

- - 218,020 218,020

- - 389,426 389,426

- - 67,993 87,293
- {138,475} (3,935) (143,410
- {350,000} (59,076) {409,076)

- {489,475) 612428 122,953

2,496 ga8 9,228 12,582

- {19,880) 167,020 147,040

2,498 {19,122} 176,248 159,622
112,978 70,635 {1,088,170) (904,557)

148,997 11,225 2,191,B08% 2,352,030

3 261,975 81,860 3 1,103,638 1,447,473

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial statements.




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 30
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Health Human Other
Choice Service Enterprise
Fund Building Funds Totals

Reconciliation of Operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in} operating activities

Operating Income (Loss) & 80,606 $ 225,652 $ (3.361,070) §& (3,054,812)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortization Expense - 343,835 418,331 762,166
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts Receivable - (2.971) (592,621) (595,592}
Cther Assets {96) (400) (1,079) {1,575)
Accounts Payable 105,411 14,866 (163,127) (42,850)
Accrued Expenses - (1.750) (4.601) {6,351)
Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay - - 61,880 61,880
Due To/Due From Other Funds 12,390 - 875,118 887,508
Net Cash Provided by {Used In) Operating
Actlivities $ 198,311 3 579,232 $ (2,767,169) $ (1,989,626)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Investments
CDARS

U.8. Government Securities
Corporate Bonds
Common Stocks

Equity Funds

Savings, CD's and Time Deposits

Other

Total investments
Interest and Dividends Receivable
Employee Contributions Receivable

Tofal Assets
LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Benefits Payable

Funds Held in Escrow
Due To Other Governmenis

Total Lishilities

NET POSITION

Held in trust for pension benefits

The accampanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Retirement
Trust Agency
Eund Funds Totals

$ 3,429,411 7,764,515 11,193,926
70,280 604,858 675,138
26,841,310 - 26,841,310
19,895,935 - 19,895,935
43,246,788 - 43,246,788
111,785,911 - 111,785,911
5,882,835 - 5,882,835
16,365,727 - 16,365,727
224,088,786 604,858 224,693,644
345,804 - 345,804
427 - 427
$ 227,864,428 8,369,373 236,233,801
§ - 962,159 962,159
431,561 - 431,561
- 5,434,156 5,434,156
- 1,873,058 1,973,058
431,561 8,369,373 8,800,934
§ 227,432,867 - 227,432,867

Page 31



COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 32
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Retirement
Trust Fund
Addition:
Contributions:
Employee $ 4,390,799
Employer 8,493,038
Total Condributions 12,883,837
Investment Income;
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 19,946,453
Interest 1,404,470
Dividends 1,905,579
Miscellaneous Revenue 19,571
23,273,073
Less: Investment Expense 525,421
Net Investment Income 22,747,852
Total Additions 35,631,489
Deductions:
Benefits 11,931,439
Refunds of Contributions 527,092
Adminisfrafive Expenses 172,848
Total Deductions 12,631,379
Net Increase 23,000,110
Net Position - Beginning of Year 204 432 757
Net Position - End of Year $ 227 432,867

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 33
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
Dauphin County
Case Industrial Ecenomic
Conservatian General Management Development Development
sets District Authority Unit Authority Comaration Tatal
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 528,157 5 1.680.015 3 21,001 $ 811,970 3 25,504 $ 3,084,737
Invesiments 685,741 2,243,619 - - - 2,929,360
[nventory - 93,706 - - - 93,708
Receivables:
Accounts, Net of Allowance 11,280 484,696 1,116,584 13,51 835 1,636,986
Interast and Dividends 3,439 1,576 - - - 5,015
Loans - - - 80,474 - 80,474
Due from Cther Governmenls 173,224 - - - B7.307 260,631
Investment in Direct Financing Leases, Cument - 668,089 - 144,262 - 812,331
Prepaid Expanses 4,447 278,456 95,228 20,439 4,209 402,779
Due from Related Party - - - 24,519 179,484 204,003
Dbt financing costs {net of accumulated amontization) - 920,319 - - - 920,319
Bond Issuance Costs - - - 23,577 27,092 51,369
Bond Discount - 1,215,896 - - - 1,215,898
Loans Receivable, Net of Current Portion - - - 176,893 - 176,893
Investment in Direct Financing Leases, net of Current Portion - £,315,000 - 1,757,872 - 7.072,872
Resticted Cash - 3407178 - 4,601,862 3,283,798 16,292,826
Resfiricled Investments - 16,097,220 - - - 16,097,220
Capital Assets, Not Being Depraciated - 2,187,834 - 1,889,506 - 4,077,340
Capital Assets, Being Deprecialed, Net 718,974 57,480,010 221,699 6,021,583 1,600,694 66,132,970
Total Assets § 2123262 $ 92,083,582 $ 1454602 $ 20,568,548 5 5,299,623 $ 121,527,627
LEabilities
Accounts Payable $ 16,996 3 1,466,480 § 93,493 $ 1,717,905 5 78,269 3 3.373,143
Accrued Liabilittes - 13,312,877 713,869 - 56,080 14,082,796
Uneamed Revenues 31,889 558,808 4,805 - - 595,802
Due to Primary Govemment 164,578 - - - - 164,578
Security Deposits - - - 4,841 - 8,841
Long-lerm liabilities
Partion Due or payable within one year:
Capital Lease Cbligalion - 41,9062 - - - 41,802
General Ohiigation Debt - 3,962,509 - - 230,000 4,192,609
Notes Payable - - - 144,262 - 144,262
Loans Payable - - - 63,125 - 53,125
Portion Due ar payable affer one year,
Capital L.ease Obligation - 24,795 - - - 24,795
General Obligation Deht - 108,708,869 - - 3,945,000 113,653,869
Notes Payable - - - 1,757,872 - 1,757,872
Loans Payable - - - 1,748,801 - 1,748,801
Line of Credit - - 220,000 29,767 - 249,767
Deferred Charge on Debt Refunding, Net - {773,517) - - - (773,517}
Tofal Liabilities 213,463 128.302,723 1.032,167 5,460,573 4,309,319 139,318,245
Net Position
Net invastment in Capital Assets 718,974 (31,855,106) 221,699 6,109,173 (124,306) (24,929,566}
Reslricled for;
Program Purposes 461,160 2,931,184 200,736 8,251,163 3,373,260 15,217,503
Debt Sernvice - 253,400 - - - 253,400
Urrestricted 729,665 (7.548,609) - 745,630 (2,258,650} {8,331,955)
Total Net Positon § 1808798 $ (36219131 & 422,435 $ 15,105,975 3 990,304 $  (17.790,618)

Tie accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of significant accounting policies follows:

A

Reporting Entity

The County of Dauphin (the “County™) operates under the direction of an elected
Board of Commissioners, and provides the following services: general
administrative services, tax assessments and collections, judicial, public
improvements, public safety and human services programs. The County follows
the criteria promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) Statement No. 39 for purposes of determining the scope of its reporting
entity. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the financial statements of the reporting entity inciude those of
the County of Dauphin {the Primary Government) and its Component Units. The
Component Units discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity
because of the significance of their operationai or financial relationships with the
County.

Discretely Presented Component Units

In conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, the financial statements of the Component Units discussed below
have been included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented
Component Units.

Dauphin County Conservation District (“District”y: The District was

formed by the County Commissioners in 1952 pursuant to the
Conservation District Law ("Law”). The ten-member board is made up of
one County Commissioner and nine members appointed by the County
Commissioners fram a list of nominees received from organizations
approved by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The District was
formed to manage the conservation of natural resources in the County.
The Law gives the Commonwealth certain powers to supervise and
direct the operations of the District. Employees of the District are County
employees subject to the County Salary Board. The Law also gives the
County Commissioners the ability to unilaterally disband the District if
they believe a substantial portion of landowners desire such action.

The District operates and reports on a calendar year basis.

Dauphin County General Authority (“General Authority”): The General

Authority was incorporated on March 17, 1984, It was created for the
purpose of acquiring, financing, helding, constructing, improving,
maintaining and operating, owning, and leasing, either in the capacity of
lessor or lessee, projects of the kind and character contemplated by law
for a general purpose authority. The General Authority's five-member
board is appointed by the County Commissioners.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A

Reporting Entity (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority (“General Authority”) {Continued):

The County has guaranteed the General Authority Revenue Bonds
Series of 2011 (golf course debt). The proceeds were used to refund the
Series of 2005 bonds and pay the issuance costs. Series of 2005 bonds
were used to advance refund the 1993 Series Bonds which financed the
construction of the goif course operated by the General Authority. The
General Authority has agreed to pay the County 90% of the revenues net
of operating expenses and debt service earned in connection with the
goif course. The County has also guaranteed the General Authority’s
1892 Series Bonds (lease debt) related to the long-term lease of the
human services building and the General Authority’s 2009 Series Bonds,
Series C (lease debt). The County Commissioners must approve all of
the General Authority’s bond issues, but neither the County nor the
General Authority has an ongoing liability for these bond issues other
than the golf course and lease debt.

The General Authority reports on a calendar year basis.

Case Management Unit (CMU): The CMU provides case management
services to persons with mental illness and intellectual disabilities in the
County of Dauphin. CMU performs intake and evaluation for all clients
served by Dauphin County MH/ID program, plans and coordinates
services for clients with direct service providers and monitors the
progress of clients within the Dauphin County system. The MH/D
Program approves the CMU administrator and board member
appointments. The County has the ability to dissolve the CMU.
Revenues are primarily from contracts with the County.

The CMU operates on a fiscal year ending June 30.

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority ("IDA"): The IDA was
organized in 1967 as a standing authority of Dauphin County. [t
operates in compliance with the Industrial Development Authority Law,
Act No. 102, August 23, 1967.

The IDA's serves as a financing vehicle for industrial development in
Dauphin County. The IDA arranges financing through tax exempt and
taxable bonds as well as mortgages for manufacturers, non-profits and
companies establishing corporate headquarters in the County. The IDA
participates in new construction and rehabiiitation each year through its
industrial recruitment and expansion projects. The IDA aise owns
several commercial properties which it leases.

The County pays for all significant management and administrative costs
required fo operate the IDA on a day-to-day basis. IDA's management
and support staff are employees of the County. In addition the County
has the sole power to appoint members of the IDA’s Board of Directors
and guarantees the IDA’s debts.

The DA operates and reports on a fiscal year ending September 30.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A Reporting Entity (Continued)

Discretely Presented Compgnent Units (Continued)

Page 37

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (‘DCEDC"). The

DCEDC is a nonprofit organization which operates in compliance with
Section 7502 of the Nonprofit Corporation Law of 1972 and
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
The DCEDC, an economic development corporation, was established {o
partner in real estate development projects and to channel grant funding
to communities and organizations in need of community and economic
development assistance. The DCEDC also administers programs to
promote tourism and regional development.

The DCEDC is administered by the County of Dauphin through the
Dauphin County Department of Community and Economic Development.
The Commissioners of Dauphin County have the sole power to appoint
members of the DCEDC's Board of Directors. The County pays for all
significant management and administrative costs required to operate the
DCEDC on a day-to-day basis as the DCEDC’s management and
support staff are employees of the County. The County also provides

significant operating rtevenue to the DCEDC, primarily
distributions of hotel tax collections.

The DCEDC operates and reports on a calendar year end basis.

Related Organizations

through

The Board of County Commissioners is alsc responsible for appeinting the
members of the governing boards of other organizations, but the County’s

accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond

making

appointments. The County does not designate management nor does it have the
ability to significantly influence the operations of these entities. In addition, the
County does not supply any funding {either directly or as a result of special
financing relationships) and has no responsibility for fiscal matters for these
entities (i.e., not responsible for deficits or entitled to surpluses, no guarantees of

debt, etc.). These organizations include:

Authorities

Dauphin County Housing Authority
Dauphin County Redevelopment Authority
Dauphin County Hospital Authority
Dauphin County Library System

Advisory Boards

Dauphin County Parks and Recreation

Dauphin County Planning Commission

Aging Advisory Council

Child Care Advisory Committee

Mental Health/Intellectual Disabilities Advisory Board
Woodside Juvenile Detention Center Advisory Board
Drugs and Alcohol Advisory Beard

Fort Hunter Board
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

Joint Ventures

The County is a participant with other municipalities in joint ventures that provide
services to the constituents of all the participants. The County has no interest in
the equity of these crganizations and therefore they should not be included in its
financial reporting entity. Separately published audit reports of the Joint Ventures
are available for public inspection in the Controller's Office. Condensed financial
information relative to these entities is included in the notes herein:

Cumberiand, Dauphin Tri-County Regional
Name of Organization Harrisburg Transit Authority . Planning Commission

Services Provided Bus Services Regional Planning
Dauphin County Board Representation 3 of 7 Members 9 of 31 Members
Fiscal Year June 30, 2012 December 31, 2012
Current Assets $ 3,588,162 $ 874,792
Total Assets $ 33,312,024 $ 949,380
Net Position/Fund Balance $ 29,261,272 $ 492,250
Operating Revenues $ T7.075,726 $ 2,647,684
Operating Income {Loss) $ (15,488,342) $ 896,926
Net Income (Loss) § (200,424) $ 98,587
Dauphin County Contribution to Operations 3 373,397 $ -
Dauphin County Waorking Capital Advances None None

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and
the statement of activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities
of the primary government and its component units, For the most part, the effect
of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by faxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely, to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units
for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include; 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from the goods, services or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statemenis

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as a separate column in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Amounts paid fo acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the
government-wide financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure.
Proceeds of long-term debt are recorded as liabilities in the government-wide
financial statements, rather than as an other financing source. Amounts paid to
reduce long-term indebiedness of the reporting government are reported as a
reduction of the related liability rather than an expenditure.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resource measurement focus and the madified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soan enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 365 days of the end of the current fiscal period with the exception
of property taxes which must be received within 60 days of year end to be
deemed available. Expenditures generaily are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. Licenses, operating and capital grants,
and interest associated with the cumrent fiscal period are considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable only
when the cash is received by the County.

Under the current financial resources measurement focus, only current assets
and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The reported
fund baiance is considered to be a measure of "available spendabie resources”.
Governmentai funds operating statements present increases (revenues and other
financing sources} and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in
current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and
uses of “available spendable resources” during the period.

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for
governmental fund types exclude amounts represented by non-current liabilities.
Since they do not affect net current assets, such long-term amounts are not
recognized as governmental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities.
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COUNTY QOF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

{Continued)

Amounts expended to acquire capital assets are recorded as expenditures in the
year that resources were expended rather than as fund assets. The proceeds of
long-term debt are recorded as another financing source rather than a fund
liability. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims for judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

¢ The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. [t
accounts for all financial revenues of the general government, except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues of this
fund are primarily derived from real estate taxes, state and federal
grants, and fees for services. Many of the basic activities of the County
are accounted for in this fund including operation of general County
government, boards, commissions, the court systems, and health and
welfare services,

s The Children and Youth Families Fund is used to account for specific
revenue sources related to the provisions of Children and Youth that are
restricted to expenditures for those specified purposes.

¢+ The Low Income Housing Fund is used to account for specific revenues
related o improving economic development opportunities and expanding
the supply of low- and moderate-income housing. Revenues are
resfricted for those specified purposes.

+« The Gaming Fund is used t{o account for revenue received from the
operation of Hollywood Casino in East Hanover Township. These funds
are to be used at the sole discretion of the Dauphin County
Commissioners. The Gaming Advisory Committee advises the County
on the need for municipal grants for health, safety, transportation, and
other projects in the public interest generated as a result of gaming.

» The Capital Projecis Fund is used to account for financial resources to
be used for capital acquisitions and the related expenditures.

The County’s enterprise funds are proprietary funds. In the fund financial
statements, proprietary funds are presented using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recegnized when they are earned and expenses are
recognized when the related goods or services are delivered. In the fund
financial statements, proprietary funds are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities
{(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included on their
balance sheets. Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

{Continued)

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

Amounis paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the fund
financial statements, rather than reported as an expenditure. Proceeds of long-
term debt are recorded as a liability in the fund financial statements, rather than
as an other financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness
are reperted as a reduction of the related liabilities, rather than an expense.

The County reports the following major proprietary funds:

o Health Choices Fund accounts for the fiscal activities of the County
Behavioral Health Program.

e Human Services Building Fund accounts for the fiscal activities of the
County’s Human Services Building.

These proprietary funds are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises — where the intent of the governing body is
that costs of providing services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges and cost
reimbursement plans.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

» The Pension Trust Fund accounis for the revenue (i.e. member
contributions, County contributions, and net investment income) and the
expenses (i.e. contributions refunded, retirement allowances and death
benefits paid) of the Pension Trust Fund.

+ The Agency Funds that consist of restricted revenues of the various row
offices of the County. The row office funds, in essence are escrow funds
maintained by the row offices for bail posted, funds held for sheriff sales,
realty fransfer taxes held and owed to other governmental entities and
other funds received for disposition of legal action.

Assets Liabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balances

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows, the County
considers alt highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balances (Continued)
2. Receivables and Payables

F.

3.

+ Interfund Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
"due to/from other funds." Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." All
receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.

investments
Investments for the County are reported at fair value.

Restricted Assets

Restricted Asseis represent revenues set-aside for liquidation of specific
obligations, as detailed in Note 4.

Capital Assets

Capital Assets, which include property, plant and equipment and
infrastructure assets (e.g. bridges) are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets with initial, individual costs that equal or
exceed $5,000 and estimated useful lives of over one year are recorded as
capital assets. Capitai assets are recorded at historical costs or estimated
costs if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of
the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Depreciaticn is not recognized for intangible (eg. Easements) assets since
they have an indefinite life.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects
are completed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of the capital
asset of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of
the assets constructed.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balances (Continued)

5. Capital Assets {continued)

8.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated usefui lives:

Asset Years
Buildings and Improvements 40
Machinery and Equipment 3-20
Infrastructure 40
Leasehold Assets 5-20

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable have been reported net of allowance for doubtful
accounts.,

Compensated Absences

County policy permits employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned,
but unused, vacation and sick leave. These benefits are payable to
employees upon separation of services. All leave pay is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A
liability for these amounts is recorded. The computed liability is in
compliance with GASB 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over
the life of the bonds using the straighi-line method. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized qver the term of the related
debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current
period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounis on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F.

Assets, 1iabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balances {Continued)

Q.

10.

1.

Unearned and Deferred Revenues

Revenues that are received but not earned are deferred in the government-
wide and enterprise fund financial statements. In the County's governmental
funds, deferred revenues arise when potential revenue does not mest both
the “measurable” and "availabie” criteria for recognition in the current period.
Deferred and unearned revenues also arise when resources are received by
the government before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies
are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent
periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the County
has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is
removed from the governmental funds’ balance sheet and revenue is
recognized. The County deems revenues received within 365 days of year
end to be available with the exception of property taxes, which must be
raceived within 60 days of year end to be deemed available.

Interfund Transactions

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or
expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for
expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to
another fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund
and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed.
All other interfund transactions except quasi-external transactions and
reimbursements are reported as fransfers.

Net Position/Fund Balances

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on
classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent
to which the County is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes
for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The
classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as
follows:

s Nonspendable Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts
that cannot be spent because they are either {(a) not in spendable
form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact,

* Restricted Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts for
which consfraints have been placed on the use of the resources
either {a) exfernally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt
covenant), grantors, confributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.
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F.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balances (Continued)

11. Net Position/Fund Balances (Continued)

Committed Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that
can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the Board of Commissioners. These
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of
Commissioners remove or change the specific use by taking the
same type of action (resolution) that was employed when the funds
were initially committed.

Assigned Fund Balance — This classification includes amounts that
are constrained by the County's intent to be used for a specific
purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. The Board of
Commissioners delegated the responsibility to approvefor remove
assigned fund balance that reflect the Commissioner’s intended use
of the resources to the Budget Director.

Unassigned Fund Balance — This classification represents amounts
that are available for any purpose.

In circumstances where an expenditure is to be made for a purnose for which
amounts are available in multipie fund balance classifications, the order in
which resources will be expended is as follows: restricted fund balance,
followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly
unassigned fund balance.

The government-wide and business-type activities fund financial statements
utiize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as net
investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

Net Investment in Capital Assefs — This category groups all capital
assets, including infrastructure, into one camponent of net position.
Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of
other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position of
the County, not restricted for any project or other purpose.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position are available, the County's policy is to apply
restricted net position first, then unrestricted net position as they are needed.
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F.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Fund Balances (Continued)

12. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.
The government did not have an item that qualifies for reporting in this
category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government did not
have an item that qualifies for reporting in this category.

13. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

G. Adoption of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statemenis

The County adopted the remaining provisions of GASB Issued Statement No. 57,
*OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple Employer Plans” and
the provisions of GASB Issued Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements™, GASB tssued Statement No. 62,
“Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre —
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements”, GASB Issued Statement
No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Posifion”, and GASB Issued Statement No. 84, “Derivative
Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions — an
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 53"

The adoption of GASB 63 resulted in the renaming of the residual measure of all
other elements presented in a statement of financial position as “net position”, rather
than “net assets®. The adoption of the other statements had no effect on previously
reported amounts.

Pending Changes in Accounting Principles

In November 2010, the GASB Issued Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting
Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34°. The
County is required to adopt statement No. 61 for its calendar year 2013 financial
statements.
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H. Pending Changes in Accounting Principles {Continued)

In March of 2012, the GASB Issued Statement No. 65, “ftems Previously Reported
As Assets and Liabifities”. The County is required to adopt statement No. 65 for its
calendar year 2013 financial statements.

In March of 2012, the GASB Issued Statement No. 66, “Technical Corrections — 2012
- an amendment of GASB Statement Neo, 10 and No. 62", The County is required io
adopt statement No. 66 for its calendar year 2013 financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASBE issued Statement No. 67, “Financial Reporting for Pension
Plans — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25”. The County is required to adopt
statement No. 67 for its calendar year 2014 financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Stafement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27”. The County is
required to adopt statement No. 68 for its calendar year 2015 financial statements.

In January 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 69, “"Government Combinations
and Disposals of Government Operations”. The County is required to adopt
statement No. 69 for its calendar year 2014 financial statements.

In April 2013 the GASB issued Statement No. 70, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees”. The County is required to adopt
Statement No. 70 for its calendar year 2014.

The County has not yet completed the various analysis required to estimate the
financial statement impact of these new pronouncements.

. Compenent Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Dauphin County Conservation District
Basis of Accounting
The financial statements of the District are presented on the

accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost. Depreciation is being
provided on a straight line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets.
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Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority

Basis of Agcounting

The General Authority financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus. This means that
all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent)
associated with their activities are included on their balance
sheet. Net position is segregated into “net investment in capital
assets”, ‘restricted” and ‘“unrestricted” components. The
financial statemenis are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Conduit Debt Issues

The General Authority participates in various bond issues for
which it has limited liability. Acting solely in an agency capacity,
the General Authority serves as a financing conduit, bringing the
ultimate borrower and the ultimate lender together for which it
receives an administrative fee. Although the General Authority is
a party to the Trust indenture with the trustee, the agreements
are structured such that there is no recourse against the General
Authority in the case of default. As such, the corresponding debt
is not reflected on the General Authority's balance sheet.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the General
Authority considers all highly liquid investments of a maturity of
three months or less when purchased o be cash equivalents.
[nvestments

Investments are stated at fair value.

Direct Financing Lease Transactions

The General Authority accounts for its leases with various
agencies as direct financing leases.
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Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital Assets are recorded at cost. The General Authority
provides for depreciation and amortization over the estimated
useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method. Upon
sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation
or amortization of such assets are removed from the accounts
and any resulting gain or loss is credited or charged fo income
for the period. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged to income as incurred. Capital assets are defined by
the General Authority as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out method. Inveniory consists of
consumable supplies used for operations and maintenance and
also represents items for sale. Inventory is expensed when the
items ara used or sold.

Debt Financing Costs

Debt financing costs, representing issuance costs for the
outstanding bonds, net of reimbursement, are amortized over the
outstanding terms of the bonds using the effective interest
method.

Bond Discount

Bond discounts, representing the underwriters’ discount on
bonds issued and/or the discount for bonds issued at less than
par value, are amortized over the outstanding terms of the bonds
using the effective interest method.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent cash and investments maintained in
accordance with bond resolutions, loan agreements, grant
awards and other resolutions and formal actions of the General
Authority or by agreement for the purpose of funding certain debt
service payments, depreciation and contingency activities.
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Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Dauphin County Generai Authority (Continued)

Net Position

Net Position is classified in the following three components: Net
investment in capital assets; restricted and unrestricted net
position. Net investment in capital assets, consists of all capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
outstanding debt that Is affributable to the acquisition,
construction and improvement of those assets; debt related to
unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments is
excluded from the determination. Restricted consists of net
position for which constraints are placed thereon by external
parties, such as lenders, grantors, contributors, laws, regulations
and enabling legislation, including self-imposed legal mandates,
less any related ligbilities. Unrestricted consists of all other net
position which is not restricted for any project or other purpose.

For the time period that the revenue bonds are outstanding and
the trust indenture is in effect in each fund, the net position of the
fund are presented as restricted for fund operations.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated
directly from primary activities. For the General Authority, these
revenues are charges for services, investment income and
miscellaneous revenues. Operating expenses are necessary
costs incurred to provide the goods or services that are the
primary activity of the General Authority.

Case Management Unit

Basis of Presentation

The Case Management Unit's financial statements are presented
on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from County program funded contracts is recognized
as reimbursable costs are incurred as established by regulations
promufgated by the Pennsylvania Department of Public Welfare,
Reimbursable costs are reduced by other program income
including third-party reimbursements, private payments, and
interest income.
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Comgonent Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Case Management Unit (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Net patient service revenue consists of Healthcholces, medical
assistance and client fees. These revenues are reported at the
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party
payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with
third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered
and are adjusted in fufure pericds as final settlements are
determined.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management fo make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

Capital Assets

Capital assets of Case Management Unit include furniture and
equipment and leasehold improvements and are reported in the
financial statements at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $1,500 and an estimated useful life in excess
of 3 years.

The cosis of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to
the value of the assets or materially extend assets lives are not
capitalized.

Capital assets of Case Management Unit are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Furniture and Equipment 310
Leasehold improvements 10

Income Taxes

The Case Management Unit has been recognized as a not-for-
profit corporation which is exempt from federal income taxes
under Section 501(c} (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and aiso
from state income taxes.
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Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Case Management Unit (Continued)

Compensated Absences

The Case Management Unit policy permits employees to
accumulate a limited amount of earned, but unused vacation and
sick leave. These benefits are payable to employees upon
separation of services. All leave pay is accrued when incurred in
the financial statements. A liability for these amounts is
recorded. The computed liability is in compliance with GASB 18,
Accounting for Compensated Absences.

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™)

Basis of Accounting

The Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority
operations are reported as a proprietary fund. This fund is used
to account for activities which are associated with the financing
of industrial development projects in the County of Dauphin. The
financial statements are reported using the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing
of the related cash flows.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The IDA considers all highly-liquid debt instruments purchased
with a malurity of three months or less to be cash equivaients.
Cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2012 consist of
cash held in bank accounts.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent cash balances from gaming
revenues which are restricted for the purpose of providing
municipal grants. Restricted assets also consist of cash related
to the revolving loan program which is restricted for the purpose
of providing loans to businesses as well as security deposits for
the property management fund. At September 30, 2012, the
restricted cash balance was $9,601,852.
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Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Confinued)
Dauphin County |ndustrial Development Authority (“IDA™ (Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital Assets which include office equipment and furnishings
and buildings and building improvements, are recorded at
original cost at the time title reverts to the IDA and said assets
are in operating condition. The IDA records all capital outlays as
capital assets. Capital assels are depreciated using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful
lives for office equipment furnishings range from three o seven
years. The estimated useful life for buildings and building
improvements are forty years and fifteen years, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management fo make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the reporied
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Significant estimates and assumptions in the [DA’s financial
statements related to the collectability of loans and other
receivables and the useful lives of fixed assets. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other obligations are reported as noncurrent
liabilities. Bond issuance costs in connection with issuing debt
are a deferred charge and amortized to expense over the life of
the bonds.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to
hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are
reported at outstanding principal. Account balances generally
are written off when management judges such balances
uncollectible, such as an account in bankrupicy. Management
continually monitors and reviews loan receivable halances.
Interest at rates ranging from 3-5% is charged on unpaid
balances and is recognized in revenue upon receipt. The IDA’s
management evaluates the risk and, when determined fo be
necessary, provides an allowance for loans which may become
uncollectible. Loans receivable are shown net of an allowance of
$70,939 at September 30, 2012,
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Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA") (Continued)

Direct Financing Lease Transactions

The IDA accounts for its leases with the County of Dauphin as
direct financing leases in accordance with FASB No. 13.

Debt Related Costs

Debt related costs include issuance costs that have been
capitalized and are amortized to interest expense using the
straight-line method over the term of the associated debt.

Net Position

Net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets,
restricted and unrestricted.

a. Net Investment in Capital Assets — This category groups all
capital assets into one component of net position.
Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assels reduce the balance in this
category.

b. Restricted Net Position — This category represents net
position of the Authority that are restricted for project or other
purposes.

c. Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net
position of the Authority, not restricted for any project or
other purpose.

Bauphin County Economic Development Corporation (“DCEDC™

Basis of Accounting

DCEDC's financial statements are presented on the accrual
basis of acceunting in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Revenues
are recognized when the refated goods or services are delivered.
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l.  Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Dauphin _County Economic _Development Corporation  (“DCEDC™}
(Continued)

Cash

DCEDC considers all highly-liquid debt instruments purchased
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent cash balances from hotel tax and
grant program disfributions received from Dauphin County.
These distributions are restricted for the purpose of promoting
fourism and regional development and for the CDBG, Home and
Section 108 programs. At December 31, 2012 the restricted
cash balance was $3,283,798.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at their original cost and are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Assets with an initial, individual cost that equal or exceed
$5,000 and estimated useful lives of over one year are recorded
as capital assets and depreciated. Estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Equipment and Furnishings 3-7 years

Buildings 39 years
Works of Art 7 years
Net Position

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net
position is categorized as net investment in capital assets,
restricted and unrestricted.

a. Nef Investment in Capifal Assefs — This category groups all
capital assets into one component of net position.
Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of
debt that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this
category.

b. Restricted Net Position — This categary represents the net
position of the DCEDC that are restricted for project or other
purposes.

c. Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net
position of the DCEDC, not resiricted for any project or other
purpose.
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Component Units - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Dauphin _County Econemic Development Corporation  (*DCEDC™)
(Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Accordingly, actual
resuits could differ from those amounts.

Income Taxes

DCEDC is tax exempt from federal income tax under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and files Form 990,
Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax with the
Intetnal Revenue Service. Certain revenue deemed to be
unrelated to a nonprofit corporation’s tax-exempt purpase could
be subject to federal income taxes, however management
believes that there is no tax liability as of December 31, 2012,

BUDGETARY DATA

County Budget Process

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for the General
Fund, Certain Special Revenue Funds, and Capitai Project Funds of the County. Annuai
operating budgets are adopted each year through the passage of an annual budget
ordinance and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
are used to complete the budget. The County of Dauphin follows these procedures in
establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

0

(2)

(3}

(4)

During July and August, the department heads are supplied with current financial
status reports for their programs which they are to use as a basis or guide for
financial projections for the ensuing year. These proposed budgets are then
submitted to the County Commissioners for review.

During September, the Finance Department interviews each department head to
discuss their budgets as submitted and allow them to substantiate projected
expenditures and recommends an expenditure amount.

The County Commissioners then interview each department head to discuss
their budgets as submitted and allow them to substantiate projected
expenditures.

Upon consolidation of the department and agency expenditure projections, the
County Commissioners must ascertain the most viable method of financing them.
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County Budget Process (Continued)

(5) Subsequently, the Director of Budget assembles the preliminary projections of
revenues and expenditures into a final budget incorporating any revisions or
adjustments resulting from the aforementioned County Commissicners’ review.

(6) By early December, the final budget is presented to the County Commissioners.
Pursuant to budgetary requirements, as set forth in the County Code, public
notice is given that the proposed budget is available for inspection for a period of
20 days.

{7) After the 20-day inspection period but no later than December 31, the County
Commissioners adopt the final budget by enacting an appropriate ordinance.

(8) As required by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania County Code, the proposed
budget is made available for public inspection for at least 20 days prior to the
date of adoption, with adoption required by December 31. Subsequent fo the
budget approval, the County Commissioners adopt the appropriation measures
required to put the budget into effect and fix the rate of taxation. Within 15 days
subsequent to the legal adoption of the budget, the County Commissioners file a
copy of the budget with the Department of Community and Economic
Development of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

Legal Reguirements

An annual budget is required to be legally adopted for the General Fund since real estate
taxes are levied to finance its operations. Although not legally required, the County also
adopts annual budgets for its Capital Projects Fund, and certain additional Special
Revenue Funds (the Domestic Relations and Liquid Fuels Fund). Budgetary data is
presented on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America for all funds that adopt annual budgets.

Level of Control

The County is legally required to maintain budgetary controls at the major function level.
In practice, the County maintains budgetary control at the fund level.

Lapsing of Appropriations

Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.

Management Amendment Authority

During the course of the year, departmental needs may change, emergencies may occur,
or additional revenue sources may arise. As a result, funds are occasionally transferred
between line items of a department's budget or additional revenue may need to be
budgeted for a specific project or grant. Adjustments to the budget are made on a line
item basis during the year and are approved by the County Commissioners.

Financial analysis is provided monthly to management showing spending levels in
comparisen to the current budget. The budget is also reviewed by management with
operating departments.
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The County's investments at December 31, 2012 were as follows:

Governmental Funds

CDARS $ 9,084,101
Fort Hunter Permanent Fund
Fixed Income Mutual Funds - Bonds 502,781
Fixed Income Mutual Funds - Stocks 499,046
Total Permanent Fund 1,001,827
Total Governmental Funds 10,085,928
Investment Derivatives {1,298,810)
Total Governmental Activities 8,789,118
Enterprise Funds
CDARS 315,558
Total Enterprise Funds 315,558
Fiduciary Funds
Retirement Fund
CDARS 70,280
U.S5. Govermment Securities 26,841,310
Corporate Bonds 19,895,935
Common Stocks 43,246,788
Equity Funds 111,785,911
Savings, CD's and Time Deposits 5,882,835
Other 16,365,727
Total Retirement Fund 224,088,786
Agency Fund
CDARS 604,858
Total Fiduciary Funds 224,693,644
Tofal Investments $ 233,798,320

As of December 31, 2012, the County had the following debt investments and maturities
within its excess operating fund accounts:

investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Fixed Income Mutual Fund - Bonds $ 502,781 3 502,781 $ - 5 - $ -
Investment Derivatives (1,296,810} - - (484,699) (812,111)
Total $ (794,029) 5 502,781 $ - $ (484,699) $  (B812,111)

The terms and fair values of the investment derivatives are described in Note 10.
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As of December 31, 2012, the County had the following debt investments and maturities
within its retirement plan accounts:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 8-10 Than 10
(1.S. Government Treasuries $ 22475494 § 2,803,714 $ 13814862 & 5248910 % 508,008
U.S. Government Agencies 4,365,816 214,170 2,949,389 - 1,202,257
Corporate Bonds 19,895,935 442 480 10,458,209 6,194,492 2,800,754
Total $ 46,737245 % 3,560,364 $ 27,222,460 § 11,443,402 $ 4,511,019

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from
rising Interest rates, the County's Operating Funds Investment Policy states that
maturities shall be set to generally match the projected cash flow requirements for the
County as determined by the County Controller.

The County’s Retirement Plan Investment Policy Statement (“Retirement Investment
Policy”) states that emphasis shall be placed on providing adequate and timely
investment cash flow to permit benefit paymenis from the Retiremeni Plan when due.
The average effective duration of domestic intermediate fixed income securities shaft be
no more than 25 percent greater or less than the effective duration Barclays Bond Index.

The County is invested in two forward-starting fixed payor swaps with notional amounts
totaling $34,735,000. At December 31, 2012, the swaps had a total fair value of
{$1,296,310). See Note 10 for more detail on the terms of each swap.

Credit Risk. The County's Operating Investment Policy limits investments to direct
obligations of the United States Government or its agencies or instrumentalities; other
obligations that are either insured or guaranteed by the United States Government;
deposits with banks within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania properly insured in
accordance with the requirements of the County Code or properly collateralized in
accordance with the County Code and Act 72 of 1971 P.S. Section 3836-1, et seq.; or
investments with the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (“PLGIT").

As of December 31, 2012, the County’s operating investments had a credit rating as

follows:
Cradit Quality Percent of
Investment Type Rafing Investment Typa
Fixed Income Mutual Funds Us Government 69%
Fixed Income Mutual Funds Aaa 4%
Fixed Income Mutual Funds Aa 4%
Fixed Income Mutual Funds A 12%

Fixed Income Mutual Funds Baa 11%
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DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK (CONTINUED)

The County’s Retirement Investment Policy limits the average quality of fixed income
securities to a minimum of “A2” or better, the third broad investment grade as determined
by Moody’s. The minimum quality of any single fixed income investment shall be
investment grade, as defined by two out of three of the following rating agencies;
Moody's, Standard and Poors, or Fitch. If an investment is made in commercial paper,
the single standard shall be “A1", "P1", or “Prime”.

Credit Quatlity Parcent of
Investment Type Rating Investment Type
U.S. Govermment Agencies Aaa 97%
U.S. Government Agencies Not Rated 3%
Corporate Bonds Aat 2%
Corporate Bonds Aa2 8%
Corporate Bonds Aa3 7%
Corporate Bands Al 17%
Corporate Bonds A2 19%
Corporate Bonds Al 13%
Corporate Bonds Baat 9%
Corporate Bonds Baa2 14%
Corporate Bonds Baa3 3%
Corporate Bonds Not Rated 8%

Custodial Credit Risk. For deposits and investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that
in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the County will not be able to recover the
value of iis investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. At December 31, 2012, $45,867,044 of the County's deposiis were exposed to
cusiodial credit risk, as they are collateralized with securities held by the pledging
financial institution and uninsured. None of the County's retirement investments were
exposed to custodial credit risk at December 31, 2012.

Conceniration of Credit Risk. The County's Operating Investment Policy does not allow a
single issuer or guarantor to represent more than 10% of the total value of holdings at the
time of acquisition.

The County's Retirement Investment Policy limits single investments in U.S. Treasury
securities and zerc coupon securities to 30% and 10%, respectively, of the domestic
intermediate fixed income investments at market value. Agency securities are limited to
50% of fixed income investments at market value, 25% per agency and to 10% per any
single issue. Other types of securities are limited to 5% for each single security.

At December 31, 2012, the County is not subject to concentration of credit risk.
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NOTE 3: DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK {(CONTINUED)

Component Units — Deposit and Investment Risk

Dauphin County Conservation District

Deposits and Investments

Custodial credit risk. For Deposits and investments custodial credit risk is the
risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Conservation District will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party.

As of December 31, 2012, the Conservation District's cash balance was
$425,485, and its bank balance was $433,976. Of this bank balance, $183,976
was exposed to custodial credit risk, as it was collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution and uninsured. The District's cash
equivalents of $100,672 were not subject to custodial credit risk, as they were
invested in a state investment pool.

[n addition, at December 31, 2012, the Caonservation District held $685,741
certificates of deposit which are classified as investments on the financial
statements. Of the investments balance, $262,824 are in fixed interest rate
certificates of deposit which are subject to FDIC coverage, and therefore $12,824
was exposed to custodial credit risk, as it was collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution and uninsured.

As of December 31, 2012, the District had the following debt investments and
maturities that are classified as cash equivalents:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Invesiment Type Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 6-10 More Than 10

State Investment Pool $ 100,672 $ 100,672 $ - § - 5 -

Interest rate risk. The District's Investment Policy does not limit investment
maturities as a means of managing their exposure to fair value losses arising
from increasing interest rates.

Credit risk. As of December 31, 2012 all of the District's investments in the state
investment pool were rated AAA by Standard and Poors.

Pauphin County General Authority

Deposits and Investments

Cash and investments are held by trustees, pursuant to provisions of various
Trust Indentures, except for the Administrative Fund cash account and the
Dauphin Highlands Golf Course cash account, which are administered by the
General Authority’s Executive Director.
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Component Units — Deposit and Investment Risk (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)
Deposits and Investments (Continued)

The Municipality Authorities Act provides for investment of governmental funds
into certain authorized investment types, including U.S. Treasury bills, other
short-term U.S. and Pennsylvania government obligations or their agencies or
instrumentalities and insured or collateralized time deposits and certificates of
deposit. The Act does not prescribe regulations relating to demand deposits.

Deposiis

Custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The General
Authority does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At December
31, 2012, the book balance of the Authority’s unrestricted deposits was
$1,680,015 and the bank balance was $1,6862,212. Of the unrestricted bank
balance, $1,000,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and $662,212
was collateralized under Act 72 of the 1971 session of the Pennsylvania General
Assembly for the protection of pubiic depositors. At December 31, 2012, the
book balance of the Authority’s restricted deposits was $3,407,176 and the bank
balance was $3,410,831. Of the restricted bank balance, $304,646 was covered
by federal depository insurance, and $3,106,185 was collateralized under Act 72.

[nvestments

Total General Authority investments reported on the balance sheet at December
31, 2012 are as follows:

Fair Value
Unrestricted
Money market funds $ 2,241,791
U.S. government obligations 1,828
$ 2,243,619
Restricted
Money market funds $ 11,495,200
U.S. Government agency obligations 4,602,020
$ 16,097,220

Concentration of credif risk. The Authority places no limit on the amount the
Authority may invest in any one issuer. More than 5 percent of the Authority’s
Investmenis were held with the following issue:

Percent of
Fair Value Investment

Federat National Mortgage Association $ 4,602,020 25.00%
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Component Units — Deposit and Investment Risk {Continued)
Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

investments (Continued)

Credit Risk. The Authority does not have a formal policy that would limit
investment choices with regard to credit risk. The Authority’s investments had
the following level of exposure to credit risk as of December 31, 2012:

Fair Value Rating

Unrestricted
Money market funds 5 2,241,791 AAAM
U.8. government obligations 1.828 AA+
Restricted
Maney market funds % 11,495,200 AAAM
U.3. Government agency obiigations 4,602,020 AA+

Intersst rate risk. The Authority does not have a formal policy that limits
investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair vaiue iosses
arising from increasing interest rates. The following is a list of the Authority's
money markef and fixed income investments and their related average

maturities:
Investment Maturities (in Years)
Fair Lass Greater
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-5 8-10 Than 10
Unrestricted
Money market funds § 2,241,791 F 2,241,791 $ - 3 - $ -
U.S. Government
obligations 1,828 - - 1,828 -
$ 2243619 § 2,241,791 $ - 3 1,828 3 -
Restricted
Money market funds § 11,495,200 $ 11,495,200 $ - $ - %
U.5. Government agency
obligations 4,602,020 4,602,020 - - -
§ 16,097,220 $ 16,097,220 $ - $ - $ -

Case Management Unit

Cash Concenirations

Custodial Credit Risk — For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, CMU will not be able to recover the value
of its deposits that are in the possession of an outside party. As of June 30,
2012, CMU's cash balance was $21,091 and its bank balance was $46,500. Of
the bank balance for June 30, 2012, none of the CMU’s deposits were exposed
to custodial credit risk.
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DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK (CONTINUED)

Component Units — Deposit and Investment Risk (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority {(IDA™

Deposits

Cusfodial credit risk. For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of failure of the counterparty, the IDA will not be able to recover the value
of its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. At September 30, 2012, $9,973,031 of the IDA’s deposits were exposed to
custodial credit risk as they were uninsured, and are held by the counterparty's
trust department or agent but not in the IDA's name. The IDA does not have a
formal policy to limit its exposure to custodial credit risk.

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation ("DCEDC")
Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk. For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of failure of the counterparty, the DCEDC will not be abie to recover the
value of its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. At December 31, 2012, 2,482,620 of the DCEDC's bank deposits
were exposed to custodial credit risk as they were uninsured, and are held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the DCEDC's name. The
DCEDC does not have a formal policy to limit its exposure to custodial credit risk.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Assets whose use is |limited to a specific purpose have been classified as "restricted” in
the balance sheet. Restricted assets are composed of the following:

Cash,
Investments and
Accrued [nterest

Governmental Funds
General Fund
Amounts held in escrow for purposes

including tax protest ordered liabilities $ 453,789

Amounts held in fiduciary capacity

Disfrict Attorney's Office 547,570

Amounts Reserved for Workers'

Compensation Liabilities 323,327
Total General Fund 1,324,686

Total Governmental Funds $ 1,324,686
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to risk of loss related to self-insurance activities for workers'’
compensation. The County records the liability for the risk associated with the workers’
compensation. The County has excess workers' compensation insurance with a self-
insured retention per occurrence of $800,000, and a maximum indemnity per occurrence
of $1,000,000.

As required by the Pennsyivania Department of Labor and Industry, the County has
established a trust amount for workers’ compensation. The cash balance at
December 31, 2012, was $323,327 and is included in the restricted cash/investments
amount in the General Fund. The purpose of the account is to provide a source of funds
for claimants entitled to benefits under Article Il Section 305 of the Pennsylvania
Workers' Compensation Act in case the County could not pay claims.

The County maintains workers’ compensation reserves for claims incurred and claims
incurred but not reported on the funds to which, per the County’s estimate, they apply.
Independent of these reserves, the County maintains a $120,000 deposit with a third-
party administrator to facilitate claim processing. This amount is recarded in the General
Fund.

The accrued liability for workers' compensation claims is determined by an actuary in
accordance with actuarial principles; such claims are discounted at 3.5% for workers’
compensation. Accrued workers' compensation self-insurance liabilities at December 31,
2012, are summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities

$ 1,995,525

The following summary provides aggregate information on seif-insurance liabilities,
incurred claims, and payments during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

2012
Incurred Claims
January 1, 2012, and Changes in December 31, 2012,
Liability Estimate Payments Liability
$2.626,959 $(524,933) $(106.501) $1.905,525
2011
Incurred Claims
January 1, 2011, and Changes in December 31, 2011,
Liability Estimate Paymenis Liability
407,200 $440 662 $(220,903) $2.626,959

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the
prior year and the amount of settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage for each
of the past three years.
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Component Units — Risk Management

Case Management Unit

CMU has elected to self-insure itself for medical insurance for certain employees.
CMU s liable for all claims up to an aggregate of $1,571,645 or $85,000 per
individual for any one plan year. Once the deductible has been met, all future
stop loss reimbursements for that contract year are payable. CMU purchased
stop loss insurance to cover all claims incurred in excess of these deductible
points. As of June 30, 2012, CMU has recorded a liability for claims incurred.
No seftlements exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three years.
The claims liability is included in accrued expenses on the financial statements.

Balance as of June 30, 2011 3 109,212

Add: Incurred claims reiating to:
Current year 1,821,988
1,931,200

Less: Payment of claims relating to:

Prior years 109,212
Current vear 1,668,512
1,777,724

Balance as of June 30, 2012 b 153,476

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA”)

The IDA is exposed fo various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters. Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance. There
were no significant reductions in insurance coverages during 2012. Settlement
amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three
prior years.



MNOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activiiy for the year snded December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Primary Government

Govemmental Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Intangible Assets
Construction in Progress - Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depraciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Infrastructure
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Leasehold Assets

Tota! Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization For:

Infrastructure

Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Leassehold Assets

Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activitfes:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land
Construction in Prograss

Total Capital Asseis, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Furniture and Fixtures
Leasehold Assets

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization For:
Buildings and Improvemenis
Machinery and Equipment
Fumniture and Fixtures
Leasshold Assels

Tofal Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

Total Capital Assets, Baing Depreciated, Net

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreages Balance

498,551 § - 5 - $ 498,551
211,827 190,011 - 401,838

53,663 42,905 - 96,568
10,847,916 5,847,708 (801,172) 16,884,452
11,611,957 7.080,624 {801,172} 17,861,400
17,031,217 - - 17,031,217
82,646,188 801,172 - 83,447,360
48,857,344 684,606 (89,462) 49,452,488
12,262,498 817,978 {68,626} 13,011,850
160,797,247 2,303,756 (158,088) 162,942,915
(6,265,254) (424,482) - (6,689,736}
(42,678,821) (1,323,373) - (44,002,194}
(9,698,793) (3,090,453) 89,462 (12.609,784)
(8.817,515) (848,614) 68,626 (8,597,503)
{67,460,383) {5.686,922) 158,088 (72,985,217)
03,336,864 (3,383,168} - 89,953,698
104,948,821 § 3,697,458 § (801,172) & 107,845,107
111,492 § - 3 - 8 111,492

11,016 - {11,016) -

122,508 - {11,016) 111,492
3,817,947 24,809 - 3,842,756
12,466,141 17,415 (2,058,463} 10,425,093
23,220 - - 23,220
15,727,900 - - 15,727,900
32,035,208 42,224 {2,058,463) 30,018,969
(1,975,329} (96,558) - (2,071,887)
{10,882,180) (265,859) 1,809,235 (9,338,804)
{23,458) 236 - {23,220)
{12,016,160) {386,158) - {12,402,305)
{24,897,115) {748,336) 1,809,235 (23,836,216)
7,138,093 (706,112) (249,228} 6,182,753
7,260,601 § {706,112) § (260,244) % 6,294,245

Business-Type Activities Capital Assats, Net
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CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 929,836
Judiciary 1,010,131
Conservation and Development 14,610
Human Services 434,104
Culture and Recreation 70,715
Public Safety 2,803,045
Public Works 424,481
Total Depreciation Expense —

Governmental Activities $ 5,686,922
Business-Type Activities:
Public Works $ 86,304
Public Safety 274,858
Human Services 330,005
Culture and Recreation 57,169

Total Depreciation Expense —
Business-Type Activities $§ 748,336

Component Units — Capital Assets

Dauphin County Conservation District

Capital Assets consist of the following:

Estimated
Useful
Cost Lives
Land Impravemenis $ 110,095 20 years
Buildings and Improvements 1,200,553 20-40 years
Machinery and Equipment 152,018 3-6 years
Leasehold Assets 15,241 4 years
1,477,907
Less: Accumulated Amortization
and Depreciation 758,933
$ 718,974

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $37,067.



NOTE 6:

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Component Units — Capital Assets {Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority

Changes in Capital Assets of the business-type activities at December 31, 2012,

consist of the following:

Capital assets, not
being depreciated
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being
depreciated
Land improvements
Buildings
Building improvements
Golf course equipment
Other equipment

Total capital assets,
being depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings
Building improvements
Golf course equipment
Other equipment

Total accumulated
depreciation and
amortization

Capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Capital assets, net
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
2,028,786 % - § - 52,028,786
269,117 159,048 (269,117) 159,048
2,297,903 159,048 {269,117) 2,187,834
5,743,007 - - 5,743,097
95,947,853 583,931 - 96,531,784
365,983 - {650) 365,333
862,288 140,214 (21,669) 1,080,833
1,588,586 66,444 - 1,655,040
104,607,817 790,589 (22,319) 105,376,087
(3,102,322) (191,437} - (3,293,759)
(39,171,892) (3,314,135) - {42,486,027)
{284,129) (12,619) 650 (296,098)
{760,269) (82,195) 21,669 {820,795)
{860,553) (138,845) - {999,398)
(44,179,165)  (3,739,231) 22.319 {47,896,077)
60,428,652 (2,948,642) - 57,480,010
$62,726,655 $(2,789,594) § (269,117) $59,667,844
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NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED}

Component Units — Capital Assets {Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

Depreciation and amortization was calculated on the straight-line method using

the following useful lives:

Land

Construction in progress
Land improvements

Buildings

Buitding improvements
Golf course equipment
Other equipment

. Case Management Unit

Estimated
Useful Life

30 years
30 years
15 years

7 years
7-10 years

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Furniture and Equipment $1,564,591 $ 66,794 $ 402,383 $ 1,229,002
Leasehold Improvements 29,750 - - 99,750
Total Capital Assets,
Being Depreciated 1,664,341 66,794 402,383 1,328,752
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Furniture and Equipment 1,277,342 146,044 402,383 1,021,003
Leasehold Improvements 76,075 9,975 - 86,050
Total Accumulated Depreciation 1,353,417 156,019 402,383 1,107,053
Total Capital Assets, net $ 310,924 $ 80,225 $ - $ 221,699

CMU functions solely as designee in possession of the assets for the purpose of
providing services under the County contract. Capital assets purchased are
capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful life for financial statement

purposes.
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Component Units — Capital Assets (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority {*IDA™

The following is @ summary of changes in capital asséts for business-type activities for
the year ended September 30, 2012:

Balance Balance
October 1, September
2011 Additions Deletions 30, 2012
Capital assets, not being
Depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 4,867,521 $1,625,809 $ (4,867,521) $ 1,625,809
Land 50,900 212,797 - 263,697
Totai capital assets, not
Depraciated 4918,421 1,838,606 (4,867,521) 1,889,506
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings held for lease 474,354 - - 474,354
Building improvements 1,518,257 - - 1,518,257
Office furniture and equipment 14,521 - - 14,521
Equipment - Solar farm phase | - 4,829,816 - 4,829,816
Total capital assets, being
depreciated 2,007,132 4,829,816 - 6,836,948
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings held for lease (77,083) {11,859} - (88,942)
Building improvements (414,189) (101,247) - (515,406)
Office furniture and equipment (7,436) {1,866) - (9,302)
Equipment — Solar farm phase | - {201,705) - {201,705)
Toftal accumulated depreciation (498,708) (316,647) - (815,355)
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net 1,508,424 4,513,169 - 6,021,593
Total capital assets, net $ 6,426,845 $6,351,775 $ (4,867,521) $7,911,099

Depreciation expense was $316,647 for the year ended September 30, 2012.
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Component Units — Capital Assets (Continued)
Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (“DCEDC")

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for business-type activities for
the year ended December 31, 2012:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2012 Additions Deletions 2012

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Fumiture and Equipment $ 19,927 $ - $ - $ 19927

Works of Art 8,011 - - 8,011

Buildings 2,068,611 - - 2,088,611

Total capital assets, being

depreciated 2,096,549 - - 2,096,549

Less accumuiated depreciation for:

Fumiture and Equipment (19,927) - - {19,927)

Works of Art {(8.011) - - (8,011)

Buildings {324,876) {53,041) - (377.817)

Totat accumuiated depreciation (352,814) (53,041) - (405,855)

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 1,743,735 (53,041) - 1,680,694

Total capital assets, net $ 1,743,735 $ (53,041) $ - $ 1,690,694

Depreciation expense was $53,041 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
NOTE 7: CONDUIT DEBT ISSUES

Component Unit - Conduit Debt Issues

Dauphin County General Authority

The following Conduit debt issues were outstanding at December 31, 2012:

Dauphin County Library System $ 934,442
Pinnacle Health Systems 182,215,000
Pinnacle Health Systems 98,750,000
Pinnacle Health Systems 128,210,000
United Church of Christ Homes, Inc 28,748,874

$ 438,858,316




NOTE 7:

Page 73
COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

CONDUIT DEBT ISSUES (CONTINUED)

Component Unit - Conduit Debt Issues (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™)

Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (WITF, Inc. Project), Series of 2005

On September 23, 2005, the IDA issued Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds,
Series of 2005 (the Bonds) in the aggregate principal amount of $19,000,000.
The IDA appointed Fulton Financial Advisors, N.A., fo serve as trustee, bond
registrar and paying agent for the Bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of
the IDA, payable solely from the payments required to be made by WITF, Inc.
(the Borrower) under a loan agreement by and between IDA and the Borrower
{the Agreement.)

Pursuant to the Agresment, the IDA lent the full proceeds of the Bonds to the
Borrower for the acquisition and construction of a public media center to be
accupied and used by the Borrower, and payment of related costs and expenses,
including a portion of the costs incurred to issue the Bonds. The Borrower is
obligated to make payments in amounts equal to scheduled principal and interest
on the Bonds, along with certain annual administrative expenses of the IDA, until
the Bonds mature in 20286,

The IDA assigned all of its rights under the Agreement to the Trustee. Under the
bond indenture and the Agreement, the Borrower is obligated to make the
payments directly to the Trustee in amounts necessary to satisfy the debt service
requirements of the Bonds. Accordingly, no recourse can be made against the
IDA for payment of principal or interest on the Bands.

In 2009 the IDA approved the refinancing of these bonds into a tax exempt
private loan. The refinanced aggregate principal is $18,000,000.

Lease Revenue Bonds,_ Series of 2005 (Pennsylvania Fish and Boat

Commission)

On September 28, 2005, the IDA issued Lease Revenue Bonds, Series of 2005
(the Bonds) in the aggregate principal amount of $4,220,000. The IDA appointed
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, to serve as trustee, bond registrar
and paying agent for the Bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of the IDA,
payable solely from the payments required to be made by PA Fish and Boat
Commission (the Borrower) under a lease/purchase agreement by and betwesn
IDA and the Barrower {the Agreement).

Pursuant to the Agreement, the IDA lent the full proceeds of the Bonds to the
Borrower to advance refund Lease Revenue Bonds, Series of 1999, fund a debt
service reserve fund, and pay Bond issuance costs. The Borrower is obligated to
make payments in amounts equal to scheduled principal and interest on the
Bonds, along with certain annual administrative expenses of the IDA, until the
Bonds mature in 2015.

The IDA assigned all of its rights under the Agreement to the Trustee. Under the
bond indenfure and the Agreement, the Borrower is obligated to make timely
payments directly to the Trustee in amounts necessary to satisfy the debt service
reguirement of the Bonds. Accordingly, no recourse can be made against the
iDA for-payment of principal or interest on the Bonds.
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Component Unit - Conduit Debt issues (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™) (Continued)

Taxable Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 Bentley Harrisburg Senior Living
Facility}

On Aprif 6, 2008, the Authority issued Taxable Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series
2006 (the Bonds) in the aggregate principal amount of $2,720,000. The IDA
appointed Wells Farge Bank, N.A. to serve as trustee, bond registrar and paying
agent for the Bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of the Authority, payable
solely from the payments required to be made by Harrisburg Senior Living, LLC
and Bentley Harrisburg Senior Center, LLC (the Borrowers) under the loan
agreement by and between IDA and the Borrowers (the Agreement).

Pursuant to the Agreement, the IDA lent the full proceeds of the Bonds to the
Borrowers to refinance certain short-term debt incurred by the Borrowers to
acquire the facility, to fund certain working capital needs for the facility, and to
pay Bond issuance costs. The Borrower is obligated to make payments in
amounts equal to scheduled principal and interest on the Bonds, along with
certain annual administrative expenses of the DA, until the Bonds mature in
2039,

The IDA assigned all of its rights under the Agreement to the Trustee. Under the
bond indenture and the Agreement, the Borrower is obligated to make timely
payments directly to the Trustee in amounts necessary to satisfy the debt service
requirements of the Bonds. Accordingly, no recourse can be make against the
1DA for payment of principal or interest on the Bonds.

Federally Taxable Tax Increment Financing Bond, Series of 2006 (The

Harrisburg East Mall Tax Increment Financing District)

On June 30, 2006, the IDA issued a Tax Increment Financing Bond, Series of
2006 {the Bond) in the aggregate principal amount of $3,200,000. The IDA
appointed Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, to serve as trustee, bond
registrar and paying agent for the Bonds. The bonds are limited obligations of
the IDA, payable solely from the Tax Increment Financing revenues (TIF
revenues) under a reimbursement and trust agreement by and between IDA and
the Trustee {the Agreement.)

Pursuant to the Agreement, the IDA will reimburse Feldman Lubert Adler
Harrisburg, LP (the Company) for costs incurred and paid and eligible to be
funded pursuant to the Tax Increment Financing Act, Act of July 11, 1990, P.L.
465, as amended and supplementied. The Trustee, via TIF revenues, is
obligated to make payments in amounts equal to scheduled principal and interest
to the Company, along with certain annual administrative expenses of the DA,
until the Bond matures in 2015.
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Component Unit - Conduit Debt issues (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (*IDA”") {Continued)

Federally Taxahble Tax Increment Financing Bond, Series of 2008 (The

Harrisburg East Mall Tax Increment Financing District) (Continued)

The IDA assigned, transferred and pledged all moneys held from time to time by
the Trustee, the TIF Agreement and alt pledged receipts under the Agreement to
the Trustee. Under the bond indenture and the Agreement, the Trustee is
obligated to make timely payments directly to the Company in amounts
necessary to satisfy the debt service requirements of the Bond. Accordingly, no
recourse can be made against the IDA for payment of principal or interest on the
Bond.

Grant Revenue Note, Serigs of 2006 (High Pointe Commons)

In October 20086, the IDA received a grant in the amount of $3,719,540 from the
Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED)
under DCED's Infrastructure and Facilities Improvement Program (Program).
The grant is payable in ten equal annual installments. The IDA, pursuant to the
Program, issued Grant Revenue Note, Series of 2006 (Note) in the amount of
$3,055,025 in order to provide financing in anticipation of the receipt of the grant.
in accordance with a Development {FIP Grant Agreement, the proceeds of the
Note were provided to High Pointe Commons Helding, LP for the development of
a retail sales center. Final maturity on the Note is QOctober 2015. DCED wilt
dishurse the proceeds of the grant to the IDA. The proceeds, upon receipt, are
to be applied for and toward the payment of debt service on the Series 2006
Note. High Pointe Commons Holding, LP executed a Guaranty Agreement for
the Series 2006 Note, secured by a second lien on the High Pointe Commons
Retail Center. Accordingly, no recourse can be made against the IDA for
payment of principal or interest on the Note.

Mortgage Revenue Notes, Series of 2006 and 2007 (Hershey Christian School

Association Project

In November 2006, the IDA authorized the issuance of a Morigage Revenue
Note {(Note) totaling $6,000,000. Pursuant to a Loan Agreement, the IDA lent the
full proceeds of the Note to a Pennsylvania non-profit corporation (Corporation)
for the acquisition and construction of an educational facility. Final maturity on
the Note is November 2030. The Note is secured by an Open-End Mortgage and
Security Agreement from the Corporation. Accordingly, no recourse can be
made against the IDA for payment of principal or interest on the Note.

In January 2007, the IDA issued a series of additional Mortgage Revenue Notes
(2007 Notes) totaling $700,000. Pursuant to the Supplemental Loan Agreement,
the IDA lent the proceeds of the notes to the Corporation for the acquisition and
construction of an educational facility. Final maturity on the Notes is November
2030. The Notes are secured by an Open-End Mortgage and Security
Agreement from the Corporation. Accordingly, no recourse can be made against
the IDA for payment of principal or interest on the Notes.
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Component Unit - Conduit Debt Issues {Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™ (Continued)

Mortgage Revenue Note, Series of 2007 {Yellow Breeches Educational Center,
Inc. Project)

in December 2007, the IDA authorized the issuance of a Mortgage Revenue
Note (Note) totaling $437,000 for the purpose of assisting a Pennsylvania non-
profit corporation in the acquisition, of an existing educational facility, and the
acquisition of the sewer treatment plant, which serves said educational facitity.
Final Maturity on the Note is December 2023. The note is secured by various
assets of the borrower, accordingly, no recourse can be made against the IDA for
payment of principal or interest on the Note.

Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, Series of 2008 (Central Pennsvlvania MHA

Associates LP Project)

In November 2008, the IDA authorized the issuance of Multifamily Housing
Revenue Bonds (Bonds) fotaling $13,000,000. Pursuant to a Loan Agreement,
the IDA lent the full proceeds of the Bond to a Limited Partnership (LP) for the
acquisition, rehabilitation and equipping of land and land improvements and the
marketing and leasing of leasable space in the improvements. Final maturity on
the Bonds is December 2040. The Bonds are secured by an Open-End
Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents, and Security Agreement and from
LP. Accordingly, no recourse can be made against the IDA for payment of
principal or interest on the Bonds.

Mortgage Revenue Note, Series of 2008 (Visiting Nurse Association)

In December 2008, the IDA authorized the issuance of a Mortgage Revenue
Note (Note) totaling $766,000 for the purpose of assisting a Pennsylvania non-
profit corporation (Corporation) in the acquisition and renovation of a facility and
in refinancing of a line of credit of the Corporation. Final maturily on the Note is
2023. The Note is secured by a mortgage of the Corporation, and accordingly,
no recourse can be made against the IDA for payment of principal or interest on
the Note.

Commerciai Mortgage Revenue Loan, Series of 2012 (Next Generation Farmer

Loan Program}

In February 2012, the IDA authorized the issuance of a Commercial Mortgage
Revenue Loan (Loan) totaling $488,000 for the purpose of financing the
purchase price being paid by the Beginning Farmer to the Seller for the Project,
which is the fair value of the property identified in the acquisition to be used for
farming purposes only. Final Maturity on the Loan is December 2032. The Note
is secured by various assets of the borrower, accordingly, no recourse can be
made against the IDA for payment of principal or interest on the Loan.
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A summary of changes in long-term debt obligations excluding obligations under capital
lease follows:

Amounts Due
Beginning Within One
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance
Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable:
General obligation debt $ 152,511,500 § - $ 6660000 $ 145,851,500 $ 8,125,000
Total bonds and notes payable 152,611,500 - 6,660,000 145,851,500
Other liabilities:
Compensated absences 7,648,592 328,079 - 7.976,671
Estimated workers compensation
claims 2,501,421 - £05,896 1,995,525
Other postemployment benefits 2,487,970 701,746 - 3,189,718
Total other fiabilities 12,727 983 1,029,825 595,896 13,161,912
Governmental Activities Long-Term
Liabilities § 165230483 $ 1020825 § 7255806 § 159013412 § 8125000
Business-Type Activities:
Other liabilities:
Compensated absences $ 355103 % 61,880 - $ 416,983 §
Estimated workers compensation
claims 35,538 - 35,538 -
Total other liabilities 360,641 61,880 35,538 416,983
Business-Type Activities Long-Term
Liabilities $ 390641 § 61,880 35538 § 416983 §

An analysis of debt service requirements to maturity on the Governmental Activities

obligations follows:

Years Ended December 31:

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2029

Totai Debt
Principal Interest Service
Requirements  Requirements Requirements
% 8,125,000 $ 9,084,386 $ 17,209,386
43,196,500 8,780,135 51,976,635
7,815,000 4,157,934 11,972,934
8,145,000 3,820,197 11,965,197
8,515,000 3,450,272 11,965,272
48,660,000 11,267,665 59,027,665
19,845,000 1,624,365 21,469,365
1,550,000 95,578 1,645,578
$145,851,500  $ 42,280,532 $188,132,032
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Pertinent information regarding long-term debt obligations outstanding is presented below (Payable from
General Fund tax revenues.):

Amount
Date of
of Criginal
Issue Issue
2004  § 39,760,000
2005 $ 33,980,000
2006  § 16,450,000
2009 $ 21,965,000
2010 3 23,380,000
2010 $ 34,746,500
2011 $ 15,655,000

Purpose

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004 and General
Obligation Notes, Series C and D issued for defeasing
General Obiigation Bonds, Series of 1998, 1999 Series A of
2003 and to partially refund the Second Series of 2001 and
to pay the cost of issuance related to the bond issue at a
variable interest rate from 2.40%-5.40%. (Final Maturity in
2024).

General Cbligation Bonds, Series of B and C of 2005 issued
to currently refund General Obligation Bonds, Series A of
2000; to advance refund General Obligation Bonds, Second
Series of 2001; and to advance refund General Obiigation
Bonds, Series of 2002 at a variable interest rate from
2.65%-5.00%. (Final Maturity in 2024)

General Obligafion Bonds, Series of 2006 issued to fund the
costs of the emergency communications project and to pay
the cost of issuance related to the bond issue at a variable

interest rate from 3.55%-5.00%. (Final Maturity 2023 )

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2009 issued to fund the
following projects: the Energy Project, the Work Release
Center Project, the Juvenile Court Project and the
Emergency Vehicle Storage Building Project and to pay the
cost of issuance related to the bond issue at a variable
interest rate from 3.000%-4.125%. (Final Maturity 2029)

General Obligation Bonds, Series B and D of 2010 issued to
currently refund General Obligation Notes, Series A and B
of 2004 and Generai Obligation Bonds, Series of 2008 and
to pay the cost of issuance related to the bond issue at a
variable interest rate from 1.00%-5.00%. (Final Maturity,
Series B — 2014; Series D — 2023)

Federally Taxable Bond Anticipation Note issued to pay on
the Guaranteed Resource Recovery Facility Limited
Obligation Notes, Series C of 2007 and ifs Guaranteed
Federailly Taxable Resource Recovery Facility Limited
Obligation Notes, Series D of 2007, issued by the
Harrisburg Authority. The Note bears interest equal to the
LIBOR rate or the Base Rate plus 25 basis points, not
exceeding the maximum rate. The County received an
extension on the note during 2012. (Finai Maturity 2014)

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2011 issued fo
currently refund General Obligation Bond, Series A of 2002
and to pay cost of issuance related to the bond issue at a
vaorziit)Jle interest rate from 0.40%-5.00%. (Final Maturity
2

Balance
Outstanding at
December 31,

2012

$ 16,430,000

22,515,000

16,035,000

19,860,000

20,715,000

34,746,500

——15,550,000

$ 145,851,500
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Interest rates on the above obligations range from 0.4% to 5.4%. The County has
pledged its taxing power as security for outstanding general obligation debt.

In the current and prior years, the County defeased various general obligation bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability
for the defeased bonds are not included in the accompanying general purpose financial
statements. At December 31, 2012, the principal amount outstanding relative to
defeased debt was $28,505,000.

Component Units - Long-term Debt

Dauphin County General Authority

Long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2012, is as follows:

Office and Parking Revenue Bonds (Riverfront Office Center):

Series A of 1998 $ 27,610,000
Series C of 1998-Capital Appreciation Bonds 14,200,637
Hotel and Conference Center Bonds (Hyatt Hotel Project) Series of 1998 54,945,000
Dauphin County Guaranteed Lease Revenue Bonds — Series C of 2009 4,095,000
{Building Bonds)
Lease Revenue Bonds (100 Chestnut Street) — Series D of 2009 1,875,000
Dauphin County Guaranteed Lease Revenue Bonds
Series Aand B of 2011  {Dauphin Highlands) 10,945,741
Capital Lease Payable (Dauphin Highlands) 66,697
$113,738,075
Long-term debt is shown on the balance sheset as foliows:
Current portion of capital lease obligation $ 41,902
Current portion of long-term debt 3,962,509
Long-term debt, net of current portion 109,708,869
Capital lease payable, net of current portion 24,795

——$113,738.076
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Component Units - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

Long-term liability activity for the General Authority for the year ended
December 31, 2012, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Long-term debt  $116,550,364 $984,409 $(3,796,608) $113,738,075 $4,004,411
Deferred charge (991,537) - 218,020 {773,517)

$115,558,827 $984,409 $(3,578,678) $112,964,558 $4,004,411

Each of the General Authority's financing programs is described below. The
General Authority has complied with the covenants contained in its debt
agreements for the year ended December 31, 2012 except as described in Note
26.

Office_and Parking Revenue Bonds — Series A, B and C of 1998 (Riverfront
QOifice Center)

On June 30, 1998, the General Authority issued Office and Parking Revenue
Bonds Series A, B, and C in the principal amounts of $38,950,000, $1,120,000,
and $5,235,436 respectively. The bond proceeds were used to acquire certain
real estate and parking facilities in the City of Harrishurg, known as the
*Riverfront Office Center,” to fund a debt service reserve, and to pay the costs of
issuance. The bonds were issued without a municipal bond guaranty insurance
policy.

The bonds, as issued, consisted of Current Interest and Capital Appreciafion
Bonds. The Series A and B are Current Interest Bonds and the Series C are
Capital Appreciation Bonds.

The Current Interest Bonds bear interest and mature as follows:

Series A
Years Interest Rate Principal Interest Total

2013 6.00% $ 1,305,000 $ 1,656,600 $ 2,961,800
2014 6.00% 1,385,000 1,578,300 2,963,300
2015 6.00% 1,465,000 1,495,200 2,960,200
2016 6.00% 1,555,000 1,407,300 2,962,300
2017 6,00% 1,650,000 1,314,000 2,964,000
2018-2022 6.00% 9,845,000 4,962,600 14,807,600
2023-2025 6.00% 10,405,000 1,443,300 11,848,300
$27,610,000 $13,857,300 $41,467,300

Series B

There was no balance remaining on the Series B bonds at December 31, 2012,
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Component Units - Long-term Debt (Continued)
Dauphin County General Authority {Continued)

Office and_Parking Revenue Bonds — Series A, B and C of 1998 (Riverfront
Office Center) {Continued}

Series C
The Capital Appreciation Bonds, which have an effective yield of 7%, bear no
stated interest and have stated initial principal values as follows:

Maturity Dates Stated Values Maturity Accreted
at Issuance Values Discount Value

July1,2024 ~  $ 304,140 $ 1,820,000 § 995030 $ 824,970
January 1, 2025 293,857 1,820,000 1,022,931 797,068
July 1, 2025 283,920 1,820,000 1,048,885 770,115
January 2, 2026 274,310 1,820,000 1,075,929 744,071
July 1, 2026 265,047 1,820,000 1,101,082 718,918
January 1, 2027 256,074 1,820,000 1,125,397 694,603
July 1, 2027 247,411 1,820,000 1,148,893 671,107
January 1, 2028 3,310,677 25,205,000 16,225,215 8,979,785

$5,235,436 $37,945,000 $23,744,363 $14,200,637

As required by a mandatory sinking fund provision, the trustee deposited
$2,964,300 of bond proceeds to the Debt Service Reserve Account.

Hotel and Conference Center Revenue Bonds — Series of 1998 (Hyatt Hotel
Project

On July 1, 1998, the General Authority issued Hotel and Conference Center
Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 in the principal amount of $64,500,000. The bond
proceeds were used io provide funds to design, construct, and equip the Hyatt
Regency Pittsburgh International Airport Hotel and Conference Center, to
capitalize interest through the construction period, to fund a debt service reserve,
to fund an aperating reserve, and pay the costs of issuance. The bonds were
issued without a municipal bond guaranty insurance policy.



NOTE 8:

Page 82
COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Component Units - Long-term Debt (Continued)
Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

Hotel and Conference Center Revenue Bonds — Series of 1908 (Hyatt Hotel

Profect) (Continued)

The Bonds bear interest and mature as follows:

Interest

Years Ratg Principal Interast Total

2013 6.20% $ 1,770,000 $ 3,351,720 $ 5,121,720
2014 6.20% 1,885,000 3,238,415 5,123,415
2015 6.20% 2,000,000 3,117,980 5,117,980
2016 6.20% 2,125,000 2,980,105 5,115,105
2017 6.20% 2,255,000 2,864,325 5,109,325
2018-2022 6.20% 13,375,000 11,938,495 25,314,495
2023-2027 8.20% 17,955,000 7,128,125 25,081,125
2028-2029 6.20% 13,580,000 987,270 14,577,270

$54,945,000 $35.615.435 $90,560,435

As required by a mandatory sinking fund provision, the trustee deposited
$5,189,000 of bond proceeds to the Debt Service Reserve Account. However,
as discussed in Note 26, unscheduled draws were made out of the Bond
Reserve Fund,

Dauphin County Guaranteed Lease Revenue Bonds - Series C of 2000 {Building
Bonds)

On November 21, 2001, the General Authority issued $5,620,000 Dauphin
County Guaranteed Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds — Series A of 2001 and
$4,750,000 Dauphin County Guaranteed Lease Revenue Bonds, Series B of
2001. The proceeds of Series A of 2001 were used to defease the County
Building Bonds Series of 1997. At December 31, 2012, the balance outstanding
on both the County Building Bonds Series of 1997 and the Dauphin County
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Serias A of 2001 is zero.

The Series B of 2001 Bonds were issued to make renovations and improvements
to a portion of the building; upgrade the electrical, plumbing and HVAC systems
and installation of a new steam heating system to the property; and to pay the
costs of issuance associated with issuing the bonds.

On November 12, 2009, the General Authority issued $4,865,000 Dauphin
County Guaranteed Lease Revenue Bonds — Series C of 2009. The proceeds of
Series C of 2009 were used fo currently refund Series B of 2001 and to pay the
costs of issuance associated with issuing the bonds. The balance outstanding
on the Series B of 2001 bonds at December 31, 2012 is zero.
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Component Units - L ong-term Debt (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

Dauphin County Guaranteed Lease Revenue Bonds - Series C of 2009 (Building
Bonds) (Continued)

The County has pledged its taxing power to support its lease rental payments
related to both principal and interest due on the General Authority's Bonds.
These bonds mature as follows:

Interest
Years Rate Principal Interest Total
2013 2.25% $ 360,000 $ 134,225 § 494,225
2014 2.50% 365,000 126,125 491,125
2015 3.00% 375,000 117,000 492,000
2016 3.00% 385,000 105,750 490,750
2017 3.20% 400,000 94,200 494,200
2018-2022 3.40%-3.88% 2,210,000 255,028 2,465,028

$ 4,095,000 3 832328 § 4,927,328

Lease Revenue Bonds — Series D of 2009 {100 Chestnut Street)

On October 1, 2003, the General Authority issued Tax Exempt Lease Revenue
Bonds, Series A in the principal amount of $2,490,000 and Federally Taxable
Lease Revenue Bonds, Series B in the principal amount of $1,355,000. The
Authority used the 2003 bond proceeds to advance refund the Lease Revenue
Bonds, Series A and B of 1998, resulting in defeasance of the bonds. The bonds
are insured by a municipal bond guaranty insurance policy.

On November 12, 2009, the General Authority issued Tax Exempt Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series D of 2009, in the principal amount of $2,570,000. The
General Authority used the Series D bond proceeds to currently refund the 2003
Bonds Payable, Series A. As of December 31, 2012, the Series A and Series B
of 2003 bonds had a zero balance.

The bonds bear interest and mature as follows:

Series D of 2009

Interest
Years Rate Principal Interest Total
2013 2.00% $ 295,000 $ 52,275 $ 347,275
2014 2.30% 300,000 46,375 346,375
2015 2.70% 305,000 39,475 344,475
2016 3.00% 315,000 31,240 346,240
2017 3.20% 325,000 21,790 346,790
2018 3.40% 335,000 11,390 346,390

$1,875,000 $ 202,545 $2,077,545
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Component Units - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority {(Continued)

Lease Revenue Bonds — Series A and B of 1998 {100 Chestnut Street)

On September 1, 1998, the General Authority issued Tax Exempt Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series A in the principal amount of $4,285,000 and Federally
Taxable Lease Revenue Bonds, Series B in the principal amount of $340,000.
The bond proceeds were used to acquire certain real estate in the City of
Harrisburg, known as “100 Chestnut Street,” to fund certain renovations to the
facility, to fund a debt service reserve, and to pay the costs of issuance. On
October 1, 2003, the General Authority advance refunded the Series A of the
1998 Bonds, resulting in a defeasance of the bonds. As a result, the liability for
those bonds has been removed from the Authority. The balance outstanding on
the defeased Series A bonds on December 31, 2012 is $1,845,000. The Series
B bonds matured in 2006 and were paid in full.

Dauphin County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds — Series A and B of 2011 (Dauphin
Highlands)

On January 6, 2005, the General Authority issued Tax Exempt County
Guaranteed Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series A of 2005 and Taxable County
Guaranteed Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series B of 2005 in the principal amount
of $8,565,000 and $2,435,000, respectively. The bonds were insured by a
municipal bond guaranty insurance policy. The net proceeds were used to
advance refund the 1993 Series Capital Appreciation Bonds, advance refund the
County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series of 2003 and pay the costs of issuing
the bonds. As a result, the liability for those bonds has been removed from the
Authority. At December 31, 2012, the maturity value and accreted value of the
bonds outstanding on the 1993 Series Capital Appreciation Bonds are
$10,860,000 and $7,700,817, respeciively. There is no balance outstanding on
the County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series of 2003, at December 31, 2012.

On September 30, 2011, the Authority issued Taxable County Guaranteed
Revenue Refunding Bond, Series A of 2011 (Series A of 2011) and Taxable
County Guaranteed Revenue Refunding Bond, Series B of 2011 (Series B of
2011), in the principal amounts of $8,796,927 and $2,355,154, respectively. The
bonds are insured by a municipal bond guarantee insurance policy. The
Authority used the proceeds of Series A 2011 to currently refund the Series A of
2005 and pay the cost of issuance. The net proceeds of Series B of 2011 were
used to advance refund the Series B of 2005 and pay issuance costs. As a
result, the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Authority. There is
no balance outstanding on the County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series B of
2005, at December 31, 2012
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Component Units - Long-term Debt {Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

Dauphin County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds — Series A and B of 2011 (Dauphin

Highiands} {Continued)

The interest rate on Series A of 2011 Bonds is variable. Per the bond
agreements, the interest rates will change monthly and be calculated based on
London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) pius 1.75% not to exceed 12%. The
interest rate on these bonds as of December 31, 2012 was 1.9635%. Dauphin
County has pledged its full faith, credit and taxing power to guarantee the debt
service payments related to both principal and interest due on the Series A of
2011 Revenue Refunding Bonds. Using the interest rate in effect at December
31, 2012, these bonds mature as follows: -

Years Principal Interest Total
2013 % 86,197 $ 172,975 $ 258,172
2014 97,129 171,179 268,308
215 108,448 169,156 278,604
2016 8,427 657 139,157 8,566,814
$ 8,720,431 $ 652,467 § 9,372,898

The interest rate on Series B of 2011 Bonds is variable. Per the bond
agreements the interest rates will change monthly and be calculated based on
LIBOR plus 1.75%, not to exceed 12%. The interest rate on these bonds as of
December 31, 2012 was 1.9635%. Dauphin County has pledged its fuil faith,
credit, and taxing power to guarantee the debt service payments related to both
principal and interest due on the Series B of 2011 Bonds. Using the interest rate
in effect at December 31, 2012, these bonds mature as follows:

Years Principal interest Total
2013 $ 146,312 $ 43,233 $ 189,545
2014 164,868 40,185 205,053
2015 185,777 36,750 222,527
2016 1,728,353 27,674 1,756,027

$ 2,225310 $ 147,842 $§ 2,373,152
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LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Component Units - Long-term Debt {Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™

Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations

$488,000 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note, Series of 2004, due in monthly
installments of $4,855 through November 4, 2014 plus interest at 3.63%.

The proceeds of the note, dated November 4, 2004, were used for and towards
the acquisition of a building situated at 1805 North Cameron Street in the City of
Harrisburg, Dauphin County; and paying the costs and expenses related to the
foregoing purposes and to the issuance of the Note.

Under a lease agreement dated November 4, 2004 between the (DA, as lessor,
and the County, as lessee, the County is obligated to make monthly payments to
or on behalf of the IDA in amounts required by the note. The County is currently
making monthly payments directly to the bank. The County guarantees payment
of principat and interest on the Note.

The following is a maturity schedule for the Guaranieed Lease Revenue Note,
Series 2004:

Principal Interest Interest Rate Maturity Date
$ 54927 $ 3,338 3.63% 2013
56,858 1,406 3.63% 2014
9,669 42 3.63% 2015

$ 121,454 $ 4,786

$900,000 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note, Series of 2006, due in monthly

installments of $5,677 through Aprit 5, 2026 plus interest at 4.40%.

The proceeds of the note, dated April 5, 2006, were used for and towards the
acquisition of a building situated at 1300 Rolleston Street in the City of
Harrisburg, Dauphin County; and paying the costs and expenses related to the
foregoing purposes and to the issuance of the Note.

Under a lease agreement dated April 5, 2006 between the DA, as lessor, and
the County, as lessee, the County is obligated to make monthiy payments to or
on behalf of the IDA in amounts required by the note. The County is currently
making monthly payments directly to the bank. The County guarantees payment
of principal and interest on the Note.
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Component Units - Long-term Debf (Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2012

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (*IDA™) {Continued)
Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations (Continued)
$900.000 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note, Series of 2006 {Continued)

The following is a maturity schedule for the Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note,

Series 2006:
Principal Interest
$ 37895 $ 30,226
39,627 28,494
41,438 26,683
43,332 24,789
45,312 22,809
250,584 81,023
225,140 18,961
$ 692,328 $ 232,985

interest Rate

4.40%
4.40%
4.40%
4.40%
4.40%
4.40%
4.40%

Maturity Date

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018 to 2022
2023 to 2026

$410,651 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note, Series 2007A, due in monthly

installments of $2,688 through August 16, 2027 plus interest at 4.83%.

The proceeds of the note, dated August 16, 2007, were used for and towards the
acquisition of a building situated at 2125 Paxton Church Road in the City of
Harrisburg, Dauphin County; and paying the costs and expenses related to the
foregoing purposes and to the issuance of the Note.

Under a lease agreement dated August 18, 2007 between the Authorily, as
lessor, and the County, as lessee, the County is obligated to make monthly
payments to or on hehalf of the Authority in amounts required by the note. The
County is currently making monthly payments directly to the bank. The County
guarantees payment of principal and interest on the Note.
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Component Units - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Devetopment Authority {“IDA™) (Continued)

Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations {Continued)

$410.651 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note, Series 2007A (Continued)

The following is a maturity schedule for the Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note,

Series 2007A;

Principal Interest Interest Rate  Maturity Date

$ 16,216 $ 16,037 4.83% 2013

17,016 15,238 4.83% 2014

17,854 14,399 4.83% 2015

18,734 13,519 4.83% 2016

10,658 12,595 4.83% 2017
113,817 47,448 4.83% 2018 to 2022
136,680 16,5622 4.83% 2023 to 2027

$§ 339,975 § 135,758

$900,000 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note Series 2007, due in monthly
installments of $5,291 through November 28, 2027 plus interest at 4.89%.

The proceeds of the note, dated November 29, 2007, were used for and towards
the acquisition of a building situated at 5925 Stevenson Avenue in Lower Paxton
Township, Dauphin County, Pennsyivania; and paying the costs and expenses
related to the foregoing purposes and the issuance of the Note.

Under a lease agreement dated November 29, 2007 between the IDA, as lessor,
and the County, as lessee, the County is obligated to make monthly payments fo
or on behaif of the IDA in amounts required by the note. The County is currently
making payments direcfly to the bank. The County guarantees payment of the
principal and interest on the Note.

The following is a maturity schedule for the Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note,

Series 2007

Principal Interest Interest Rate  Maturity Date

$ 35224 $ 35,824 4.83% 2013

36,987 34,062 4.83% 2014

38,837 32,211 4.83% 2015

40,780 30,268 4.83% 2016

42,820 28,228 4.83% 2017
248,456 106,784 4.83% 2018 to 2022
305,273 38,126 4.83% 2023 to 2027

$ 748,377 $ 305,503
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Component Units - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Dauphin County industrial Development Autherity (IDA") (Continued)
Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations (Continued)

$1.900,000 Guaranteed Mortgage Revenue Series of 2010 interest due in

monthly installments at a fixed rate of 5.65% APR for the first five years through
December 1, 2015, and then float at Prime floor of 4% through the maturity of the
Note on December 1, 2020,

The proceeds of the note, dated December 1, 2010, were used to pay issuance
costs of $26,197 and $1,675,870 was used to refinance the outstanding principal
balances of the Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note, Series of 2005, Loan Payable,
Vartan Bank, and Guaranteed Construction Note, Series 2008. The remaining
balance of $197,933 was used to pay outstanding interest on the old debt and to
fund the 2010 Renovation Project.

The following is a maturity schedule for the Guaranteed Morigage Revenue Note
Series 2010:

Principal Interest Interest Rate  Maturity Date
$ 53,125 $ 93,406 5.65% 2013
61,349 98,503 5.65% 2014
64,957 04,895 5.65% 2015
68,520 91,332 5.65% 2016
72,807 87,045 5.65% 2017
1,481,168 252,160 5.65% 2018-2021

$1,801,926 $ 717,341

Guaranteed lease
revenue notes:
Series of 2004
Series of 2006
Series of 2007
Series of 2007(A)
Subtotal
Guaranteed mortgage
revenue note
Total

The following is a summary of long-term debt for the year ended September 30,
2012:

Balance Balance

Cctober 1, September  Due Within

2011 Additions Deletions 30, 2012 One Year
$ 174,515 § - $ (53,061) $ 121454 § 54,927
728,567 - {36,239) 692,328 37,885
781,923 - {(33,548) 748,377 35,224
355,429 - {15,454) 339,975 16,216
2,040,434 - (138,300) 1,002,134 144,262
1,860,808 - (58,882) 1,801,926 53,125
$ 30801242 5 - § (197,182) $3,704,060 $ 197,387
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Component Units - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (*“DCEDC”)

The following is a summary of long-term debt for the year ended December 31,

2012:
Amounts Due
Beginning Ending Within One
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Year
2004 Guaranteed Parking  § 1,870,000 § - $ (55,000} §$ 1815000 § 70,000
Revenue Note
Section 108 Note Payabie 2,520,000 - {160,000) 2,360,000 160,000
$ 4300000 § - $§ (215000) § 4,175,000 $ 230,000

Long-term debt at December 31, 2012, consisted of the following:

Note payable of $2,200,000 to a bank, payable in
variable annual installments plus interest not to exceed
10%, initial principal payment due 2006, final payment
die December 2030, Interest rate at December 31,

2012 was 1.709%. $ 1,815,000

Section 108 Note payable in the amount of $3,000,000
issued for the purpose of redeveloping a brownfield site
at an approximate interest rate of 5.4% and final
payment due August 2026, 2,380,000

4,175,000
Less current portion (230,000)
Long-term debt $ 3,945,000

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Maturity Date Principal Interest Tofal
2013 $ 230,000 5 159,334 $ 389,334
2014 230,000 150,058 380,058
2015 235,000 140,750 375,750
2016 240,000 131,324 371,324
2017 252,000 121,781 373,781

2018 to 2022 1,320,000 447,692 1,767,692

2023 to 2027 1,248,000 163,857 1,411,857

2028 to 2030 420,000 15,039 435,039

$ 4,175,000 $ 1,329,835 3 5,504,835
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GUARANTEED DEBT

The County is currently the second guarantor of two Swaps that were issued through the
Harrisburg Authority.

The first swap is related to the Resource Recovery Multi-Modal Bonds, Series D of 2003,
originally issued in the amount of $96,480,000. The synthetic variable swap (the “2003
Variable Swap”) was executed in the amount of $65,000,000. The 2003 Variable Swap
was entered info with the Royal Bank of Canada (the Counterparty). The effective date
of the 2003 Variable Swap was December 30, 2003 and the termination date Is
December 1, 2013. The Harrisburg Authority pays to the Counterparty SIFMA and
receives from the Counterparty a fixed rate of 3.37%.

The second swap is related to the Resource Recovery Multi-Maodal Bonds, Series D of
2003 (the “2003D Bonds"), originally issued in the amount of $96,480,000. A 6% cap
{the “2003D Cap”) was purchased from the Royal Bank of Canada (the Counterparty),
commenced in 2008 and expires in 2033. The Harrisburg Authority is obligated to make
semiannual payments to the Counterparty in connection with the 2003D Cap in the
amount of $247,000.
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The County is a party to contracts for various derivative instruments as discussed below.

At December 31, 2012, the County has the following derivative instruments outstanding:

Eair Value
Notional Fair Value at December 31, 2012 Change in Fair Value
Amount Classification Amount Classification Amount
Governmental Activities
Investment Derivatives:
A 2015 Forward-Starting Interest
Fixed Payer Swap $ 20,330,000 investment 5 (812,111) Expense $ (418,409)
B 2016 Forward-Starting Interest
Fixed Payer Swap $ 14,405,000 Investment {484,689) Expense {226,057)
Total Investment Derivatives 5 (1,296,810) $ _ (644,468)

2007 Fixed to Variable Rate Swaption. During 2012, the Counterparty did not exercise their option on the
2007 Fixed to Variable Rate Swaption, associated with the Series of 2005C General QObligation Ronds.
The change in fair value of ($29,619) is reflected as an adjustment to Interest Expense in the
Governmental Funds Statement of Activities.

2011 Fixed to Variable Rate Swaption. During 2012, the Counterparty did not exercise their option on the
2011 Fixed to Variable Rate Swaption, associated with the Series of 2011 General Obligation Bonds.
The change in fair value of ($29,348) is reflected as an adjustment to Interest Expense in the
Governmentat Funds Statement of Activities.

2007 Fixed to Variable Rate Swaption. During 2012, the Counterparty did not exercise their option on the
2007 Fixed to Variable Rate Swaption, associated with the Series of 2005B General Obligation Bonds.
The change in fair value of ($11,440) is reflected as an adjustment to Interest Expense in the
Governmental Funds Statement of Activities.

2005 Basis Swap. In October 2012, the County terminated the 2005 Basis Swap, associated with the
Series D of 2004 General Obligation Note, with the Royal Bank of Canada. The County received
$125,000, net of transaction fees, from the termination of this Swap which is reflected as Swap Proceeds
in the County's General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance and
the Governmental Funds Statement of Activities. The change in fair vaiue of ($88,633) is reflected as an
adjustment fo Interest Expense in the Governmental Funds Statement of Activities.

2011 Basis Swap. In October 2012, the County terminated the 2011 Basis Swap, associated with
portions of Series 2011, 2005C and 2006 General Obligation Bonds, with the Royal Bank of Canada.
The County received $380,000, net of transaction fees, from the termination of this Swap which is
reflected as Swap Proceeds in the County's General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance and the Governmental Funds Statement of Activities. The change in fair value
of $92,908 is reflected as an adjustment to Interest Expense in the Governmental Funds Statement of
Activities, .
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Terms of the Investment Derivatives. The terms, fair values, and credit ratings of the investment
derivatives as of December 31, 2012 were as follows.

Swap
Effective Termination Counterparty
Associated Bond issue Noticnal Amaunt Date Couniy Pays County Receives Date Counterparty  Credit Rating
Fixed Payer Forward Starting Swaps:
notional balance *
Portion of Series 2005 B and notional balance *  70% of 3-Month
A 2005 C/2015 Bonds $ 20,330,000 5/15/2015 fixed rate of 2.252% LIBOR
11/15/2024 RBC AaS/AA-IAA
notional balance *
notional balance *  70% of 3-Month
B 2006 Bands / 2016 Bonds 3 14,405,000 5/15/2016 fixed rate of 2.403% LIBOR 11M15/2023 RBC Aa3fAA-AA

S __ 34735000

Fair market value. The fair market value of the derivative investments were estimated using the zero-
coupon method. This method calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap,
assuming that current forward rates implied by the yield curve correctly anticipate future spot interest
rates. These payments are then discounted using the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of each future net settlement on the swap.

Credit risk. As of December 31, 2012, the County was not exposed to credit risk for those investment
derivatives with negative fair values. The County executes its derivative instruments with one
counterparty that comprises 100% percent of its net exposure to credit risk. The Counterparty’s credit
ratings are shown in the table above.,

The County's Master Swap Agreement contains netting provisions applicable to circumstances where the
County enters into more than one derivative transaction with a single counterparty. Under these netting
provisions, should one party become insolvent or otherwise default on its obligations, the close-out
netting provisions permit the nondefaulting party to terminate all affected transactions and net any
setflement amounts payable so that a single sum will be owed by, or owed to, the nendefauiting party.

Interest Rate Risk. On the County's Fixed Payer swaps, as LIBOR increases, the County’s net payment
on the swaps decrease.

Market Access Risk. Risk that the County cannot access the bond market or that the 2015 Bonds and
2016 Bonds do not settle due fo unforeseen events.
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Component Unit - Direct Financing Leases

Dauphin County General Authority

The General Authority’'s County Building Bond Fund leasing operation consists of
leasing a parking garagefoffice building to the County of Dauphin under a direct
financing lease arrangement, with the lease assigned to a trustee as collateral for
the County Building Bonds. Subsequent to leasing, the County designated the
General Authority as agent to operate the facility. All operating costs remain the
responsibility of the County and are accounted for on the County's records. In
November 2009, the Generai Authority currently refunded the Revenue Bonds
Series 2001 through the issuance of Guaranteed Lease Revenue Bonds, Series
C of 2009. The term of the revised lease agreement is 20 years and expires in
2022.

The General Authority's 100 Chestnut Street Bond Fund leasing operation
consists of leasing an office building to the County of Dauphin under a direct
financing lease arrangement, with the lease assigned to a trustee as collateral for
the Chestnut Street Revenue Bonds. The Chestnut Street Revenue Bonds were
originally advanced refunded in 2003 through the issuance of Lease Revenue
Bonds, Series A and B of 2003. In November 2009, the General Authority
refunded the Lease Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2003 through the issuance of
Tax Exempt Lease Revenue Bonds, Series D of 2009. The term of the revised
lease agreement is 15 years and expires in 2018.

Following is a schedule of minimum lease payments for all direct financing
leases:

Years Ending County Building 100 Chestnut
December 31 Bond Fund Street Fund Total
2013 $ 494,225 $ 347,275 $ 841,500
2014 491,125 346,375 837,500
2015 492,000 344,475 836,475
2016 480,750 346,240 836,990
2017 494,200 346,790 840,990
2018-2022 2,465,028 346,390 2,811,418

§ 4927328 $ 2077545 $ 7,004,873
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DIRECT FINANCING LEASES (CONTINUED)

Component Unit - Direct Financing Leases {Continued)
Dauphin County General Authority {Continued)

The net investment in direct financing leases consists of the following at

December 31, 2012:
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County 100
Building Chestnut
Bond Fund Street Fund Total
Total Minimum Lease
Payments to be Received $ 4,927,328 $ 2,077,545 $ 7,004,873
Less: Unearned Income 832,328 180,476 1,021,804
$ 4,095,000 % 1,888,069 $ 5,083,069
Current Portion $ 360,000 $ 308,060 $ 668,069
Noncurrent Portion 3,735,000 1,580,000 5,315,000
$ 4,095,000 $ 1,888,069 $ 5,083,060

Bauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™)

On November 4, 2004 the IDA antered into a lease agreement with the County of
Dauphin for a building for a fifteen year term. The lease requires the County to
make payments equal to the principal and interest of the IDA’'s Series of 2004
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note used for the purchase of the building. The
County has the right to purchase the leased buildings and equipment for the sum
of one dollar, plus the amount, if any, required to pay in full the outstanding
balance due under the IDA's Series of 2004 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note.
The amount of the lease outstanding at September 30, 2012 is $121,454.

On April 5, 2006, the IDA entered info a lease agreement with the County of
Dauphin for a building for a twenty year term. The lease requires the County fo
make payments equal to the principal and interest of the |DA's Series of 2006
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note used for the purchase of the building. The
County has the right to purchase the leased building for the sum of one dollar,
plus the amount, if any, required to pay in full the outstanding balance due under
the IDA’s Series of 2006 Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note. The amount of the
lease outstanding at September 30, 2012 is $692,328.

On August 15, 2007 the IDA entered into a lease agreement with County of
Dauphin for a building for a fwenty year term. The lease requires the County to
make payments equal to the principal and interest of the IDA’s Series of 2007A
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note. The County has the right to purchase the
leased building for the sum of one dollar, plus the amount, if any, required to pay
in full the outstanding balance due under the IDA’'s Series of 2007A Guaranteed
Lease Revenue Note. The amount of the lease outstanding at September 30,
2012 is $338,975.
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Component Unit - Direct Financing Leases (Continued)
Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (*IDA™ (Confinued)

On November 29, 2007 the IDA entered into 2 lease agreement with the County
of Dauphin for a building for a twenty-year ferm. The lease requires the County
to make payments squal to the principal and interest of the IDA's Series 2007
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note. The County has the right to purchase the
leased building for the sum of one dollar, pius the amount, if any, required to pay
in full the outstanding balance due under the IDA's Series 2007 Guaranteed
Lease Revenue Note. The amount of the lease outstanding at September 30,
2011 is $748,377.

Following is a schedule of minimum lease payments for the direct financing
leases:
Years Ending

September 30,

2013 $ 229,687
2014 229,688
2015 181,133
2016 171,422
2017 171,422
2018 — 2022 857,112
2023 - 2027 740,702
$ 2,681,166

The net investment in direct financing lease consists of the following at
September 30, 2012:

Total Minimum
Lease Payments

to be Received $ 2,581,166
Less: Unearned interest

income {679,032)

$ 1,802,134

Current Portion 3 144,262

Noncurrent Portion 1,757,872

$ 1,902,134
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CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in capital lease obligations for the year ended
December 31, 2012:

Beginning Ending Amounts Due
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Within One Year
Governmental Activities
Capital Leases $ 5078985 $ 817,977 § (911138) $ 4985824 § 802,550
Total Capital Lease
Obligations $ 5078985 % 817977 % (911,138) $ 4985824 § 802,550
Business-Type Activities
Capital Leases
Human Services Building $ 4445000 § - $ (350,000) 3 4,095,000 $ 360,000
911 EMA 84,546 - {59,076) 25,470 25,470
Total Capital Lease
Obligations $ 4520546 § - $ (400,076) $ 4120470 % 385,470

Obligations under capital lease consists of a lease payable to the General Authority for
the Human Services Building Fund that is accounted for as an Enterprise Fund bearing
interest at rates from 1.00% to 3.875% and for the Chestnut Street Building that is
accounted for in the Governmeritai Activities bearing interest rates from 1.00% to 3.40%,
both of which were refunded in 2009. As a result of the refunding, the Human Service
Building Fund recognized a loss of $124,319 that is being amortized on the interest
method over the term of the lease. The balance of the deferred loss at December 31,
2012 is $79,206. Also, as a result of the Chestnut Street refunding, the County
recognized a loss of $68,278 that is being amortized on the interest method over the term
of the lease. The balance of the deferred loss at December 31, 2012 is $34,577 and is
included in deferred interest from refunding on the Statement of Net Position.

The County also has four lease payables to the Industrial Development Authority for
District Justice Offices that are accounted for in the Governmental Activities bearing
interest rates from 3.46% to 4.89%. The County has also entered into capital lease
agreements for computer equipment, office and other equipment, and a security system
which are accounted for in the Governmental Activities. Alsa, the County has entered
into capital lease agreements for computer equipment in the 911 EMA Fund that is
accounted for as an Enterprise Fund.

In 2012, the County entered into four new capital leases all in Governmental Activities.
Two leases were for IT Equipment in the amounts of $85,178 and $600,726, another for
a Digital Copier in the amount of $20,188, and the other lease was for IT Security
Equipment in the amount of $111,885.
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The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease

agreements, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of
December 31, 2012:

Human Services 911

Years Ending Governmental Building EMA
December 31 Activities Enterprise Fund Fund
2013 $ 972,666 $ 494,226 $ 26,677
2014 887,876 491,126 -
2015 729,012 492,001 -
2016 673,303 490,751 -
2017 539,765 494,201 -
2018-2022 1,337,947 2,465,031 -
2023-2027 835,571 - -
2028-2031 82,527 - -
Total Minimum

Lease Payments 6,058,667 4,927,336 26,677
Less: Amount

Representing Interest 1,072,843 832,336 1,207
Total Present Value of Net

Minimum Lease Payments 4,985,824 4,095,000 25,470
Less: Amounts Due

within One Year 802,550 360,000 25,470

$ 4,183,274 $ 3,735,000 % -

The assets associated with the capital leases are shown as Leasehold Assets within the
Capital Asset Note (See Note 6).
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CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS {CONTINUED)

Component Unit- Capital Lease Obligation

Dauphin County General Authority

In 2009, Dauphin Highlands purchased golf carts under a long-term lease
agreement that is classified as a capital lease. As of December 31, 2012, the
Authority includes these golf carts at a cost of $159,800, with accumulated
depreciation of $81,802.

tn 2012, Dauphin Hightands purchased an aerator and sweeper under a long-
term lease agreement that is classified as a capital lease. As of December 31,
2012, the General Authority includes this equipment at a cost of $40,174, with
accumulated depreciation of $5,739.

The future minimum payments under this capital lease and the present value of
the minimum lease payments at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31 Total
2013 $ 45,065
2014 8,971
2015 8,971
2016 8,970
Taotal Minimum lease payments 71,977
Less amount representing interest (5,280)
Present value of future minimum
lease payments $ 66,697

LINE OF CREDIT

Component Unit — Line of Credit

Case Management Unit

At June 30, 2012, CMU had an $800,000 line of credit with a bank secured by all
accounts receivable which expires December 10, 2048. Interest on outstanding
borrowings is due monthly at .5% above the bank’s prime rate, which was 4.00%
at June 30, 2012. There were $4,240,000 in borrowings on the.line and
$4,020,000 in repayments for the year ended June 30, 2012. The principle
balance on the line as of June 30, 2012 was $220,000.

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority

During 2008, the IDA entered into a $50,000 line of credit with PNC Bank,
secured by gross revenues from the Trinity Harvest LLC project, which expires
on September 1, 2013. Interest on outstanding borrowing is due monthiy at the
Lenders Prime Rate of 3.25% on September 30, 2012 less 2%. The outstanding
principle balance on the Line at September 30, 2012 was $29,767.
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FUND BALANCE / NET POSITION

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on
classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the
County is bound to heonor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the
respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the
governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable

Prepaid items § 1,145633

PCHIPC Settlement 9,363,166

Incinerator loan 34,746,500

Gaming loan 3,700,000

Liquid fuels loan 271,818 $ 49,227 117
Restricted

Low income housing 842,480

Gaming 17,694,747

Capital projects 5,619,709

Fort Hunter trust fund 1,001,827

State grant 311,338

Liguid fuels 1,073,172

Domestic relations 1,279,446

Weatherization 33,887

Hazardous materials 241,012

Aging 105,408

Drug act forfeited - state 233,612

Drug act forfeited - federal 339,599 28,776,237
Assigned

2013 budgeted deficit 13,586,946
Unassigned

Avaiiable for any purpose 11,683,415

§ 103,273,715

The restrictions of net position included in the Fiduciary Funds are as follows:

Fiduciary Funds
Future payments of members' benefits $ 227432887
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FUND BALANCES / NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

Component Units-Reserved Fund Balance/Net Position

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (“DCEDC")

The restrictions of net position included in the financial statements represent
portions of net position that are restricted for various purposes and are not
available for the payment of other subsequent expenditures. The following
restrictions are included in the financial statements.

Tourism and regional promaotion $ 3,347,756
State of the County event 9,247
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 1,474
Team PA Calling Program 14,783

$ 3,373,260

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
Interfund receivable and payable balances consist of the following at December 31, 2012:

Due From Other Funds Due to Other Funds

Govemmental Funds:

General Fund § 8,888,361 $ -
Special Revenue Funds

Chifdren and Youth Families Fund - 7,758,942
ARRA Fund - 89,084
Weatherization - 57,509
Total Special Revenue Funds - 7,905,625
Total Governmental Funds 8,888,361 7,905,625

Proprietary Funds :

Enterprise Funds:
Health Choices - 167,618
911 - 875,118
Total Proprietary Funds : - 082,736
$ 8,888,361 $ 8,888,361

Component Unit-Interfund Receivables and Pavables

The County utllizes a pooled operating fund to enhance investment retum, therefore, interfund
receivables and payables are recorded to recognize amounts held by the General Fund in the
pooled account on behalf of other funds. [n addition, the General Fund has paid expenses on
behalf of other funds, therefore, a corresponding interfund receivable and payabie has been
recorded.

Due From Component Due to Primary Government

Dauphin County Conservation District § 164,578 § 164,578
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Interfund Transfers are executed as a result of the requirements for certain funds to fund
a portion of the expenditures or expenses of other funds. Interfund operating transfers

are as follows:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds
Mental Health/Inteilectual Disabilities Fund
Children and Youth Families Fund
Domestic Relations
Weatherization Program Fund
State Grants Fund
Human Services Development Fund
Aging Fund
Drug and Alcohol Fund
Hazardous Materials Fund
Liquid Fuels Fund
ARRA Fund
Gaming Fund

Total Special Revenue Funds

Capital Projects Fund
Total Governmental Funds
Proprietary Funds :
Enterprise Funds:
Health Choice Fund
Emergency 911
Solid Waste

Total Proprietary Funds

Component Unit - Interfund Operating Transfers

Transfers from Transfers to
Other Funds Other Funds
$ 6,050,958 § 15,607,709

040,374 26,263
10,848,186 2,883,611
2,140,487 -
173,316 -
370 50,000
- 3,014
90,000 19,535
143,878 46,707
300 -
2,319 -
30,176 9,251
- 2,944 153
14,369,406 5,083,434
368,285 -
20,788,649 21,581,143
- 87,829
650,323 -
240,000 -
890,323 87,829
$ 21678972 $ 21,678,972

Transfers from
Component Units

Dauphin County Conservation District

3 619,624

Transfers to

Primary
Government

$ 619624
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PROPERTY TAXES

Real Estate Properly Taxes

Real estate property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on January 1, based
on the assessed value listed as of the prior December 31 for all real property located in
the County. Assessed values are established by the County Assessment Board at
approximately 100% of calculated market value. Taxes are billed on or about February 1,
payable under the fcllowing terms: 2% discount, February 1 through March 31; face
amount, April 1 through July 31, and 5% penalty June 1 through July 31, and a 10%
penalty from August 1 through December 31. The County bills its own property taxes,
which are collected by elected tax collectors. Real estate property taxes levied for 2012
are recorded as receivables, net of esfimated uncollectibles. The net receivables
collected during 2012 and expected to be collected within the first sixty (60) days of 2013
are recognized as revenue in 2012. Net receivables estimated fo be collectible
subsequent to March 31 are reflected in deferred revenue. Prior years’ levies are
recorded using these same principles, and remaining receivables are annually
reevaluated as fo collectability. :

The rate of taxation in 2012 was 6.876 mills, for general purposes. In addition, a special
tax of .35 mills was approved for the County Library System.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Component Units —~ Segment Information for Enterprise Funds

Pauphin County General Authority

The General Authority has issued revenue bonds to finance various activities. The
nonmajor enterprise funds consist of the County Building Bond Fund and 100 Chestnut
Street Fund. However, investors in the revenue bonds rely solely on the revenue
generated by the individual activities or the related guarantee, if applicable, for
repayment. Summary financial information for the funds is presented below:;

Total
County 100 Chestnut Nonmaijor
Buitding Street Enterprise
Bond Fund Fund Funds

CONDENSED
BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS )

Current assets $ 360,000 $ 321,004 $ 681,904

Noncurrent investment

in direct financing
lease 3,735,000 1,580,000 5,315,000

Restricted assets 66,922 1,005,719 1,072,641
Total assets $ 4161,822 § 2907623 §$ 7,069,545
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities $ 444700 $ 729777 $ 1174477

Noncurrent liabilities 3,735,000 1,580,000 5,315,000
Total liabilities 4,179,700 2,309,777 6,489,477
NET POSITION

Restricted - 507,846 597,846

Unrestricted {17.778) - (17,778}
Total net position {17,778) 597,846 580,068

Total liabiiities and net
position % 4161922 § 2,907,623 $ 7,069,545
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Component Units — Segment Information for Enterprise Funds (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority {Continued}

Total
CONDENSED County 100 Chestnut Nonmajor
STATEMENT OF Building Sireet Enterprise
REVENUES, Bond Fund Fund Funds
EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET
POSITION
Operating revenues $ 161,232 § 342,060 % 503,282
Operating expenses {159,482} (341,736) (501,218)
Operating Income 1,750 314 2,064
Net Position:
Beginning of year {19,528) 587,532 £78,004
End of year 5 (17,778) § 597,846 $ 580,068
CONDENSED
STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS
Net cash provided by
{used ink
Operating activities $ 489,468 § 323170 % 812,638
Investing activities 7 14,902 14,909
Capital and related
financing - (65,704) (55,704)
Noncapital financing
activities (489,475) {295,000) (784,475)
Net decrease - {12,632) (12,632)
Cash and cash
equivalents —baginning - 27,919 27,919

Cash and cash
equivalents — ending 3 - 8 15,287 §& 15,287
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LEGAL COMPLIANCE
Net Position Deficit

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the following funds had a deficit net position
balance:

Enterprise Funds:
Human Service Building Fund $ 764,369

The above deficits resulted from additional expenses that will be paid through
contributions by the General Fund.

Component Unit — Net Position Deficit
Dauphin County General Authority

The following funds of the General Authority had negative net position as of
December 31, 2012:

Fund Amount
Dauphin Highlands Goif Course $ 8,417,928
County Building Bonds 17,778
Riverfrant Cffice Center 11,485,294
Pittsburgh Hyatt Hotel and Conference Center 24,092,589

Revenue, receipts, and property of each fund and the guarantee of debt, if
applicable, are pledged as collateral on the bonds and are not cross
collateralized.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

Plan Description

The Employees’ Retirement Trust Fund Plan (the “Plan") is a confributory defined benefit
single employer retirement plan covering substantially all full-time employees of the
County and part-time employees exceeding 1,000 hours per year. The Plan is included
in the financial statements of the County as a pension trust fund. The financial
statements of the Refirement Trust Fund are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Plan members and employer contributions to the Plan are recognized in the
period in which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.
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EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Plan Description {Continued)

At December 31, 2012, the date of the latest valuation, employees covered by the Plan
consisted of the foilowing:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Receiving Benefits 1,019
Terminated Employees Entitled to Benefits but not yet Receiving Them 197
Active Plan Participants 1,624

Total Membership 2,740

Employees are required to contribute a portion of their salaries (5% of earnings in 2012)
to the Plan and employees can elect to contribute up to 15% of their salaries. Per Act 96
of 1971, as amended, contribution requirements of the Plan members and the County
may be amended by the General Assembly of the Commonweaith of Pennsylvania.
Interest is credited each year in an amount allowed by the County Retirement Board to
each member's account. Administrative costs of the Plan are financed through
investment earnings.

The County does not issue a publicly available financial report for the Plan.
Investments

All investments of the pension trust fund are reported at fair value. Investments that do
not have an established market vaiue are reported at estimated fair value.

Funding Status and Progress

As of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 78.3
percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $282.9 million, and the
actuarial value of assets was $221.5 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued
liability {(UAAL) of $61.3 million. The actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the
actuarial accrued liability was 78.3%. The covered payroll was $75.9 million, and the
ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 80.8%.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the aciuarial accrued
liability for benefits.

The entry age normal method is used to determine the annual required contribution for
the County. Under this method, an actuarial accrued liability is determined as the
actuarial present value of projected benefits for all participants minus the actuarial
present value of future normal costs. The normal cost is determined as the annual
amount required to fund between entry age and assumed exit age the actuarial present
value of projected benefits for each active participant under the assumed retirement age.
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NOTE 21: EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
The annual required contribution was determined based on the most recent annual
actuarial valuation dated December 31, 2012. Significant actuarial assumptions used
include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.5% per
year compounded annually; {b) projected salary increases of 4.5% per year, and (c) an
inflation rate of 3.00%. The actuarial value of assets equals the market value of assets
adjusted for unrecognized gains and losses from prior years. Gains and losses are
determined by calculating the expected asset return based on Plan assumptions and
subtracting the actual Plan return. Gains and losses are phased in 20% per year over a
S-year period. The actuarial value of assets is adjusted, if necessary, to fall within a
corridor of 80%-120% of market value of assets.
Percentage
of
Year Annual Interest on Annual Change In
Ended Required Net Pension Net
December  Contribution Pension ARC Pension County Cost Pension
31, {ARC) Asset Adjustment Cost Contribution  Confributed Asset
2012 $ 8493038 $ (1.438)  $(2304) § 8,493,903 § 8,493,038 95.99% $ 865
2041 10,293,402 (1,507) {2,409) 10,294,384 10,293,492 90.99% 202
2010 10,118,006 (1,578) {2,532) 10,118,960 10,118,006 80.99% 954

Legally Required Reserves

At December 31, 2012, the County has a balance of $60,322,197 in the Members’
Annuity Reserve Account. This account is the fotal of the contributions deducted from the
salaries of the active and terminated vested members of the retirement system and the
IRC 414(h)}(2) pickup contributions together with the interest additions as of
December 31, 2012. Since these accumulations represent the present value as of
December 31, 2012 of future benefits, the reserve balance and liability are equal and this
reserve is fuily funded.

The County has a balance of $52,080,200 in the County Annuity Reserve Account as of
December 31, 2012. This balance and the amounts expecied to be credited in the future,
plus investment earnings thereon, represent the reserves set aside for the payment of the
County’s share of the retirement allowances. This is the account out of which regular
interest is credited to the member's annuity and retired members’ reserve account,
administrative expenses may be paid and the pension obligations of the County are
funded.

When a County annuity is scheduled to commence for a particular member, sufficient
monies are transferred from the County Annuity Reserve Account to the retired members'
reserve account to provide for such County annuities actually entered upon. Thus, this
reserve is always fully funded.

The Retired Members’ Reserve Account is the account out of which monthly retirement
allowances including cost-of-living increases and death benefits are paid. The balance in
this account was $96,483,919 as of December 31, 2012.

Net
Pension
Asset
$(18,325)
{19,190}
{20,082)
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Plan Description. The County sponsors a post-employment benefits plan that covers
health and life insurance benefits for eligible retirees. The County provides health and
life insurance coverage for eligible retirees under the terms of agreements with the
unions that represent them. Groups of retirees that are eligible for OPEB are: Shaffner,
Court Related Teamster, Court AFSME, Probation Officers, Prison Guards, PSSU, CIT,
and Captains and Lieutenants. The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial
report.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of the County are established and may be
amended through future union negotiations. The Plan does require contributions from
some retirees. Retiree contributions depend upon the terms of the various union
contracts. The County funds the Plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. For 2012, the County
contributed $1,061,577 to the plan for current premiums.

Annual OPEB Cost and MNet OPEB Obligation. The County's annual other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the County’s annual
OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually confributed to the plan, and changes in the
County's net OPEB obligation to the Plan:

Governmental
Activities

Annual required contribution $ 1,807,701
Interest on net OPEB obiligation 89,519
Adjustment to annual required contribution (143,897)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 1,763,323
Estimated contributions made (1,061,577)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 701,746
Net OPEB obligation — beginning of year 2,487,970
Net OPERB obligation — end of year $ 3,189,716

The County’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contribution to the
plan, and the net OPEB obiligation for 2012 were as follows:

Fiscal FPercentage of Net

Year Annual Annual OPEB OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/2012 $ 1,763,323 60.20% $3,189,716
12/31/2011 1,779,734 48.30% 2,487,970

12/31/2010 1,417,108 67.70% 1,567,886
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of January 1, 2011 the most recent actuarial
valuation date, the ptan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$14,942,647 and there were no assets, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $14,942,647. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan} was $75,798,808, and the ratlo of the UAAL to the covered payroll
was 19.7%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost frend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and
the annual required confributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and the pfan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing costs between the employer and the plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

In the January 1, 2011, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return, which is the
expected long-term investment yield on the investments that are expected to be used fo
finance the payments of benefits, a health care cost trend rate of 10% initially, and
declines rapidly to an ultimate rate of 5%. The UAAL is being amortized using the level
dollar method over a period of 30 years on an open basis.

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded asa
Valuation Vaiue of Liability AAL Funded Coversd % of
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payrell Covered
Payrall

1/1/2007 $ - $ 6,868,259 § 6,868,259 0.00% $ 63,649,794 10.8%
1/1/2009 $ - $11,290,422 $11,290,422 0.00% $ 71,264,760 15.8%
1/1/2011 $ - $14.942,647 $14,942,647 0.00% $ 75,798,908 19.7%
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COMPENSATED ABSENCES

County policy applicable to vacation and sick pay for employees is as follows:

Vacation Pay

Time accrues at various rates based on length of service. Employees are encouraged to
uiilize earned vacation time by December 31 of each period; however, current practice
allows for the carryover of 20 unused vacation days. Time carried over in this manner is
considered vested.

Sick Pay

Employees earn 1% sick days for each month of service or 15 days per year. An
employee may accumulate up fo a maximum of 200 days. Time carried over in this
manner is considered vested.

Applicable GASB pronouncements require accrual of sick and vacation pay that meet
certain specific conditions. The County has determined that such conditions apply to
vested vacation pay and accumulated sick pay of Governmental Funds and the
Proprietary Fund. To the extent vacation and sick pay liabilities are expected to be
incurred, they are accrued in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements.

LEASES

QOperating Leases

The County leases office space under several operating leases with expiration dates
through 2030. '

Future minimum lease payment requirements under the various leases are as follows:

2013 $ 1,145,853
2014 675,828
2015 864,852
2016 696,492
2017 703,760
2018 - 2022 3,667,788
2023 - 2027 991,020
2028 — 2030 91,713

Total minimum payments required $ 8,657,306

Total rental expense for these leases during 2012 approximated $1,782,410.
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Component Units — Leases

Case Management Unit

The Case Management Unit leased its principal office space. Rent expense
totaled $652,045 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The lease agreement
was terminated and then renewed for a 11 year period ending in 2023. Monthly
rent increases 1.90% at the beginning of each year,

CMU also has a lease on the Elizabethville, Pennsylvania office. The lease
agreement is for a period of twenty-five years through 2033. Rent for this lease
is based on a set price per square foot per year. These payments range from
$45,484 - $69,632 and are payable monthly.

Future minimum lease payments under the above leases are as follows:

Year ending
June 30, Amount

2013 $ 501,751
2014 528,081
2015 538,435
2016 548,983
2017 559,732
2018-2022 2,960,182
2023-2027 878,355
2028-2032 338,034
2033 35,080
$6,978,633

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (“DCEDC")
The DCEDC leases office space from the Dauphin County Industrial

Development Authority under a year-to-year operating lease. Minimum rental
payments at December 31, 2012, are as follows:

2013 $32,692
Total $32,692

Rental expense totaled $32,692 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Component Units - Related Party Transactions

Dauphin County General Authority

The General Authority is a component unit of Dauphin County. The General
Authority has entered into certain lease financing arrangements with the County.
Lease payments from the County fo the General Authority for 2012 were
$585,132.

The County has been paying rent in excess of the lease requirement to the
General Authority since 2000. The total amount of these overpayments is
$415,876 at December 31, 2012 and is reported as deferred revenue on the
balance sheet. The County had a claim on such overpayments until February
17, 2010, when an indemnity agreement was signed.

The General Authority was awarded a 2011 Local Share Gaming Grant and a
2012 Local Share Gaming Grant from Dauphin County. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, the General Authority incurred $55,004 of grant-related
expenses.

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™

The County of Dauphin pays for all significant management and administrative
costs required fo operate the IDA on a day-to-day basis. The IDA's management
and support staff are employees of the County and other significant operating
expenses such as telephone service, office maintenance and insurance are paid
for by the County. The amount of the County’s support and the corresponding
operating costs are not reported as revenue and expenses in the iDA’s financial
statements. The County aiso provides significant operating revenue, primarily
through Gaming distributions passed-through to IDA. Revenue from the County
was $11,868,139 in 2012, representing 94.9% of total operating revenue.

See Notes 8 and 11 for additional information concerning long-term debt
transactions and direct financing leases with the County.

The IDA shares management, support staff and office space, and performs
various administrative and program functions in conjunction with the Dauphin
County Department of Community and Economic Development (DCDCED) which
is an infernal department of the County and the Dauphin County Economic
Development Corporation (DCEDC), a non-profit corporation created by the
County to partner in real estate development projects and to channel grant
funding to communities and organizations in need of community and economic
development assistance. DCEDC leases office space from the IDA under a year
to year operating lease. As of September 30, 2012, IDA had earned, but not yet
received $24,519 in lease payments.

The IDA is not owned in part or in total by DCEDC or DCDCED, and has no
ownership interest in either organization. The IDA and DCEDC are both
governed by the same Board of Directors which Is appointed by the
Commissioners of Dauphin County.
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Component Units - Refated Party Transactions (Continued)

Case Management Unit

The Case Management Unit is a component unit of the County. The operating
lease, described in Note 24, is held with the County and the lease payments are
at market value.

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation {("DCEDC")

DCEDC is administered by the County of Dauphin (“County™ through the
Dauphin County Department of Community and Economic Development.
DCEDC is not owned in part or in total by the County. However, the
Commissioners of Dauphin County have the sole power fo appoint members of
the Corporation’s Board of Directors.

The County pays for all significant management and administrative costs
required to operate the Corporation on a day-to-day basis. DCEDC's
management and support staff are employees of the County.

The County also provides significant operating revenue, primarily through Hotel
Tax distributions passed-through to DCEDC. Revenue from the County was
$2,140,138 in 2012, representing 55% of total revenue.

At December 31, 2012 due from related party was comprised of the following
pass-through items:

2% Hotel Tax Distribution $ 29,910
1% Hotel Tax Distribution 149,574
$179,484

The amounts reported above are considered by management to be collectible
and accordingly, no allowance for uncollectible receivables was considered
necessary.

The DCEDC shares management, support staff and office space with the
Dauphin County Department of Community and Economic Development and with
the Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority. The DCEDC is not owned
in part or in total by the IDA, has no interest ownership therein, and receives no
revenue from the IDA. However, the IDA and DCEDC are governed by the same
Board of Directors, which is appointed by the Commissioners of Dauphin County.

The IDA acts as property management for the Market Square Plaza Parking
owned by DCEDC. In this capacity, the IDA collects parking rent fees and remits
such fees to the DCEDC on a pericdic basis. Parking fees for the year ended
December 31, 2012 were $121,103.

NOTE 26: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A

In the normal course of business, there are various claims and suits pending
against the County and its elected officials. Management is of the opinion that
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position at December 31, 2012.
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NOTE 26: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

B.

In 2009, the County entered into a contract for a Night Court / Central Court
Project. The contract value approximated $6,301,851 of which $5,130,399 has
been expended at December 31, 2012.

In 2009, the County entered into a contract for a Female Work Release Center
Project. The contract value approximated $5,613,840 of which $5,484,634 has
been expended at December 31, 2012.

In 2009, the County entered into a contract for a Juvenile Court Project. The
contract vaiue approximated $2,811,427 of which $2,782,578 has been
expended at December 31, 2012.

During 2009, the County made the initial payment on the Harrisburg Incinerator
Debt after defaults by the Harrisburg Authority (the “Authority”) and the City of
Harrisburg (the “City”). The County is the second guarantor on a portion of the
facility's debt. The County has paid a total of $51,885,878 from 2009 through
2012 as a result of these defaults. The amount is comprised of $17,139,378 of
debt payments made by the County General Fund on behalf of the Authority and
the City and a $34,746,500 payment that was made by the County with the
issuance of the 2010 Note (See Note 8). The County has recorded a loss and an
allowance for uncollectible amounts for $17,139,378 in the financials (See Note
34) therefore resulting in a net receivable due in the amount of $34,746,500 in
the financial statements. In addition, the County has reflected the $34,746,500
as nonspendable fund balance in the financial statements (See Note 14).

Component Unit-Commitments and Contingencies

Dauphin County General Authority

Payments in Lieu of Taxes and Real Estate Taxes

The General Authority, as part of its construction of the Hyatt Hotel Project,
committed to make payments in lieu of property taxes to the County of Allegheny
in return for exempting the property from real estate taxes. This payment in lieu
of taxes (PILOT) will be made from the respective funds if sufficient resources
exist to make such payments are available, on an annual basis, from the
respective funds revenues after meeting operating costs and debt service
payments. The PILOTs for the Hyatt Hotel Project have been accrued for the
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2008, 2007, 2008,
2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 in the amount of $460,000, $537,000, $614,000,
$680,000, $767,000, $767,000, $767,040, $767,040, $767,000, $767,000
$767,000, $767,000, and $767,000, respectively.

Proiect Viability

The continued operation of the Dauphin Highlands Golf Course is dependent on
the Administrative Fund providing working capital to fund any deficits created by
operations of this golf course. The General Authority’s Administrative Fund has
provided, and intends to continue to provide funds for working capital needs of
the Dauphin Highlands Golf Course. The Administrative Fund provided $116,954
of working capital advances during 2012 to the Dauphin Highlands Golf Course.
As of December 31, 2012, $75,000 had been repaid to the Administrative Fund.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Component tnit-Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)
Project Viability (Continued)

If the General Authority fails to generate sufficient revenues to pay debt service
on the Series A of 2011 and the Series B of 2011, or ceases revenue generating
operations, or if other monies set aside for such purposes are insufficient, the
County will be required to pay principal and interest on such bonds when due
pursuant to the County Bond Guarantee Agreement among the County, the
Authority, and the frustee for the bonds. The Dauphin Highlands Golf Course
has incurred substantial accumulated losses, which have resulted in cash flow
difficulties. Throughout 2012, Dauphin Highlands has made a concerted effort to
better market the property, in conjunction with substantial cost-cutting measures.
The Authority continues to work on maximizing the revenue and controlling
expenses of Dauphin Highfands. The General Authority entered into a contract
with a management agency subsequent to year-end to try and increase revenues
and limit expenses. The General Authority will continue to pursue the sale of the
golf course, “consistent with our fiduciary responsibility.”

The Pittsburgh Hyatt Hotel and Conference Center project viability is dependent
upon the facility maintaining sufficient operating cash flows to meet debt service
paymenis. Operations of the facility commenced June 29, 2000, and the bond
proceeds included a working capital reserve that approximated eighteen (18)
months of working capital necessary for operations. In 2002, funds sufficient fo
meet the debt service payments were transferred from the Construction Fund. in
2003, the facility generated sufficient cash flows from operations to meet debt
service requirements on the facility. However, in January 2004, an unscheduled
withdrawal was made on the Bond Redemption Improvement Fund In order to
satisfy the January 2004 interest payment. The operating revenues of the facility
were sufficient to meet the July 2004 and January 2005 debt service payments.
However, the Authecrity made unscheduled withdrawals from the Bond Reserve
Fund in order to satisfy the July 2005, January 2006 and July 2006 debt service
payments. Under the trust indenture, the Authority has within 12 months of such
withdraw to replenish the Bond Reserve Fund. At December 31, 20086, the
Authority was in technical default because the Bond Reserve Fund had not been
replenished as required by the trust indenture in the amount of approximately
$750,000. On July 1, 2007 the Debt Service Reserve Fund has been fully funded
in accordance with the terms of the Indenture. The operating revenues of the
facility were sufficient to meet the January 2007, July 2007, and January 2008
debt service payments. On July 1, 2008, a total of $384,000 was transferred out
of the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund because it was believed that the
facility had not generated sufficient cash flows from operations to meet the July
1, 2008 debt service requirements. However, there were sufficient cash flows to
cover the July 1, 2008 debt service requirements prior to the transfer from the
Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund. A total of $625,000 remained in the
Bond Fund after the July 1, 2008 debt service payment was made. This amount
remained in the Bond Fund and was used to service the debt payment made on
January 2, 2009.
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NOTE 286: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Component Unit-Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Dauphin County Generai Authority (Continued)

Project Viability (Continued)

On July 1, 2009, a total of $653,186 was transferred out of the Bond Reserve

Fund because it was believed that the facility had not generated sufficient cash

flows from operations to meet the July 1, 2009 debt service requirements.

However, there were sufficient cash flows to cover July 1, 2009 debt service

requirements prior to the transfer from the Bond Reserve Fund. This amount

remained in the Bond Fund and was used to service the debt payment made on

January 4, 2010. On January 4, 2010, $776,474 was transferred out of the Bond

Reserve Fund in order to meet the debt service requirement. On July 1, 2010,

$1,623,115 was transferred from the Bond Reserve Fund and $92 was

transferred from the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund in order to meet

the July 1, 2010 debt service requirements. However, a balance of $790,000

remained in the Bond Fund after the July 1, 2010 payment, which was used to

service the debt payment made on January 3, 2011. As of December 31, 2010

the ending balances outstanding to the Bond Reserve Fund and the BRIF were

$1,011,523 and $92, respectively. The outstanding balance and activity for the

year ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012 are outlined below:

Due to Bond
Due to Bond Redemption and

2011 Activity Reserve Fund Improvement Fund Total
Balance, December 31, 2010 kN 1,011,523 $ o2 $ 1,011,615
Borrowed for January 3, 2011 payment 1,739,224 1,980 1,741,214
Monthly payment of $64,706 on January 1, 2010 borrowing (64,706) - (64,7086)
Monthly payment of $135,260 on July 1, 2010 borrowing (946,815) - {946,815)
Borrowed for July 1, 2011 payment 2,311,450 - 2,311,450
Monthly payment of $144,935 on January 3, 2011 borrowing {1,594,285) - (1,594,285)
Monthly payment of $192,621 on July 1, 2011 borrowing (983,105) - {963,105)
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 1,483,286 § 2,082 $ 1,495,368
2012 Activity
Balance, Becember 31, 2011 3 1,493,286 L 2,082 $ 1,495,368
Borrowed for January 3, 2012 payment 2,442,730 - 2,442 730
Monthly payment of $144,935 on January 3, 2011 borrowing (144,935) - (144,935)
Monthly payment of $192,621 on July 1, 2011 borrowing (1,348,351} - {1,348,351)
Borrowed for July 1, 2012 payment 2,588,295 - 2,588,295
Monthily payment of $203,561 on January 3, 2012 borrawing (2,239,171) - (2,239,171}
Monthly payment of $215,691 on July 1, 2012 borrowing (933,459) - {933,459)
Balance, December 31, 2012 % 1,858,395 $ 2,082 $ 1,860,477
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Component Unit-Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Dauphin County General Authority {Continued)
Project Viability (Continued)

Throughout the course of the year, the General Authority was unable to make
timely payments to repay the Bond Reserve Fund for various debt service
borrowings. The first occurrence was the final repayment of $192,621 for the
July 1, 2011 borrowing. This repayment occurred during August and September
2012, outside the one year window of repayment and was considered a technical
default. The second occurrence was related to the final monthly payment of
$203,561, refated to the January 1, 2012 borrowing. This amount was due in
January of 2013 and was not repaid by the General Authority by the required
payment date. Also, the final payment made to the Bond Reserve Fund during
December 2012 was $70,695. This amount is not equivalent to the required
monthly transfer of $215,691 that is required to pay back the July 1, 2012
borrowing; however, an additional transfer of $129,438 was made February 28,
2013 in an effort to fully replenish the Bond Reserve Fund for the corresponding
borrowing within one year.

As of April 30, 2012, there were not sufficient revenues available in the Bond
Fund to replenish the Bond Reserve Fund for repayment of borrowings. Any
available funds in the Revenue Fund on April 30, 2012 were paid to the Manager
as a partial payment against operating expenses. As a result, the General
Authority undertook an information filing through the Municipal Securities Rule
Making Board’s Access system (EMMA) on or about May 16, 2012. The full
amount of the required reimbursement was paid in May- 2012 with the priority of
payments detailed in Section 6.02 of the trust indenture.

At December 31, 2012, $1,858,395 remained due to the Bond Reserve Fund and
$2,082 remained due to the Bond Redemption and Improvement Fund.
However, an additional $2,588,288 was fransferred out of the Bond Reserve
Fund in order to meet the debt service requirement on January 2, 2013.

In 2012, the Pittsburgh Hyatt Hotel and Conference Center was unable to meet
debt covenant requirement 6.1, which states that hotel revenues must be
deposited into a Revenue Fund at an amount at least equal to 130% of the
Annual Debt Service Payment. At present, there is no indication that the majority
bondholder will invoke remedies prescribed under the trust indenture.

During October 2012, the General Autharity issued a request for proposal (RFP)
for the disposition of the Pittsburgh Hyatt Hotel and Conference Center. As a
result of the RFP, a letter of intent was entered into with a prospective buyer and
the General Authority is working toward the execution of a Purchase and Sale
Agreement.



NOTE 26:

NOTE 27:

Page 119
COUNTY OF DAUPHIN, PENNSYLVANIA :
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

Component Unit-Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Dauphin County General Authority (Continued)

Cease and Desist Order

In April 2004, the Securities and Exchange Commission entered a cease and
desist order against the General Authority alleging that the General Authority had
omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements made,
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in
connection with the offer, sale or purchase of a series of bonds. The General
Authority has consented to the entry of the order imposing remedial sanctions
under the Securities Act of 1933 to cease and desist or causing any violation or
future violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, which does not
include any monetary fine or sanction.

Case Management Unit

As a result of a DCED review, DCED is questioning CMU’s expenditures of
approximately $150,000 of an ARRA grant they received, for noncompliance with
the grant requirements. CMU is contesting these findings and proceedings could
take over a year to resolve. This amount has not been accrued in the financial
statements as of June 30, 2012, as management believes they will receive a
favorable outcome.

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA™

The IDA has contractual commitments at September 30, 2012, of $7,791,581 for
projects directly assisting businesses and municipalities county-wide in the areas
of both economic and community development.

ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

Component Units — Administrative Fees

Dauphin County General Authority

Provisions of the financing documents of the bond issues require administrative
fees fo be paid to the General Authority. For the year ended December 31,
2012, these fees, as paid by each fund, are as follows:

Administrative Fund:

County Building Bonds $ 20,000
Riverfront Office Center 265,596
Chestnut Street 40,844
Dauphin Highlands Golf Course 24,600
Pittshurgh Hyatt Hotel & Conference Center 30,000
Accounting fees 23,845
Bond issuance fees 40,000

Total Administrative Fees $444,685
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HOTEL TAX DISTRIBUTIONS AND RELATED EXPENSES

The Hotel Tax revenues are derived from a hotel room excise tax imposed by the County
of Dauphin. Ordinance No. 3-1999 enacted by the Commissioners imposed a 2% hotel
room excise tax effective January 1, 2001. Ordinance No. 3-2002, which repealed and
replaced Ordinance No. 3-1999, imposed a 3% hotel room excise tax effective April 1,
2002. Ordinance No. 1-2008, which repealed and replaced Ordinance No. 3-2002,
imposed a five-percent hotel room excise tax effective March 1, 2008. The ordinances
were enacted pursuant to 16 P.8. Section 1770.5, an act of the General Assembly of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, which permits the imposition of a 5% hotel tax,
providing for the distribution of 50% of the revenues to the Tourist Promotion Agency and
the separate distribution of the other 50% of the revenue to be distributed for the
purposes of promoting tourism and regionai devefopment.

Of the original 2% hotel tax revenue, the County distributes 20% fo the City of Harrisburg,
70% to the Derry Township Industrial Authority and 10% to DCEDC to be remitted, in full
to the Hershey Harrisburg Region Vacations Bureau (the County's Tourist Promotion
Agency) to be used solely for tourism and regional promotion purposes.

The next 1% hotel tax revenue may be distributed at the discretion of the County
Commissioners, to be used solely for tourism and regional promotion purposes. DCEDC
is the County's sole recipient and administrator of this 1% Hotel Tax revenue. These
funds are required to be kept in an account separate from other funds received by
DCEDC. DCEDC had transfers in from Dauphin County of $2,140,139 for the year
ended December 31, 2012.

Of the remaining 2% hotel tax revenue, the County distributes 50.0% to the Hershey
Harrisburg Region Vacations Bureau {the County's Tourist Promotion Agency) to be used
solely for fourism and regional promotion purposes and 12.50% to the Hershey
Harrisburg Region Vacations Bureau to be used for tourism and regional promotion within
the City of Harrisburg. Derry Township Industrial Authority receives the remaining 37.5%
for the purpose of the Improvement, support, rehabilitation, revitalization or construction
of one or more tourism-related facilities.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING LOAN PROGRAMS

The Home Grant Program and Affordable Housing Program disburse funds in the form of
deferred payment loans for low and moderate income households. The deferred
payment loans are secured by a mortgage on the property. Repayment of the loan is
deferred until the property is sold or until the original occupant moves out. The principal
balance outstanding at December 31, 2012 for these loans totaled $4,104,866. These
outstanding deferred loans have been recorded as receivables at December 31, 2012,
and unearned revenues fotaling $4,104,866 have been recorded to offset the deferred
loans.
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LOANS RECEIVABLE

In 2010, the County entered into a verbal agreement with the Township of Derry (the
“Township”} in which the County would pay the Township's costs associated with the
reconstruction and relocation of County Bridge No. 122. All expenditures related to this
project were incurred in calendar year 2010. On January 26, 2011, the County entered
into a formal loan agreement with the Township in the original amount of $408,948,
adjusted based on final cost allocation to $334,470, at an annual simple interest rate of
1.625% to reimburse the County for the Township’s portion of the costs. The agreement
requires the Township to make annual principal and interest payments of $36,509 to the
County for 10 years beginning in 2012. The amount outstanding on the loan as of
December 31, 2012 is $303,396.

Year Principal Interest Total Bue
2013 $§ 31,578 $ 4,030 $ 36,508
2014 32,002 4,417 36,500
2015 32,613 3,896 36,509
2016 33,143 3,366 36,509
2017 33,682 2,827 36,509
2018-2021 140,288 5,745 146,033

$ 303,306 $ 25181 $ 328,577

On April 9, 2010, the County entered into a loan agreement with the Harrisburg University
of Science and Technology (the “University”) in the amount of $1,000,000 at an annual
fixed rate of 1% for necessary and appropriate operations of the University. The
agreement requires the University to repay the loan within nine months of the date of the
agreement is executed, i.e. on or before December 31, 2010.

On October 21, 2010, the University requested a six month extension to the loan. On
November 17, 2010, the County notified the University that the amended term for
repayment of the loan including interest would be June 30, 2011.

On June 22, 2011, the University requested a second six month extension on the loan as
well as an additional $1,200,000 to pay operating expenses at the same interest rate as
the originat loan. The due date of the loan was amended to December 31, 2011.

On February 29, 2012, the University acknowledged its default on the June 22, 2011
Promissory Note, and requested an additional $1,500,000 to pay debt service. The funds
were disbursed to the University with an extended maturity date of December 31, 2019.

The amount outstanding on the loan at December 31, 2012 is $3,700,000.

Year Principal Interest Total Due

2013 $ - $ ] $ ;
2014 - - -
2015 . - -
2016 - - -
2017 : - -
2018-2019 3,700,000 158,415 3,858 415

$ 3,700,000 $ 158415 $ 3,858,415
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Component Units — Loans Receivable

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority (“IDA”

On April 1, 2007 the IDA entered infc a loan agreement with Tuscano Pizza &
Grill, Inc. in the amount of $100,000 at a fixed interest rate of 6.0%. The
agreement required Tuscano Pizza & Grill, Inc. o make monthly principal and
interest payments of $1,933 to the IDA for 60 consecutive months beginning on
May 1, 2007. In February 2009 this loan agreement was amended, requiring
Tuscano Pizza & Grill to make maonthiy principal and interest payments of $1,007
for 84 consecutive months beginning on March 1, 2009 on the remaining balance
of $76,187. The new Joan agreement carries a fixed interest rate of 3.0%. The
amount outstanding on the loan as of September 30, 2012 is $46,594 which is
fully reserved on the financial statements.

On December 19, 2008 the IDA entered into a new loan agreement with Andrew
M. Hartwick {Trooper and Max’s) in the amount of $20,000 at a fixed interest rate
of 3.0%. The agreement required Andrew M. Hartwick to make monthly principal
and interest payments of $360 to the Authority for 60 consecutive months
beginning on February 1, 2008. The amount outstanding on the loan as of
September 30, 2012 is $7,468.

in July 2G08, the IDA entered in to a loan agreement with Trinity Harvest in the
amount of $50,000 at a fixed interest rate of 3.0%. The agreement required
Trinity Harvest fo make monthly principal and interest payments of $898 to the
IDA for 60 consecufive months beginning on October 1, 2008. The amount
outstanding on the loan as of September 30, 2012 is $33,345 which is fully
reserved on the financial statements.

On May 8, 2009 the IDA entered in to a loan agreement with 39 Ventures, LP
(Arooga’s} in the amount of $200,000 at a fixed interest rate of 4.5%. The
agreement required 39 Ventures, LP to make monthly principal and interest
payments of $3,729 to the |DA for 60 consecutive months beginning on June 1,
2009. The amount outstanding on the loan as of September 30, 2012 is
$71,715.

During the fiscal year ended, September 30, 2008 Dauphin County transferred
the collection and rights of 5 loans receivable previously recorded as assets on
the Dauphin County Financial statements to the Authority. The principle balance
of the loans receivable at the time of transfer was $92,172. Three of the loan
balances were written off on December 15, 2010. The principle balance
outstanding for the remaining loans as of September 30, 2012 is $5,974.

On April 6, 2011 the Authority entered into a loan agreement with Harristown
Enterprises, Inc. in the amount of $100,000 at a fixed interest rate of 4.25%. The
agreement required Harristown Enterprises o make monthly principal and
interest payments of $1,852.96 to the Authority for 80 consecutive months
beginning on July 1, 2011. The amount outstanding on the loan as of September
30, 2012 is $76,952.
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Component Units — Loans Receivable (Continued)

Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority {("IDA™) (Continued)

On September 29, 2011 the Authority entered into a loan agreement with
Onabella, LTD in the amount of $100,000 at a fixed interest rate of 4.25%. The
agreement required Onabella, LTD to make monthly principal and interest
payments of $1,024.38 to the Authority for 120 consecutive months beginning on
November 1, 2011. The amount outstanding on the loan as of September 30,
2012 is $95,258.

Loans Receivable at September 30, 2012 is as follows:

Displayed as:
Current Portion $ 80,474
Noncurrent Portion 176,893

$ 257,367

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (“DCEDC™)

The Section 108 Note Payable proceeds described in Note 8 were loaned to a
developer to fund the revitalization of an office building complex. DCEDC
entered into a mortgage agresment with the developer for repayment of the loan.
As of December 31, 2012, the amount owed to the DCEDC is $2,315,056. As a
result of the developer filing for bankruptcy, the balance has been determined to
be uncollectible and has been fully reserved in DCEDC’s financial statements.

NOTE 31: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Component Units - Economic Dependency

Case Management Unit

Formal commitment for future funding by the Dauphin County MH/ID program is
made on an annual basis. Reduction of, or loss of, this funding could have a
significant effect on CMU’s programs and acfivities.

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (‘DCEDC")

Formal commitment for future funding by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development is made on an annual basis. The DCEDC also receives a
significant amount of operating revenue from Dauphin County, primarily through
Hotel Tax distributions. Reduction of, or loss of, these funding sources could
have a significant effect on the Corporation’s pragrams and activities.
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LITIGATION

Component Unit — Litigation
Dauphin County General Authority

The General Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural
disasters. Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance for all major
programs. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverages in 2012,
Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year
or the three prior years.

The General Authority is involved in several lawsuits arising in the normal course
of business, including a potential fawsuit for breach of contract. Management of
the General Authority believes none of the litigation outstanding against the
General Authority and none of the potential unasserted claims which may be
asserted against the General Authority would materially affect the financial
position of the General Authority.

MANAGEMENT'S PLAN

Component Unit — Management's Plan

Dauphin County Economic Development Corporation (“DCEDC")

The DCEDC has a deficit unrestricted net position balance in the amount of
$2,258,650 at December 31, 2012. The DCEDC experienced the deficit due to
the Section 108 HUD Loan described in Note 8 in the amount of $2,360,000.
This loan is being repaid in accordance with the loan amortization schedule using
CDBG funds. The payments will continue through the loans maturity in 2026 and
subsequently relieve the net position deficit.

LOSS ON GUARANTEED DEBT PAYMENTS

In 2009, Dauphin County began making payments on the Debt and Swaps of the
Harrisburg Authority under the Guarantee Agreement between the County and the
Authority. As described in Note 26, the County has made payments of $51,885,878. As
of December 31, 2012, the County has established a reserve of $17,139,378 that is
shown as a Loss on Guaranteed Debt Payments on the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A. On February 26, 2013 the County paid $1,500,000 to the trustee for the Harrisburg
University 20078 Bonds. This payment was required per the terms of the County’s
guaranty on this issue as the University defauited on its March 1, 2013 debt payment.

B. In March of 2013, the County issued Series of 2013 General Obligation Bonds in the
principal amount of $15,905,000 to be used to refund the General Obligation Notes,
Series C of 2004, refund the General Obligation Notes, Series D of 2004, and pay
costs related to the issuance of the Bonds.

C. In May of 2013, the County adopted ordinance number 2013-4, authorizing the
creation of the Dauphin County Land Bank Authority, a component unit of the County
created with the purpose of deterring blight and to refurn vacant property to
productive status.
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NOTE 35: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

D.

in July of 2013, the Dauphin County Industrial Development Authority closed on the
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Note, Series of 2013 in the principal amount of
$1,384,967 to finance the purchase, acquisition and construction of a new district
justice office building and pay for costs incurred in connection with the issuance of
the Note. Once completed, the building will be leased to the County for use as a
magisterial district justice office and court room. As such, the County has pledged its
fufl faith, credit and taxing power to guarantee the debt service payments related to
both principal and interest due on the Lease Revenue Note, Series of 2013.

Between January and September 2013, the County paid an additional $4.5 million
toward the Harrisburg Incinerator debt after the default of the Harrisburg Authority
and the City of Harrisburg.

Component Unit — Subsequent Events

Dauphin County General Authority

On April 30, 2013, the General Authority executed a settlement agreement to sell
the 10 Mars Sfreet property, located on the Dauphin Highlands Golf Course, in
the amount of $75,000.

Dauphin County industrial Development Authority (“IDA")

In December 2012, the IDA closed on the Guaranteed Mortgage Revenue Note,
Series of 2012 in the principal amount of $305,000 in order to finance the costs
of the Veterans Building Project. Dauphin County has pledged its full faith,
credit, and taxing power to guarantee the debt service payments related to both
principal and interest due on the Veterans Building Note.

In December 2012, the IDA ciosed on the Guaranteed Note of 2012 in the
principal amount of $2,550,000 in order to finance the costs of the modification
and expansion of the Solar Facility to generate additional solar energy. Dauphin
County has pledged its full faith, credit, and taxing power to guarantee the debt
service payments related to both principal and interest due on the Solar Facility
Note.
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SCHEDULES OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS AND FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN

Schedule of Employer Confributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
December 31 Contribution Contributed
2012 $ 8,493,038 100%
2011 $ 10,293,492 100%
2010 $ 10,118,008 100%
2009 $ 7,732,226 100%
2008 $ 3,377.905 100%
2007 $ 4,240,916 100%+

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial vafuations
at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuariat valuation follows:

Valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of retum
Projected salary increases

Includes inflation at:
Cost-of-living adjusiments

Pecember 31, 2012

Entry Age Normal

Level percentage of projected payroll

Market value adjusted for unrecognized gains and losses
from prior years

7.50%
4.50%
3.00%
None

* Asset valuation method changed from five-year smoothed market in 2011 fo market value adjusted for unrecognized gains and losses from prior

years in 2012,
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of
Actuarial Value of {AAL) - Entry AAL Coverad Covered
Valuation Assets Age {UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroli
Date {a) {b) (b-a) (afb) {c) {{b-a)lc)

12/31/2012 $ 221,525,154 $§ 282,867,937 $ 61,342,783 78.3% § 75,886,904 80.8%
12/31/2011 § 202,614,901 § 267245263 $ 64,630,362 75.8% $ 75,828,648 85.2%
12/31/2010 5 180,544,004 $ 254,614,559 $ 64,070,555 74.8% $ 75,798,908 84.5%
12/31/2009 $ 181,680,257 $ 243.319,733 $ 61,639,478 T4.7% § 77,502,072 79.4%
12/31/2008 $ 180,822,261 $ 224,855,007 $ 44,032,836 80.4% $ 71,264,760 61.8%
12/31/2007 $ 201,142,948 $ 210,420,043 § 9,277,094 95.6% $ 68,233,427 14.0%



COUNTY OF DAUPHIN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
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Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percontage of
Actuarial Value of (AAL) - Entry AAL Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Age (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a} (b) {b-a) (alb) {c) ({{b-a)ic)
1412011 $ - $ 14942847 § 14,042,647 0% $ 75,798,908 19.7%
1172009 - 11,290,422 11,200,422 0% 71,264,760 15.8%
- 6,868,259 6,868,259 0% 63,649,794 10.8%

112007



COUNTY OF DAUPHIN
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts {Negative}
Revenues
Taxes $ 98,950,000 $ 98,950,000 § 99,745,703 § 795,703
intergovernmental 39,159,723 40,161,426 37,220,140 {2,941,2886)
Charges for Services 17,822,082 17,866,782 18,069,559 202,777
License and Permits 68,500 68,500 111,168 42,668
Court Costs and Fines 4,232,018 4,688,176 3,791,976 (896,200}
Interest and Rents 262,350 262,350 185,288 {77,062)
Totai Revenues 160,494,873 161,997,234 159,123,834 (2,873,400}
Expenditures
Current:
General Government 15,083,345 15,176,205 15,632,054 1,544,151
Judicial 54,285,325 55,079,648 50,928,613 4,151,035
Pubiic Safefy 41,638,589 41,635,276 43,308,077 (1,762,801}
Human Services 30,517,972 30,921,904 28,325,165 2,598,739
Culture and Recreation 2,330,862 2,301,737 2,145,684 248,053
Conservation and Development 4,468,579 4,780,584 4,623,413 157,171
Debt Service
Principle 6,362,608 6,362,608 6,998,388 (635,780)
Interest 5,037,210 5,037,210 5,002,642 34,568
Total Expenditures 159,824,980 161,385,172 155,054,036 6,331,136
Excess of Revenues Over Expendifures 569,883 612,062 4,089,788 3,457,736
Qther Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfer In 3,122,685 3,080,506 6,050,958 2,970,452
Operating Transfer (Out) (24,568,324) {24,568,324) (15,607,709) 8,960,615
Transfer from Component Units - - 619,624 619,624
Loss on Guaranteed Debt Payments - - (17,139,378) (17,139,378)
Swap Proceeds - - 505,000 505,000
Gain (Loss) from Sale of Fixed Assets 4,000 4,000 7 6,550 2,550
Capital Lease Proceeds - - 817,977 817,977
Total Other Financing Uses {21,441,639) (21,483,318) (24,746,978) {3,263,160)
Net Change in Fund Batances {20,871,756) (20,871,756) (20,677,180) 194,576
Fund Balances - January 1 20,871,756 20,871,756 91,199,378 70,327,622

Fund Balances ~ December 31

$ - $ - $ 70,522,198 § 70,522,198
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COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 131
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Other Fort Hunter Total Other
Special Revenus Parmanent Govemnmental
Funds Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivaients 3 5067724 § - $ 5,067,724
Investments 1,352,719 1,001,827 2,354,546
Receivables:
Accounts 372,358 - 372,359
Loans 303,396 - 303,396
Due From Other Governments 1,500,892 - 1,500,892
Prepaid Expenses 3,462 - 3,462
Other Assets 82,990 - 62,999
Total Assets 5 8,663,551 §$ 1,001,827 § 9,665,378
Liabifities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 1,915704 $ - 5 1,915,704
Accrued Liabilities 248,266 - 248,266
Deferred Revenues 2,480,144 - 2,460,144
Due to Other Funds 146,683 - 146,683
Total Liabilities 4,770,797 - 4,770,797
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 275,280 - 275,280
Restricted 3,617,474 1,001,827 4,619,301
Total Fund Balances 3,892,754 1,001,827 4,894 581

Total Liabilities and Fund
Balances 5 8,663,551 § 1,001,827 % 9,665,378




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN

Page 132

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Revenues
Hotel Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Court Costs and Fines and Feas
Interest and Rent
Appreciation in Fair Market Value of Investments
Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
Judicial
Public Safety
Public Works
Human Services
Conservation and Development
Cuilture and Recreation
Dabt Service
Principle

interest
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Proceeds from Asset Disposal
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Other Fort Hunter Tofal Cther
Special Revenue Permanent Governmental
Eunds Fund Funds

3 9,074,534 § - 9,074,534

39,471,191 - 39,471,191

1,426,944 - 1,426,244

1,325,556 - 1,325,556

36,715 23,825 60,540

- 60,535 60,535

1,484,777 8,262 1,493,039

52,819,717 92,622 52,912,339

7,241,182 - 7,241,182

Q7,727 - 97,727

1,179,281 - 1,179,281

38,362,882 - 38,362,882

171,274 - 171,274

8,621,177 - 8,621,177

572,750 - 572,750

42,521 - 42,521

56,288,794 - 56,288,794
(3,469,077) 92,622 {3,376,455)

3,521,220 - 3,021,220
{155,670) - (1585,670)

4,761 - 4,761

3,370,311 - 3,370,311
(98,766) 92,622 (6,144)

3,981,520 909,205 4,900,725

$ 3,802,754 § 1,001,827 4,894,581
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ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivables
Dus from Other Governments
Other Assets

Total current assets
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, (Net)
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Obligation Under Capital Lease
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued Compensated Absences

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unresiricted

Tofal net position

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 137
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2012
Solid Emergency 911 Fort Hunter
Waste Operating & Act 56 QOperating
Fund Wireless Fund Fund Totals
3 92,851 $ 980,003 30,784 % 1,103,638
25,376 267,837 - 293,213
201,869 878,783 - 1,080,652
- 36,495 - 36,495
100,164 2,815 - 102,979
420,260 2,165,933 30,784 2,616,977
- - 111,492 111,492
1,508,247 1,041,429 420,097 2,969,773
1,508,247 1,041,429 531,589 3,081,265
1,928,507 3,207,362 562,373 5,608,242
112,121 14,674 - 126,795
5,846 93,626 - 99,472
- 875,118 - 875,118
- 25,470 - 25,470
117,967 1,008,888 - 1,126,855
12,148 404,835 - 416,983
12,148 404,835 - 416,983
130,115 1.413,723 - 1,543,838
1,508,247 1,015,959 531,589 3,085,795
290,145 777,680 30,784 1,088,609
$ 1,798,392 $ 1,793,639 562,373 $ 4,154,404




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 138
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHAMNGES IN FUND NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2012
Solid Emergency 911 Fort Hunter
Waste Operating & Act 56 Opsrating
Fund Wireless Fund Fund Totals
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services 1,200,381 4,133,262 3 48,414 $ 5,382,057
Total Operating Revenues 1,200,381 4,133,262 48,414 5,382,057
Operaling Expenses
Personnel Services 347,697 4,803,868 - 5,151,565
Contracted Services 687,410 58,659 - 746,068
Supplies and Materials 4,475 32,997 - 37,472
Repairs and Maintenance 87,228 1,446,076 - 1,533,304
Uilities 16,079 393,403 9,071 418,583
Cther Services and Charges 200,782 215,321 21,730 437,833
Depreciation and Amortization 86,304 274,868 57,169 418,331
Total Operating Expenses 1,429,975 7,225,182 87,970 8,743,127
Operating Loss {229,594) (3,091,820) {39,556) (3,361,070)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Income 556 8,672 - 9,228
Interest Expense - (3,935) - {3.935)
Grants 67,993 - - 67,993
Total Nonoperating Revenues 68,548 4,737 - 73,286
Loss Before Operating Transfers In (161,045} (3,087,183) (39,556) (3,287,784)
Transfers In 240,000 650,323 - 890,323
Gain on Disposal of Capital Asset - 389,428 - 389,428
Total Transfers In 240,000 1,039,748 - 1,279,748
Changes in Net Posilion 78,955 {2,047,434) (39,556) (2,008,035)
Total Net Fosition - Beginning of Year 1,719,437 3,841,073 601,929 6,162,439
Total Net Position - End of Year 1,798,392 1,793,639 3 562,373 3 4,154,404




Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from Recyeling Servicas
Receipts from Racreational Activities
Paymenis to Employess
Payments fo Suppfiers
Intemal Aclivity - Payments to other funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Noncapilal Financing Activities
Operating Transfers In

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Actlvities

Interest Paid

Grants

Purchase of Capital Assets, net of Disposais

Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets

Principal Payments an Capital Lease

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and Refated
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Income
Investments
Net Cash Provided by [nvesting Activities
et Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

‘Cast and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 139
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Salid Emergency 911 Fart Hunter
Wasta Operating & Act 56 Operating
Fund Wiraless Fund Fund Tatals
$ 1,099,814 5 3.641,208 3 - 4,741,022
- - 48,414 48,414
(378,218) (4,716,068) - {6,094,286)
{1,143,214) (2,163,422) {30,801) (3,337,437)
- 875,118 - 875,118
{421,618) {2,363,164) 17,613 (2,767,168)
240,000 650,323 - 860,323
240,000 650,323 - 830,323
- (3,935) - (3.935)
67,993 - - 67,993
- 231,813 (13,793) 218,020
- 380,426 389,426
- {59,076) - (59,076}
67,983 558,228 {13,783) 612,428
556 8,672 - 9,228
15,175 151,845 - 167,020
15,731 160,517 - 1‘76.248
(97.894) {994,096} 3,820 {1,088,170)
180,745 1,874,009 26,964 2,191,808
$ 92,851 § 980,003 5 30,784 1,103,638




Reconciliation of Operating loss to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Operating Loss
Adjustmenits to Reconcile Operating Loss
fo Net Cash Used In Operating Activities
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts Receivable
Other Asssts
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Accrued Vacation and Sick Pay
Due To/Due Fram Other Funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

COUNTY CF DAUPHIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Page 140

Solid Emergency 911 Fort Hunter
Waste Operaling & Act 56 Operating
Fund Wireless Fund Fund Totals
3 (229.594) % (3.091,920) (39,556) % (3,361,070)
86,304 274,858 57,169 418,331
{100,567} (492,054) - (592,621)
(164) {915} - {1,079)
{147 076) {16,051} - (183,127}
(35,064) 30,463 - {4,601}
4,543 57,337 - 61,880
- 875,118 - 875,118
3 (421,618) § {2,363,164) 17,613 $ {2,767,169)
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Gengral Govemment

Commissicners - Governing Body

Personal Services
Supplies and Senvices
Capital Qutlay

Finance
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Cutlay

Risk Management
Personal Services
Supplies and Services

Purchasing
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Outtay

Voter's Registration
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capitai Qutlay

Tax Assessment
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Outtay

Treasurer
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Outlay

Tax Collectors
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Cutlay

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 142
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance
Budgefed Amounts Actual Paositive
Qriginal Final Amounts {Negative)
$ 717,036 $ 708,036 1,166,249 3 (458,213)
2,671,370 2,225,383 1,487,316 738,047
2,788,406 2,833,399 2,653,565 279,834
335,335 335,335 320,609 14,636
18,120 17,774 12,084 5,710
353,455 353,109 332,763 20,346
176,186 176,186 141,071 35,115
4,928 4,928 4,230 6898
181,114 181,114 145,301 35,813
410,334 410,334 361,513 48.821
524,354 524,354 450,963 73,391
934,688 934,688 812,476 122,212
471,988 471,988 475,301 (3.313)
698,700 675,919 662,708 13,211
- 8,000 7.517 483
1,170,688 1,155,907 1,145,526 10,381
1,676,850 1,578,850 1,499,674 77,176
1,570,036 1,594,543 1,434,131 160,412
3,146,886 3,171,383 2,933,805 237,588
344,646 331,205 306,160 25,135
13,175 26,526 22,596 3,930
357,821 357,821 328,756 29,065
188,388 188,388 182,932 5,456
70,800 72,416 61,106 11,310
258,188 260,804 244,038 16,766




General Govemment {Continued)
Personnel
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Qutlay

Contreller
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Outtay

Solicifor
Personal Services
Supplies and Servicas
Capital Outlay

Public Defender
Persenal Services
Suppiies and Services
Capital Outlay

Recorder of Deeds
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Ouflay

Facilities Management
Personal Servicas
Supplies and Services
Capital Outlay

Printing
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Outfay

Data Processing
Personal Services
Supplies and Services
Capital Quilay

COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 143
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
842,700 842,700 1,588,279 (746,573)
909,850 909,850 50,613 859,237
1,752,550 1,752,550 1,639,882 112,658
1,007,063 1,007,063 937,185 69,878
229,069 229,069 241,038 {11,969)
1,236,132 1,236,132 1,178,223 57,909
468,408 488,408 396,373 71,535
126,068 126,068 156,681 (30,583)
594,476 594 476 553,524 40,852
2,986,884 2,986,884 2,803,206 183,678
885,388 848,515 845,453 3.062
3,872,272 3,835,309 3,648,659 186,740
564,991 564,991 483,277 81,714
671,308 643,805 437,707 206,188
1,236,299 1,208,886 920,084 287,902
3,313,882 3,311,699 3,016,894 294,805
3,044,042 3,022,330 2,705,083 317,247
4,848 28,843 23,995 4,848
6,362,872 6,362,872 5,745,972 616,900
- - 547 (547)
1,344 1,344 20,188 {18,844)
1,344 1,344 20,735 (18,391)
2,249,080 2,024,736 1,822,391 172,345
1,208,030 1,235,539 1,148,565 86,974
226,494 354,329 797,789 {443,460)
3,684,604 3,684,604 3,868,745 {184,141)




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 144
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Criginal Final Amounts {Negative)
General Government (Continued)
Veterans' Affairs
Personal Services 96,357 96,357 136,320 {39,963)
Supplies and Services 126,593 127,250 105,868 21,382
Capital Outlay - - - -
222,950 223,607 242,188 - {18,581)
Gasoline Center
Supplies and Services 28,100 28,100 23,740 4,360
Capital Outlay - - - -
28,100 28,100 23,740 4,360
Pass-through Library Grant - - - -
Less: Indirect Cost Reimbursement (13,100,000) {13,100,000) (12,806,838) {293,162)
Total General Government § 15083845 $§ 15176205 $ 13,632,054 1,544,151




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 145
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative}
Judiciai
Courts
Personal Services $ 2,448,577 $ 2,446 577 $ 2,182,226 3 264,351
Supplies and Services 3,605,749 3,648,462 3,653,370 95,092
Capital Qutlay - - - -
6,052,326 6,095,039 5,735,596 359,443
Court Reporters
Personal Services 1,425,622 1,425,622 1,316,422 109,200
Supplies and Services 72,276 72,276 ’ 43,976 28,300
Capital Outiay - - - -
1,497,898 1,487 898 1,360,398 137,500
Jury Commissioners
Personal Services - - - -
Supplies and Services - - - -
District Justices
Personal Services 4,714,041 4,714,041 4,218,521 495,520
Supplies and Services 2,041,566 2,077,309 1,690,604 386,615
Capital Outlay 171,423 171,423 - 171,423
6,827,030 6,962,773 5,909,215 1,053,558
Law Library
Personal Services 102,984 102,994 90,852 12,142
Supplies and Services 460,969 446,963 340,621 106,342
Capital Qutlay - - - -
563,963 549,957 431,473 118,484
Night Court
Personal Services 221,345 221,345 232,475 {11,130)
Supplies and Services 21,045 19,845 6,204 13,641
Capital Outlay - - - -
242,390 241,190 238,679 2,511
Clerk of Courts
Personal Services 1,518,337 1,516,737 1,318,563 198,174
Supplies and Services 375,241 480,350 348,213 132,137
Capital Oufiay - 5,431 5,431 -

1,893,578 2,002,518 1,672,207 330,311




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 146
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Varianice
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Einal Amounts {Negative)
Judicial (Continued)
Coroner
Perscnal Services 561,505 561,505 542,831 18,874
Suppiies and Services . 517,828 497,396 497,700 (304)
Capital Outiay - 88,317 88,572 (255)
1,079,333 1,147,218 1,128,903 18,315
Disfrict Attomey
Personal Services 3,631,924 3,531,924 3,276,034 255,890
Supplies and Services 1,116,681 1,195,409 1,047,805 147,604
Capital Qutlay - - - -
4,648,605 4,727,333 4,323,839 403,494
Criminal Investigation
Personal Services 1,566,584 1,566,584 1,469,451 97,133
Supplies and Services 619,388 593,172 564,370 28,802
Capital Qutlay 36,824 36,824 34,853 1,971
2,222,796 2,196,580 2,068,674 127,906
Frothonoiary
Personal Services 1,008,354 1,006,354 854,697 51,697
Supplies and Services 313,453 417,11 378,979 38,212
Capital Quilay 19,945 17,405 17,075 330
1,341,752 1,440,950 1,350,711 80,239
Registrar of Wills
Personal Services 500,199 490,199 458,030 32,169
Supplies and Services 291,081 328,891 260,021 68,870
Capital Outlay - - 4,845 (4,845)
791,280 819,090 722,896 96,194
Sheriff
Personal Services 3,455,486 3,438,586 3,380,995 57,501
Supplies and Services 751,073 764,987 740,378 24,609
Capital Outlay - 86,000 84,758 1,241
4,208,559 4,289,573 4,206,132 83,441
Cost & Fines
Personal Services - 224,757 224,757 215,664 9,093
Supplies and Services 28,506 27,440 26,505 935
Capital Outlay - - - -
253,263 252 197 242,169 10,028




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 147
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {(Negative)
Judictal {Continued)
Adult Probation
Personal Services 11,556,814 11,556,914 11,153,771 403,143
Suppiies and Services 1,718,100 1,837,024 1,740,217 96,807
Capital Outlay 97,103 82,870 48,479 34,31
13,372,117 13,476,808 12,842,467 534,341
Juvenile Probation
Personal Services 6,486,616 6,449,146 6,112,622 336,524
Supplies and Services 1,343,080 1,406,684 1,160,607 246,077
Capital Outlay - 37.470 - 37470
7,829,696 7,893,300 7,273,229 620,071
Victim Witness
Personal Services 67,081 67,081 66,370 711
Supplies and Services 679,988 804,473 764,632 39,841
747,069 871,554 831,002 40,552
Pretrial
Personat Services - - - -
Supplies and Services 454,670 454 670 415,556 39,114
454 670 454 670 415,556 39,114
RO County Records Improvement
Supplies and Services 139,000 139,000 75,467 63,533
Capital Outlay 22,000 22,000 - 22,600
161,000 161,000 75,467 85,533

Total Judicial $ 54,285,325 $ 55,079,648 $ 50,928,613 $ 4,151,035




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 148
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Public Safaty
Prison
Personal Services $ 28,858,447 $ 28,788,447 $§ 30,302,294 $ (1,513,847)
Supplies and Services 10,501,496 10,539,866 9,620,923 918,943
Capitat Outlay - 40,064 40,064 -
39,359,943 39,368,377 39,063,281 (594,504)
Emergency Services
Personal Services 742,480 742,480 760,558 {18,079)
Supplies and Services 1,528,166 1,522,075 2,663,482 {1,141,407)
Capital Outiay 8,000 2,344 10,755 (8,411}
2,278,846 2,266,899 3,434,796 (1,167,897)

Total Public Safety $ 41,638,580 $ 41,635,276 $ 43,388,077 §  (1,762,801)




COUNTY OF DAUPHIN Page 149
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Criginal Final Amounts {Negative}
Human Services
Personal Services $ 418,799 8 443,629 % 594,043 $ (145,414)
Supplies and Services 30,099,173 30,473,275 27,731,122 2,742,153
Capital Outlay - - - -
Total Human Services $ 30,517,972 $ 30,921,904 $ 28,325,165 5 2,596,739
Culture and Recreation
Parks
Personal Services $ 1,300,442 $ 1,300,442 $ 1,270,366 $ 30,076
Supplies and Services 1,030,420 1,091,295 875,318 215,977
Capital Outlay - - - -
Total Culture and Recreation 5 2,330,862 $ 2,391,737 $ 2,145,684 $ 246,053
Conservation and Development
Cooperative Extension
Personal Services $ 263,224 5 263,224 $ 252,125 $ 11,092
Supplies and Services 247,761 246,972 246,349 623
Capital Outlay - - - -
510,885 510,196 498,474 11,722
Conservation Programs
Personal Services 1,067,642 1,067,642 993,189 74,453
Supplies and Services 662,054 770,901 579,167 191,734
Capital Qutlay - - 190,011 (190,011)
1,729,606 1,838,543 1,762,367 76,176
Economic Development
Personal Services 385,070 385,070 323,036 62,034
Supplies and Services 2,042,828 2,046,775 2,039,536 7.239
Capital Outlay - - - -
2,427,898 2,431,845 2,362,572 69,273

Housing Redevelopment
Supplies and Services - - - -

Total Conservation and Development $ 4,668,579 b 4,780,584 & 4,623,413 $ 157,171




COUNTY OF BAUPHIN Page 150
SCHEDULE OF DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED)
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Variance
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Originat Einal Amounts {Negative}
Debt Service
Principal $ 6,362,608 6,362,608 $ 6,998,388 {635,780}
Interest 5,037,210 5,037,210 4,877,642 159,568
Total Debt Service $ 11,390,818 11,399,818 $ 11,876,030 {476,212}
Other Financing Uses
Interfund Transfers fo
Domestic Relations Fund $ 2,140,487 2,140,487 $ 2,140,487 -
MH/MR Fund 888,100 888,100 889,811 {1,711}
Office of Aging Fund 80,000 90,000 90,000 -
Drug and Alcohol Fund 207,871 207,871 141,168 66,703
Children, Youth, and Families Fund 11,500,000 11,500,000 10,742,873 757,127
State Grant Fund - - - -
Human Services Development Fund 40,000 40,000 - 40,000
Hazard Materials Emergency
Response Fund - - 300 (306}
Weatherization 30,000 30,000 173,316 (143,316)
Liguid Fuels - - 2,319 (2,319)
ARRA - - - -
Affordable Housing - - - -
911 - EMA Communications Fund 650,000 650,000 650,323 {323)
Solid Waste - - 650,000 {650,000)
Capital Projects Fund - - - -
Human Service Building Fund 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
General Fund 721,866 721,866 362,798 359,068
Debt Service 7,800,000 7,800,000 - 7,800,000
Total Interfund Transfers § 24,568,324 24,568,324 $ 15,843,395 8,724,929




